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from compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 under Rule 19(7) of Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 from SEBI vide letter dated January 10, 2020
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REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
Alankit Assignments Limited(SEBI INR000002532)

| — VSN 'St o Regd Office: 205-208, Anarkali Complex,Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-
Hlaaitty £ Wosin, We Muooege Both I 10055

Corp Office: 1E/13 Alankit Heights JhandewalanExtension New Delhi -110 055
T:+91-11-42541234 / 23541234, F:+91-11- 42541201
lalitap@alankit.com; info@alankit.com i




Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

TABLE OF CONTENTS

L. DEFINITI.ONS AND ABBREVIATIONS .....oiiiiiiii i 3
II. CERTAIN CONVENTIONS AND USE OF FINANCIAL AND MARKET DATA................. 7
[I. FORWARD LOOKING STATENMENTS snsssnussssssssviseses s vasassvvomsamsii s 8
IV. SUMMARY OF INFORMATION MEMORANDUM .....ccccoceiiiiiniiniiiniinieiiiniee st 9
V. RISK FACTORS ..ottt s ees e bbb b e e et e e sba e e s s e s e 15
VI. INTRODUCTION .c.cccimmmimmmesmsissivmsomsssessismesssessmssrmmemmmsmmsrmsnss s sasssssmesms sssasss s smmosns oo 26
VII; GENERAL INFOB MR TION . ucimsumssmsosivmeriissinmmmes i ssasss oo st sasiaseressssninos 30
VIIL., CAPITAL STRUETURE wuisisnmmmmmimmsmsnsssnssrsssisisivoiasssasvesiisss ssasovssess voaussssnsias amms 34
X. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF AMATLGAMATION i osusissmmsmmsmmmamssssiomssiasiaisssispssassissmes 49
X, INDUSTRY ANDBUSINESS OVERNIEW..ummmmianimssnsssmisisimmssmsmmiasmomsss iy 66
X1, FINANCIAL STATENENTS ...oveconsseorneoonssassnessansumnessitsssiss sasaissssssssiaemamssam (raaibas oo ssmmmns 99
XII. LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION.....cccoiiiiriiieiiiemie ettt 147
XIII. INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO GROUP COMPANIES.......ccccooiiiiniinieninieieniene 155
XIV. REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES ....icicsnmsccssmsnnsessnsormvensaassnnarnessanersnss 159
XV. MAINPROVISIONS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION. c.ucauimmmmumanmsmise 164
XVI. MATERIAL DOCUMENTS FOR. INSPECTION....cccccummmmmioisiasesamiismimsmmversnasssssasassssasassns 201
DECLARATIONN...¢oeeesseennossnssssssdsimssss s sis i v i s s i s e i aaons 202




Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Conventional/General Terms

Companies Act

means Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time

Central Government or

means the government of India

Government

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time
Income Tax Act means Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended from time to time
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

Issue Related Terms

ACCPL Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
AEL Athena Eduspark Limited

AGLSL Artemis Global Life Sciences Limited
AHSL Artemis Health Sciences Limited

Annual General Meeting or
AGM

Annual general meeting of the Members of the Company

Annual Report

means the annual report of the Company as prepared as per
section 134 of the Companies Act

Annual Return

means the annual return of the Company as prepared as per
section 92 of the Companies Act

Artemis Hospital

means Company’s hospital situated at Sector-51, Gurugram-
122001, Haryana also known as Artemis Health Institute

Articles or Articles of

means the articles of associations of the Company as framed

Association or altered from time to time

Associate(s) means the associates of the Company as defined under section
2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

ATL Apollo Tyres Limited

Audit Committee

means the audit committee of the Company set up in
accordance with section 177 of the Companies Act and
Regulation 18 of SEBI LODR Regulations

Auditor or Statutory
Auditors

means the auditors of the Company M/s SCV & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi

Board or Board of
Director(s) or Director(s)

means the board of directors of the Company

Code of Conduct or Code

means the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices of the
Company

Committee(s)

means committee of Board of Directors or any other
committee so constituted

Company or Artemis or
AMSL or issuer

Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Composite Scheme or
Scheme

means the composite scheme of amalgamation between
AGLSL, AHSL, AEL and the Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors, involves First merger and Second
Merger occurring in a sequential manner

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

means the corporate social responsibility committee of the
Company set up in accordance with section 135 of the
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Companies Act and Companies (CSR policy) Rules, 2014

Depository(ies)

means a depository registered with the SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time

Designated Stock Exchange

means the Bombay Stock Exchange

Effective Date

October 14, 2019

Equity Share(s)

means equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10/- each

Extraordinary General
Meeting or EGM

Extraordinary general meeting of the Members of the
Company

Group Companies

means group companies of the Company in accordance with
Regulation 2(1) () of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
described under Section XIII “Information with respect to
Group Companies” on page 155 of this Information
Memorandum

Independent Directors

means Directors of the Company appointed in accordance with
section 2(47) and section 149 (6) of the Companies Act

Information Memorandum
or IM

This information memorandum dated, January 16, 2020 filed
with the Stock Exchanges, issued in accordance with the
applicable laws prescribed by SEBI

Investors

means the investors of the Company

Key Managerial Personnel
or KMP

means personnel of the Company appointed in accordance
with section 2(51) and section 196 of the Companies Act and
as disclosed in Part F of Section X on page 90 of this
Information Memorandum

Memorandum of
Association or
Memorandum

means the memorandum of association of the company as
framed or altered from time to time

National Company Law
Tribunal, Delhi or NCLT,
Delhi or NCLT

means the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

means the nomination and remuneration committee of the
Company set up in accordance with section 178 of the
Companies Act and Regulation 19 of SEBI LODR Regulations

Promoter(s) or Promoter
Company or Promoter

The promoter(s) of the Company, as identified and described
in Part

Group G of Section X on page 93 of this Information Memorandum
Record Date means October 25, 2019
Registrar or ROC means the registrar of companies, National Capital Territory of

Delhi & Haryana

Registrar and Transfer
Agent

Alankit Assignments Limited

SCRA

Sccurities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from
time to time

SEBI Circular

means SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 issued by
SEBI dated March 10, 2017

SEBI ICDR Regulations or
ICDR Regulations or ICDR

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2019 as amended from time to time

SEBI LODR Regulations or
LODR Regulations or

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time ’
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LODR

Share Exchange Ratio

means the ratio of 1 Equity Share of face value Rs.10/- each of
the Company for every 5 equity shares of face value Rs. 2/-
each of AGLSL issued to each shareholder of AGLSL as on
the Record Date

Stakeholders Relationship
Committee

means the stakeholders relationship committee of the
Company set up in accordance with section 178(5) of the
Companies Act and Regulation 20 of SEBI LODR Regulations

Stock Exchanges

means BSE and NSE where the Equity Shares of the Company
are proposed to be listed

Tripartite Agreement

means an agreement entered into between the Company,
CDSL or NSDL and the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

Valuer

Chitale & Co., Mumbai

Abbreviations

AGM Annual General Meeting

ATMA Automobile Tyre Manufactures’ Association

BSE Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

CCI Competition Commission of India

CIN Corporate Identification Number

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CPCB Central Pollution Control Board

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from
time to time

FICCI Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry

FII(s) Foreign Institutional Investor

FY Financial Year

GDP Gross Domestic Product

HUDA Haryana Urban Development Authority

IPD In-patient departments

[PO Initial Public Offer

ISIN International Securities Identification Number

ICI Joint Commission International

Y% Joint Venture

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

NABH National Accreditation Board for Hospitals & Healthcare
Providers

NABL National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration
Laboratories

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal

NSDL National Securities Depositories Limited

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OPD Out-patient departments

PHC Primary Healthcare Centres

RBI

Reserve Bank of India
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SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System

SCRR Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SCV M/s SCV & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi
SEBI Securities Exchange Board of India

SPP M/s S.P. Puri & Co. Chartered Accountants, New Delhi
SME Small and Medium Enterprise

TPA Third Party Administrator

USA or US or United States | United States of America

USD or USS or US Dollar
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS AND USE OF FINANCIAL AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Information Memorandum is derived from the Company’s
financial statements. The financial year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of each year, so all
references to a particular financial year are to the twelve-months period ended March 31 of that year, unless
specified otherwise.

In this Information Memorandum, any inconsistencies in any table between the aggregate and the totals of the
sums recorded are because of rounding off. All references to “India” contained in this Information
Memorandum are to the Republic of India. All references to “Rupees” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupees, the
official currency of the Republic of India. For extra definitions, please refer Section I of this Information
Memiorandum at page number 5.

Unless stated otherwise, industry information utilized all through this Information Memorandum has been
acquired from published information. Such published information by and large expresses that the data
contained in those publications has been obtained from sources accepted to be reliable; however, their
exactness and completeness are not ensured and their reliability cannot be assured.

Despite the fact that we accept that industry information utilized within this Information Memorandum is
reliable, it has not been independently verified. The data included in this Information Memorandum about
different organizations is based on their particular Annual Reports and information made available by the
respective companies.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Information Memorandum includes statements that contain words or phrases such as “will”, “would”,
“aim?”, “will likely result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”,
“contemplate”, “seek to”, “try to”, “proposes to”, “could”, “may”, “will”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”,
“project”, “should”, “will pursue” and similar expressions or variations of such expressions that are “forward-
looking statements The forward- looking statements contain information regarding, among other things, the
Company’s financial condition, future plans and business strategy. These forward -looking statements are
based on the Company’s current expectations and projections about future events. Forward looking
statements reflect the current views of the Company as of the date of this Information Memorandum and are
not a guarantee of future performance.

All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company’s expectations
include, among others:

General economic and business conditions in India and other countries;

The Company’s ability to successfully implement its strategy, growth and expansion plans and technological
changes; \

Market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond the Company’s control;

The Company’s ability to manage the third party risks;

Any adverse outcome in legal proceedings in which The Company is involved;

Potential mergers, acquisitions or restructuring;

Changes in monetary and/ or fiscal policies of the Government of India, inflations, deflation, foreign
exchange rates, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates;

Oceurrence of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which the Company has operations;
Changes in political and social conditions in India;

The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;

Competition in the industry; and

Other factors beyond the Company’s control.

For further discussion of factors that could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ, refer
to Section V of this Information Memorandum at page number 16. By their nature, certain risk disclosures
are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result,
actual future gains or losses of the Company could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

Neither the Company, its Directors, nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any obligation to
update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect
the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.
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SUMMARY OF INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

This section is a summary of specific disclosures included in this Information Memorandum and is not
exhaustive nor does it purport to contain a summary of all disclosures or details relevant to prospective
investors. For additional information and further details with respect to any of the information summarised
below, please refer to the relevant sections of this Information Memorandum. Unless otherwise stated, the
financial information in this section is derived from the Financial Statements.

A,

Summary of Business

The Company is engaged in the business of managing and operating of multi-specialty hospital and
commenced its commercial operation by setting up a Hospital in the name of * Artemis Hospitals”
(Also known as Artemis Health Institute) at Gurugram on July 16, 2007 spread across 9 acres, is a 394
bed; state-of-the-art multi-specialty hospital located in Gurugram, India. Artemis Hospital is the first
JCI and NABH accredited hospital in Gurugram.

Designed as one of the most advanced in India, Artemis Hospital provides a depth of expertise in the
spectrum of advanced medical & surgical interventions, comprehensive mix of inpatient and outpatient
services.

Artemis Hospital has also successfully received accreditation from the Joint Commission International
(JCI), National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories (NABL) and also from
National Accreditation Board for Hospitals & Healthcare Providers (NABH).

Summary of Industry

India is one of the fastest growing healthcare markets in the world. Rising income levels, an ageing
population, increasing insurance coverage and the imbalance in demand-supply presents a big
opportunity for healthcare providers to increase bed capacity and investments in this sector.

Indian healthcare delivery system is categorized into two major components - public and private. The
public healthcare system comprises limited secondary and tertiary care institutions in key cities and
focuses on providing basic healthcare facilities in the form of PHCs in rural areas. The private sector
provides majority of secondary, tertiary and quaternary care institutions with a major concentration in
metros, tier I and tier II cities. India is cost competitive compared to its peers in Asia and Western
countries. The cost of surgery in India is about one-tenth of that in the US or Western Europe

India is experiencing 22-25 per cent growth in medical tourism and the industry is expected to reach
USS$ 9 billion by 2020. There is a significant scope for enhancing healthcare services considering that
healthcare spending as a percentage of GDP is rising. Rural India, which accounts for over 70 per cent
of the population, is set to emerge as a potential demand source,

Object of Issue

The NCLT, Delhi vide its order dated September 30, 2019 approved the amalgamation of AHSL, AEL
and AGLSL with Company through the Composite Scheme under the provisions of section 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of Companies Act read with Regulation 37 of LODR. In terms of the
Composite Scheme, upon the Composite Scheme becoming effective the Company shall, without any
further act, application, instrument or deed, issue and allot in the ratio of 1 Equity Shares of face value
Rs.10 each of the Company for every 5 equity shares of face value Rs. 2 each of AGLSL to each
shareholder of AGLSL whose name appears in the register of members of AGLSL as on the record
date (“Share Exchange Ratio™). The Share Exchange Ratio was computed and recommended by
Chitale & Co., Mumbai (*Valuer™), who have submitted the valuation report dated May 04, 2018
containing their recommendations. AGLSL and the Company have also sought and obtained Fairness

9
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Opinion on the valuation carried out by the Valuer from Chartered Capital and Investment Limited.
Pursuant to the Scheme there is no issue of shares to the public at large except to the existing
shareholders of AGLSL as on the determined record date. The Equity Shares so issued pursuant to the
Scheme to the shareholders of AGLSL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Regulation 19

of the SCRR.

Name of Promaters

Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar, aged 77 years’ son of Late Shri Raunaq Singh residing at H. No. 3/3,
Shanti Niketan, New Delhi-110021. Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar has experience of over 40 years in
the manufacturing industry. Presently Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar is the Chairman of the Apollo
Tyres Limited and PTL Enterprises Limited. He is the Past President of the FICCI, former
Chairman of the Automotive Tyre Manufacturers’ Association and was a Member of the
Board of Governors for the Indian Institute of Management (Kozhikode). Currently he is the

Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar has a keen interest in the field of education and health care. Artemis
Hospital, promoted by him, is an enterprise focusing on state-of-the-art medical care and runs
a cutting edge multi-specialty medical facility which focuses on holistic treatment. An
initiative close to his heart is Apollo Tyres' HIV-AIDS awareness and prevention programme

driver community, implemented through Apollo Tyres

Foundation's Health Care Centers located in large transshipment hubs across India.

He has been conferred with ‘Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year award — Manufacturing’
for the year 2012. He has recently been awarded with Hungarian ‘Order of Merit’, and

)] Individual Promoter — Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar

Chairman of the BRICS Business Council, India

for the commercial vehicle

Government of Japan’s ‘Order of the Rising Sun, Gold and Silver Star’.
(1)  Corporate Promoter — Constructive Finance Private Limited

Name Constructive Finance Private Limited
Date of Incorporation 26.08.1998
CIN U67120DL1988PTC250410

Registered Office

414/1, 4th Floor, DDA Commercial Complex, District
Centre. Janakpuri. New Delhi -110058

Nature of Business

a registered Non-Banking Financial Institution whose main
object is to carry on business of an Investment company to
buy invest in, acquire, hold and deal in shares & other
securities.

Names of Directors

Mr. Rajan Sabharwal and Mr. Sudhir Wadhawan

Name of Promoters

Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar

Pre- issuie Shareholding of Promoter an

d Promoter Group

‘NameofPromoter ~_ No.OfSharesheld % ofholding
Promoters

Artemis Health Sciences

Ltd(AHSL)* 2,10,35,000 100 %
Total 2,10,35,000 100%
Public 0 0
Total 2,10,35,000 100%

*AHSL was a holding company of the Company prior to the approval of Composite Scheme and hold 100%
sharcs of the Company and also in the latest Annual Return of the Company filed with MCA and AHSL was
wholly owned subsidiary of AGLSL, AHSL was shown as Promoter.

10
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For details of shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group post the Composite Scheme becoming
effective please refer to page 36 of this Information Memorandum

Summary of Financial Information

Particulars

30™ June

2019

31" March
2019

Financial yearending
31" March 317 March

2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Share Capital 2103.50 2103.50 2103.50 2103.50
Net Worth 19048.67 18604.73 16564.82 13899.22
Revenue 13027.16 55042.00 50667.89 46412.56
Profit after tax 453.15 2076.77 2677.02 2706.68
Earnings per share A 9.87 12,73 12.87
Net Asset Value (per 90.56 88.45 78.75 66.08
share)

Total Borrowings 11142.81 11286.16 7306.54 7565.17
EBITDA - 1546.26 6779.30 6322.42 5676.46
Return on Net =¥ 11.11% 16.18% 19.61%
Worth

*Not annualised
Auditors qualifications which have not been given effect to in the financial statements

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in the Company’s Financial
Statements.

Summary of outstanding litigations

Amount Involved
(Rs.)

Number of
Outstanding
Case

Nature of Cases

Litigations Against/By

Petition for appointment 37,00,00,000/-**
of arbitrator at Punjab
and Haryana High Court

**Paid under protest to HUDA towards land cost enhancement compensation for Artemis Hospital

land at Sector 51, Gurugram and is being claimed from HUDA through Arbitration proceedings.

Please refer Part A of Chapter XII of this Information Memorandum on page 147 for details of
outstanding litigation and material developments of the Company.

Risk factors

Please refer chapter titled “Risk Factors™ in this Information Memorandum on page 16 for detailed
risks associated with the Company.

Suntmary of contingent liabilities

019 (R g 3
Consumer Cases 785.99 831.18 750.12
Service Tax Case - 2016.25 2016.25

11
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

[Asat
March
2018

Reimbursement of Expenses | Artemis Health Sciences 2.33 1.35

incurred on behalf of the Ltd. 0.07

Company

Reimbursement of Expenses | Artemis Health Sciences 2.32 0.32

incurred on behalf of the Foundation -

Company

Reimbursement of Expenses | Artemis Education & 38.96 | 43.34 50.80

incurred on behalf of the Research Foundation

Company

Reimbursement of Expenses | Artemis Cardiac Care 20.77 -

incurred on behalf of the Pvt Ltd -

Company

CSR Expenses Artemis Health Sciences 45.83 -
Foundation 8.42

Corporate Guarantee Fee Artemis Health Sciences 4.87 -
Ltd. 4.87

Loans & Advances Given Devlina Chakravarty - 25.00

Loans & Advances Given Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - 25.00

Recovery of Loans & Devlina Chakravarty 12.00 10.00

Advances 12.00

Recovery of Loans & Sanjiv Kumar Kothari 6.00 7.00

Advances 6.00

Lease Expenses Artemis Global Life 48.14 42.84
Sciences Ltd 44.98

Lease Expenses Swaranganga 12.20 364.75
Consultants P Ltd 262.19

Lease Expenses Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - 48.00

Investment in Subsidiary Artemis Cardiac Care 6.50 -
Pvt Ltd. -

Candidature Fees Taken Artemis Health Sciences - 1.00
Ltd. -

Sale of Services / License Total Transaction 886.91 520.06 176.35

Total Transactions

Transactions in excess of Apollo Tyres Ltd. 845.94 437.18 142.38

10%

Purchase of services / goods | Apollo Tyres Ltd. 7.08 7.08 6.90

Purchase of services / goods | Devarchana Rana 6.20 | 6.00 2.56

Purchase of services Bespoke Tours & - - 16.07
Travels Ltd.

Purchase of services / goods | Z & A Medical Tourism - 85.38 33.02
Pte Ltd.

Purchase of services / goods | Premedium 49.48 - 1.00
Pharmaceuticals Pvt Ltd

/
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Particulars I Name of Concern | Asat As at

March | March

1 L , AL201300 0 P2 (1 7N
Donation Paid Artemis Education & 40.00 | 40.00 51.00
Research Foundation
Donation Paid Artemis Health Sciences 2.74 - -
Foundation
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Onkar S Kanwar 1.40 1.20 0.60
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Neeraj Singh Kanwar 0.80 | 1.60 0.90
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Shalini Kanwar Chand 2.60 |2.60 1.00
Directors' Sitting Fees paid P.N. Wahal - - 1.10
Directors' Sitting Fees paid S, Narayan 2.80 1.80 1.20
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Sanjaya Baru 1.00 | 0.60 1.70
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Naveen Kapur - - 0.40
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Nirmal K. Ganguly 0.80 1.20 0.70
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Saurabh Srivastav 040 |- -
Directors' Sitting Fees paid Akshay Kumar 240 220 -
Key management personnel- | Devlina Chakravarty 459.77 403.59 258.99
Compensation
Key management personnel- | Sanjiv Kumar Kothari 73.15 55.89 51.69
Compensation
Key management personnel- | Rakesh Kaushik 27.50 - -
Compensation
Key management personnel- | Navneet Goel 64.93 35.73 28.77
Compensation
Defined benefit obligation Post-employment 52.01 47.48 38.95
benefits
Defined benefit obligation Short-term benefits 23.30 | 20.60 29.03
Defined benefit obligation Total compensation 75.31 68.08 67.98
Corporate Guarantee taken Artemis Health Sciences - - 5,000.00
Limited

Details of all financing arrangements whereby the promoters, members of the promoter group, the
directors of the company which is a promoter of the issuer, the directors of the issuer and their
relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of the issuer other than in the
normal course of the business of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately
preceding the date of this offer document/offer document.

Not Applicable

Weighted average price at which specified security was acguired by each of the promoters and selling
shareholders in the last one year.

Not Applicable
Average cost of acquisition of shares for promoter and selling shareholders.

The average cost of acquisition per equity share of the promoters is not applicable as shares were
allotted pursuant to the Composite Scheme.
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Size of the pre-IPO placement and allottees, upon completion of the placement

Not Applicable

Any issuances of equily shares made in the last one year for consideration other than cash.
Not Applicable

Any split/consolidation of equity shares in the last one year.

Not Applicable
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RISK FACTORS

This Information Memorandum contains certain forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties.

Prospective Investors should carefully consider the following risk factors as well as other information included
in this Information Memorandum Document prior to making any decision as to whether or not to invest in the
Equity Shares.

The risks described below and any additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or
that currently are deemed immaterial could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition,
liquidity, results of operations and capital resources. As a result, the trading price of the Equity Shares could
decline and investors may lose part or all of their investment.

Prospective investors should pay particular attention to the fact that we are an Indian company and are subject
to a legal and regulatory environment which may differ in certain respects from that of other countries.

Risks Relating to the Business of the Company

The Company is highly dependent on the doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals and the
Company’s business and financial results could be harmed if the Company is not able to attract and retain
such doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals.

The Company’s operations depend on the efforts, ability and experience of its employees and the doctors and
medical staff at Artemis hospital. The Company’s performance and the execution of its business strategy
depend substantially on its ability to attract and retain leading doctors and other healthcare professionals in a
particular specialty or in a region relevant to the Company’s growth plans. We compete with other healthcare
services providers in recruiting and retaining these doctors and other healthcare professionals.

The factors that doctors consider important before deciding where they will work include the level of
compensation, the reputation of the hospital and its owner, the quality of the facilities, research opportunities
and community relations. The Company may not compare favorably with other healthcare services providers
on these factors. Many of these healthcare professionals are well-known personalities in their fields and
regions with large patient bases and referral networks, and it may be difficult to negotiate favorable terms and
arrangements with them. In some of the Company’s markets, doctor recruitment and retention is also affected
by a shortage of doctors in certain specialties such as nephrology, physiatrist, optometry and ophthalmology.

If the Company is unable to attract or retain doctors, nurses or other medical personnel as required, the
Company may not be able to maintain the quality of its services and it could be forced to admit fewer patients
to its hospital, thereby having a material adverse effect on its business, financial position and results of
operations. The Company has also incurred increased costs to retain and recruit medical personnel and the
Company expects such costs to continue to increase in the future.

If the Company is unable to increase the ArtemisHospital’s occupancy rates, the Company may not be able
to generate adequate returns on its capital expenditures, which could materially adversely affect the
Company’s operating efficiencies and its profitability.

The Company has invested and continues to invest a significant amount of capital expenditures in creating bed
capacity and expansion of hospital. The Company has also introduced new technologies, modernized its
facilities and expanded its range of services.

The Company intends to focus on improving occupancy rates. Improving occupancy rates at hospitals is highly

dependent on brand recognition, wider acceptance in the communities in which it operates, its ability to attract
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and retain well-known and respected doctors, its ability to develop super-specialty practices and its ability to
compete effectively with other hospitals and clinics.

Rapid technological obsolescence, technological failures, inability to identify and understand evolving
technological advancements and other challenges related fo the Company’s medical equipment could
adversely affect its business.

The Company uses sophisticated and expensive medical equipment in its hospitals to provide its services. The
healthcare services industry is characterized by frequent product improvements and evolving technology,
which could, at times, lead to earlier than planned redundancy of the Company medical equipment and result
in asset impairment charges. The purchase and replacement of some of these equipment may involve
significant costs, and may expose the Company to currency fluctuation risk, as such equipment are imported
from other countries. In addition, because of the high costs of such medical equipment, Company may not
maintain back-up equipment, and, therefore, even though Company generally obtain warranties for its
equipment, if such equipment is damaged or breaks down, the Company’s ability to provide services to
patients may be impaired, which could adversely affect the Company business. The Company’s success in the
future will depend significantly on its ability to take advantage of and adapt to technological developments to
compete with other healthcare services providers. Company failure to understand, anticipate or respond
adequately to evolving medical technologies, market demands or client healthcare requirements may cause
adverse effects on business and reduce competitiveness and market share. The Company is required to
continue incurring expenditure on medical equipment’s introduction and upkeep in line with their expected
life.

The Company faces competition from other hospitals, stand-alone pharmacies and healthcare services
providers. Any adverse effects on the Company’s competitive position could result in a decline in its
revenues, profitability and market share.

The healthcare services business, including the hospital and stand-alone pharmacy businesses, is competitive
and competition for patients and customers among hospitals, stand-alone pharmacies and other healthcare
services providers has intensified in recent years. In some cases, competing hospitals are more established than
the hospitals owned by the Company. Some of the hospitals that compete with are owned or operated by tax-
supported governmental bodies or by private not-for-profit entities supported by endowments and charitable
contributions which can finance capital expenditures on a tax-exempt basis. In some of these markets,
Company also faces competition from other healthcare services providers such as stand-alone laboratories,
orthopedic, oncology, radiology and imaging centers. Company may also face competition from the foreign
healthcare chain industry which may begin providing services in India in the future. New or existing
competitors may price their services at a significant discount to Company prices or offer better services or
amenities than us. Smaller hospitals, stand-alone clinics and other hospitals may exert pricing pressure on
some or all of the Company’s services and also compete for doctors and other medical professionals. Some of
Company competitors may also have plans to expand their hospital networks, which may exert further pricing
and recruiting pressure on Company. If Company is forced to reduce the price of the services offered by its
hospitals or are unable to attract patients, doctors or other healthcare professionals, Company’s business,
revenues, profitability and market share may be adversely affected and in turn adversely impact the Company.

The Company’s arrangements with some of its doctors may give rise to conflicts of interest and time-
allocation constraints, adversely affecting the Company’s operations.

The Company contracts and other arrangements with some of the visiting doctors permit them to maintain their
own private practices, as well as positions, at other hospitals. Some of these doctors may also have Information
Memorandum 13 admitting privileges at other hospitals in addition to Artemis Hospital. Certain of the senior
doctors may also maintain positions at local clinics or affiliations with teaching hospitals. These arrangements
may give rise to conflicts of interest, including with regard to how these doctors allocate their time and other
resources batween Artemis Hospital and other clinics or hospitals at which they work and where doctors refer
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patients. Such conflicts may prevent Company from providing a high quality of service at Artemis Hospital
and adversely affect the level of patient intake.

The existing operations and execution of Company’s business strategy requires substantial capital resources
and Company intend to incur additional debt in the future, including as part of its expansion plans. However,
Company may be unable to obtain sufficient financing on terms satisfactory to Company, or at all. If interest
rates increase it will be more difficult to obtain credit. As a result, Company development activities may have
to be curtailed or eliminated and Company financial results may be adversely affected. Company level of
indebtedness and debt service obligations could have important consequences, including the following:

The terms of Company existing debt obligations contain numerous financial and other restrictive covenants
which, among other things, require Company to maintain certain financial ratios and comply with certain
reporting requirements and restrict any changes in controlling interest or restrict the Company’s ability to make
capital expenditures and investments, raise additional capital by way of equity or debt offerings, declare
dividends, merge with other entities, incur further indebtedness and incur, or dispose of, liens on the
Company’s assets, sell assets, undertake new projects, change the Company’s management and Board of
Directors, allow any Director who has been identified as a willful defaulter, materially amend or terminate any
material contract or document and modify the Company’s capital structure. If Company does not comply with
these obligations, it may cause an event of default, which, if not cured or waived, could require Company to
repay the indebtedness immediately.

A default under one financing document may also trigger cross-defaults under Company other financing
documents. An event of default, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of all or part of
Company financial indebtedness or other obligations.

Company may be more vulnerable in the event of downturns in the Company’s businesses and to general
adverse economic and industry conditions.

If Company has difficulty obtaining additional financing at favorable interest rates, Company may face
difficulties in meeting the Company’s requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
general corporate purposes or other purposes.

Company may be required to dedicate a significant portion of its operating cash flow to making periodic
principal and interest payments on its debt, thereby limiting its ability to take advantage of significant business
opportunities and placing it at a competitive disadvantage compared to healthcare services providers who have
relatively less debt.

Heavy dependence on the Company’s senior management team, and loss of the services of one or more of
key executives or a significant portion of local management personnel could weaken the Company’s
management team and adversely affect Company’s financial condition and prospects.

The Company is heavily dependent on members of its senior management team, including certain employees
who have been with Company since past many years, to manage its current operations. Company’s success and
ability to meet future business challenges largely depends on the skills, experience and efforts of members of
its senior management team and on the efforts, ability and experience of key members of the Company’s local
management staff.

The loss of services of one or more members of its senior management team or of a significant portion of any
of its local management staff could weaken significantly its management expertise and its ability to deliver
healthcare services efficiently or continue managing or expanding its business.

If Company is unable to identify expansion opportunities or experience delays or other problems in
implementing expansion projects, growth, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations of
Company may be adversely affected.
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The growth depends on Company ability to develop, acquire and manage additional hospitals and also expand
and improve the existing hospital facilities. the Company has certain projects under development and are
continuously evaluating other projects, including acquisition opportunities

The Company may not be able to identify suitable greenfield sites for new hospitals, acquisition or hospital
management opportunities or opportunities for expanding capacity at the Company’s existing hospital
facilities. The number of attractive expansion opportunities may be limited and may command high valuations.
The Company may be unable to secure the necessary financing or negotiate attractive terms to implement
expansion projects.

Any new project the Company undertakes could be subject to a number of risks. The Company may face
challenges while building new hospitals or renovating, rebuilding or repositioning existing hospitals. The
Company may also be unable to effectively integrate new facilities with its current operations. Undertaking
new hospital projects requires significant managerial and financial resources and Company may face
difficulties in recruiting and retaining an adequate pool of doctors, nurses and other medical personnel for its
new projects. The costs and time required to integrate the new hospitals with Company’s existing business
could cause an interruption or a loss of momentum in its business activities. All of these factors may adversely
affect Company’s business and growth prospects.

Company’s ability to build and operate new hospital projects is subject to various factors that may involve
delays or problems, including the failure to receive or renew regulatory approvals, constraints on human and
capital resources, the unavailability of equipment or supplies or other reasons, events or circumstances.
Company’s projects may incur significant cost overruns and may not be completed on time or at all.

New hospital projects are characterized by long gestation periods and substantial capital expenditures.
Company’s may not achieve the operating levels that the Company expects from future projects and it may not
be able to achieve its targeted return on investment on, or intended benefits or operating synergies from, these
projects. Potential title uncertainties regarding the lands on which potential acquisition targets and
management contracts opportunities are or may be located, including related litigation, may also cause delays
in, and may otherwise curtail, its expansion plans.

In view of the highly competitive nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the Company may
have to revise its management estimates from time to time and consequently its funding requirements may also
change. This may result in the rescheduling of its proposed project expenditure and an increase or decrease in
its proposed expenditure for a particular project. Any unanticipated increase in expansion costs could adversely
affect its cost estimates and its ability to implement its expansion plans as proposed.

Company may have difficulty in effectively integrating future acquisitions and - into ongoing operations.

The competition to acquire hospitals that Company targets is significant, and the Company may not be able to
consummate such transactions on terms favorable to it if other healthcare services companies, including those
with greater financial resources than it, are competing for the same target businesses. In order to consummate
such acquisitions, or consolidations, Company may be required to incur or assume additional indebtedness.
Company may not be able to obtain financing, if necessary, for any acquisitions or may make or may be
required to borrow at higher rates and on less favorable terms. Additionally, Company may not be able to
effectively integrate the facilities that Company acquires or may experience difficulties arising from
coordinating and consolidating corporate and administrative functions, including integration of internal
controls and procedures with its ongoing operations. A failure to successfully integrate an acquired business or
inability to realize the anticipated benefits of such joint venture or acquisition could adversely affect
Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Acquired businesses may have unknown or contingent liabilities, including liabilities for failure to comply
with healthcare laws and regulations, and Company may become liable for the past activities of such
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businesses. Although Company has policies in place to ensure that the practices of newly acquired facilities
conform to Company standards, and generally will seek indemnification from prospective sellers covering
these matters, Company may become liable for past activities of any acquired business.

Certain cities in India require prior approval for the purchase, construction and expansion of healthcare
facilities. The failure to obtain any required approval or the failure to maintain a required license could impair
Company’s ability to operate or expand operations in any city.

The Company is exposed to legal claims and regulatory actions arising from the provision of healthcare
services that, if adversely determined against the Company or its joint ventures, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial position or results of operations.

From time to time, the Company may be subject to litigation alleging, among other things, medical negligence
by Company’s doctors and other healthcare professionals and product negligence and product liability for
medical devices at Artemis Hospital use or pharmaceuticals dispensed. Further, The Company could also be
the subject of complaints from patients who are dissatisfied with the quality and cost of healthcare services.

The results of these claims and lawsuits cannot be predicted, and it is possible that the ultimate resolution of
these legal claims and regulatory actions, individually or in the aggregate, may have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s business both in the near and long term, financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. Although the Company may defend itself vigorously against claims and lawsuits, these matters could:

o require the Company to pay substantial damages or amounts in judgments or settlements, which
individually or in the aggregate could exceed amounts, if any, that may be recovered under the
Company’s insurance policies where coverage applies and is available;

° harm reputation and the goodwill associated with the Company’s brand;

o cause the Company to incur substantial expenses and/or substantial increases in the Company’s
insurance premiums;

o require significant time and attention from the Company’s management; and

. require the Company to incur debt to finance any damages or amounts in judgment or settlement.

. If any of the Company’s future cases are not resolved in the Company’s favor, and if the insurance

coverage or any applicable indemnity is insufficient to cover the damages awarded, the Company may
be required to make substantial payments or modify or restrict its operations, which could have an
adverse impact on the Company’s reputation and competitive position, as well as the Company’s
business and financial results.

As of 20™ October, 2019, AMSL is handling 30 (Thirty) legal claims/recovery/actions including various claims
in relation to alleged medical negligence. Further, contingent liabilities as referred in the notes to accounts of
the financial statements of AMSL and corresponding management reply may also be referred to estimate
AMSL’s liabilities. Further an amount of Rs. 37.00 Crores (paid under protest to HUDA towards land cost
enhancement compensation for Artemis Hospital land) is being claimed from HUDA through Arbitration
proceedings.

If Company is exposed to claims exceeding the scope of Company’s insurance coverage or that are not covered
by Company’s insurance policies or if Company’s insurance costs increase, and if Company’s doctors are
unable to obtain appropriate insurance coverage, Company’s and the Company’s liquidity, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected.
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Company may be subject to liabilities arising from the risks of hospital management, including liabilities
from claims of medical negligence against Company’s doctors and other healthcare professionals, which
may adversely affect Company and the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or cash

flow.

Company maintains professional liability and general liability insurance coverage to cover certain claims
arising out of the operations of Artemis Hospital.

Some of the claims, however, could exceed the scope of the coverage in effect or coverage of particular claims
could be denied. Company also provide services to projects located outside of India. Claims under the laws in
such foreign countries may expose Company to far greater liability than would be the case in India, and
Company may not have adequate insurance to cover such liability. Company believes that its professional and
other liability insurance has been adequate in the past but there can be no assurance that its insurance coverage
will be sufficient to cover all future claims, If the arrangements for insurance or indemnification are not
adequate to cover claims, Company may be required to make substantial payments and the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

In addition, some doctors, including those who practice at Artemis Hospital, face increase in malpractice
insurance premiums and limitations on availability of insurance coverage. The inability of doctors to obtain
appropriate insurance coverage could cause those doctors to limit their practice. That, in turn, could result in
lower admissions to Artemis Hospital.

All reinsurance and any excess insurance purchased by Company are subject to policy aggregate limitations.
Should such policy aggregates be partially or fully exhausted in the future, or if actual payments of claims
materially exceed projected estimates of claims, Company may be required to make substantial payments and
the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Compliance with applicable safety, health, environmental and other governmental regulations and any
violations of existing regulations may be costly and adversely affect Company business and results of
operations.

The healthcare services industry is subject to laws, rules and regulations in certain states in which Company
currently conducts its business or in which Company intends to expand its operations. Company is subject to
extensive international and local regulations relating, among other things, to:

o conduct of operations;

o addition of facilities and services;

o adequacy of medical care, including required ratios of nurses to hospital beds;

o quality of medical equipment and services;

° discharge of pollutants into the air and water and handling and disposal of bio-medical, radioactive and
other hazardous waste;

e qualifications of medical and support personnel;

° confidentiality, maintenance and security issues associated with health-related information and
medical records; and

o the screening, stabilization and transfer of patients who have emergency medical conditions.

Safety, health and environmental laws and regulations in India are stringent and it is possible that the evolving
regulatory environment in India may lead to significantly more stringent healthcare laws and regulations in the
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future. To comply with these requirements, Company may have to incur substantial operating costs and/or
capital expenditure in the future.

Further, if a determination is made that Company is in violation of such laws, rules or regulations, including
conditions in the permits required for its operations, Company may have to pay fines, modify or discontinue its
operations, incur additional operating costs or make capital expenditures and Company’s and the Company’s
business, financial position, results of o perations or cash flows could be adversely affected.

Any public interest or class action legal proceedings related to such safety, health or environmental matters
could also result in the imposition of financial or other obligations on Company. Any such costs could
adversely affect Company’s competitive position and results of operations. In addition, regulation is constantly
changing and the Company is unable to predict the future course of international and local regulation. Further
changes in the regulatory framework affecting healthcare services providers could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Company’s operations could be impaired by a Jailure of Company’s information technology systems.

Company’s information technology systems are essential to a number of critical areas of its business
operations, including:

o accounting and financial reporting;

. coding and compliance;

s clinical systems;

° medical records and document storage;

° inventory management;

. negotiating, pricing and administering healthcare delivery contracts;
° training programs; and

o research services.

Any technical failure that causes an interruption in service or availability of systems could adversely affect
operations or delay the collection of revenue or cause interruptions in the Company’s ability to provide
services to patients. Corruption of certain information could also lead to delayed or inaccurate diagnoses in the
treatment of patients and could result in damage to the health of patients. In addition, Company may be subject
to liability as a result of any theft or misuse of personal information stored on its systems. Although Company
has implemented network security measures, its servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, hacking, break-ins
and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering. The occurrence of any of these events could result in
interruptions, delays, the loss or corruption of data, or cessations in the availability of systems, all of which
could have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations and harm the Company’s
business reputation.

Challenges that affect the healthcare industry and other external JSactors also have an effect on operations.

The Company is impacted by the challenges currently facing the healthcare industry as a whole. The Company
believes that the key ongoing industry-wide challenges are providing quality patient care in a competitive
environment and managing costs.
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In addition, the business and results of operations are also affected by other factors that affect the entire
industry, including: technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or
reduce the demand for, healthcare; general economic and business conditions, both nationally and regionally;
demographic changes; and changes in the distribution process or other factors that increase the cost of supplies.

In particular, the patient volumes and net operating revenues at the Artemis Hospital and related healthcare
facilities are subject to economic and seasonal variations caused by a number of factors, including, but not
limited to:

. unemployment levels;

° the business environment of local communities;

o the number of uninsured and underinsured patients in local communities;
. seasonal cycles of illness;

° climate and weather conditions;

° vacation patterns and religious observance of both patients and doctors;
. healthcare services competitors;

° physician recruitment, retention attrition; and

° other factors relating to the timing of elective procedures.

Any failure by Company to effectively face these challenges could have a material adverse effect on results of
operations of the Company.

The Company has limited protection of the Company ’s intellectual property.

Company has registered/filed the trademark of “ARTEMIS” and various designs/logo/label of the Company
and Artemis Hospital

Unauthorized use of the brand name or logo could adversely affect the Company’s reputation, which could in
turn adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations. Intellectual property rights and
the Company’s ability to enforce them may be unavailable or limited in some circumstances. In addition, trade
mark registration applications may not be allowed or competitors may challenge the validity of the Company’s
trade mark registrations. 1f the Company fails to successfully obtain or enforce intellectual property rights, the
Company’s competitive position and operating results could be adversely affected.

If Company loses or fails to renew accreditation from JCI and NABH for Artemis Hospital, Gurugram and/or
if Company lose accreditation or does not receive re-accreditation of its hospitals by JCI and/or NABH or is
refused accreditation of the Artemis Hospital, the Company’s reputation and business operations could be
adversely affected.

Risks Relating to Investments in Indian Companies

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause the Company ’s businesses to suffer.

The Company currently operates primarily in the domestic Indian market, and its performance is intertwined
with the overall economy, the gross domestic product growth rate and the economic cycle in India. A
substantial portion of assets and employees of the Company is located in India, and the Company intends to
continue to develop and expand the Company’s facilities in India.

22




Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

The Company’s performance and the growth of business is dependent on the performance of the Indian
economy and the economies of the regional markets they currently serve. These economies could be adversely
affected by various factors, such as political and regulatory changes including adverse changes in liberalization
policies, social disturbances, religious or communal tensions, terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war,
natural calamities, interest rates, commodity and energy prices and various other factors. Any slowdown in
these economies could adversely affect the ability of patients to afford healthcare services provided by
Company, which in turn would adversely impact the Company’s business and financial performance and the
price of the Equity Shares.

The Company’s ability to raise foreign capital may be constrained by Indian law.

As an Indian company, the Company is subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign
currencies. Such regulatory restrictions limit the Company’s financing sources and hence could constrain the
Company’s ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing indebtedness. The
limitations on foreign debt may have an adverse effect on the business growth, financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect business and the
trading price of the Equity Shares could decrease.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrests like community agitation and other acts of violence or war in India and around
the region may adversely affect worldwide financial markets and result in a loss of consumer confidence and
ultimately adversely affect the Company’s business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
Political tensions could create a perception that an investment in Indian companies involves higher degrees of
risk and on the business and price of the Equity Shares.

Natural disasters could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and harm the Company’s business.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods and drought in the past few
years. The extent and severity of these natural disasters determines their impact on the Indian economy. The
erratic progress of a monsoon would also adversely affect sowing operations for certain crops. Further
prolonged spells of below normal rainfall or other natural calamities in the future could have a negative impact
on the Indian economy, adversely affecting the Company’s business and the price of the Equity Shares.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative impact on
the Company’s business

Any adverse revision to India ‘s credit rating for domestic and international debt by international rating
agencies may adversely impact the Company’s ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and
other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on
the Company’s financial performance, cash flows, results of operations and future financial performance and
the Company’s ability to obtain financing to fund the Company’s growth on favorable terms or at all, as well
as the trading price of the Equity Shares.

If inflation were to rise in India, the Company may be unable to reduce its costs and the Company’s profits
might decline.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
Increasing inflation in India could cause a rise in the price of transportation, wages, raw material, equipment
and other expenses, and the Company may be unable to reduce its costs, and the results of operations, cash
flows and financial conditions of the Company may therefore be adversely affected.
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The profitability of Company will decrease if the Indian Government reduces or withdraws tax benefits and
other incentives that it currently provides or regulates pricing.

If the Government regulates price or reduce or withdraw any incentive or benefits it presently provides than the
profitability of the Company may be adversely affected.

Risks Relating to the Equity Shares

Fluctuations in operating results and other factors may cause the market prices of the Equity Shares to
decline.

The stock markets have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading prices
of the Equity Shares.

There may be significant volatility in the market prices of the Equity Shares. If the Company is unable to
operate its hospitals or stand-alone pharmacies as profitably as the Company has in the past, investors could
sell the Equity Shares when it becomes apparent that the expectations of the market may not be realized,
resulting in a decline in the market prices of the Equity Shares.

In addition to the Company’s operating results, the operating results of other hospital companies, changes in
financial estimates or recommendations by analysts, changes in government healthcare programs,
governmental investigations and litigation, speculation in the press or investment community, the possible
effects of war, terrorist and other hostilities, adverse weather conditions, the level of seasonal illnesses,
changes in general conditions in the economy or the financial markets, or other developments affecting the
healthcare industry, could cause the market prices of the Equity Shares to fluctuate substantially or decline.

The Company may decide to retain all of its earnings to finance the development and expansion of its
business and, therefore, may not declare dividends on Equity Shares.

Whether the Company will pay dividends in the future and the amount of any such dividends, if declared, will
depend on a number of factors, including the Company’s future earnings, financial condition, cash flows,
working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other factors considered relevant by the Board of
Directors and shareholders. The Company may decide to retain all of the Company’s earnings to finance the
development and expansion of its business and, therefore, may not declare dividends on Equity Shares. The
Company’s ability to pay dividends may also be restricted under certain financing arrangements that the
Company has and may enter into. There can be no assurance that the Company will, or have the ability to,

declare and pay any dividends on the Equity Shares at any point in the future.

Rights of shareholders under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions.

The Atticles of Association and Indian law govern the Company’s corporate affairs. Legal principles relating
to these matters and the validity of corporate procedures, director’s fiduciary duties and liabilities, and
sharcholder’s rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. The
shareholder’s rights under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholder’s rights under the laws of other
countries or jurisdictions. The investors may have more difficulty in asserting its rights as a shareholder of an
Indian company than as a shareholder of a corporation in another jurisdiction.

The Company cannot guarantee that the Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges in a timely

manner or at all, and any trading closure at the BSE or the NSE may adverse effect the trading price of the
Equity Shares.
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Approval for listing and trading will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of the Equity
Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges.
Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict the Investors ability to dispose of the Equity
Shares,

The regulation and monitoring of Indian securities markets and the activities of investors, brokers and other
participants differ, in some cases significantly, from those in Europe and USA. A closure of, or trading
stoppage on, the BSE or the NSE could adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. Historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the future.

There are restrictions on daily movements in the price of the Equity Shares, which may adversely affect a
holder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular point in time.

On listing of Equity Shares, the Company would be subject to a daily circuit breaker imposed by all Stock
Exchanges, which will not allow transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity
Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers generally
imposed by SEBI on Indian stock exchanges. The maximum movement allowed in the price of the Equity
Shares before the circuit breaker is triggered is determined by the Stock Exchanges based on the historical
volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares.

The Stock Exchanges would not inform the Company of the triggering point of the circuit breaker in effect
from time to time, and may change it without the Company’s knowledge. This circuit breaker limits the
upward and downward movements in the price of the Equity Shares. As a result of this circuit breaker, no
assurance may be given regarding the Investors ability to sell Equity Shares or the price at which the investor
may be able to sell the Equity Shares at any particular time.

PROMINENT NOTES

* The Company has allotted on October 26, 2019 an aggregate of 1,32,37,700 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each to shareholders of AGLSL (as on the record date October 25, 2019) pursuant to the
Scheme approved by NCLT Delhi, vide its order dated September 30, 2019.

* The Company’s net worth was Rs. 18,604.73 Lakhs (Standalone Basis) as per the audited financial
statements as on March 31, 2019 and Rs 16,564.82 Lakhs as per audited financial statements as on
March, 31 2018

* The book value per Equity Share was Rs. 88.45 (Standalone Basis) as per the audited Financial
Statements as on March 30, 2019 and Rs 78.75 as per audited financial statements as on March, 31 2018.

*  Except as stated in the part G of Section X of this Information Memorandum at page number 93, none of
the Group Companies have any business or other interest in the Company.

*  For details of related party transactions entered into by the Company with the Group Companies during
the last year, the nature of transactions and the cumulative value of transactions, please refer to page
number 11.

*  The Company was incorporated as a public limited company under the Indian Companies Act, 1956, in
the name of Artemis Medicare Services Private Limited, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated
May 18, 2004, bearing registration number U85110DL2004PTC126414 and subsequently was converted
into a Public Limited Company on October 5, 2009 by the ROC, National Capital Territory of Delhi &
Haryana.

* The Company was originally incorporated with the object of providing medical facilities and human
healthcare activities.
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VL INTRODUCTION

A.

Summary of Issue

A joint application for Composite Scheme was presented under sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of Companies Act, to the NCLT, Delhi, for the merger of AHSL, AEL and
AGLSL with the Company on 28" September 2018.

The Composite Scheme is divided into two crucial parts to occur sequentially:

a) Firstly, Part IT of the Composite Scheme (relating to amalgamation of AHSL, AEL with AGLSL),
to take effect, prior to merger under Part 111 of the Composite Scheme;

b) Subsequently, Part 1T of the Composite Scheme (relating to amalgamation of AGLSL with
AMSL, shall be deemed to have taken effect, after Part II of the Composite Scheme.

Merger under Part 1T of the Composite Scheme does not entail any share issuance, as there would be a
cancellation of shares held by AGLSL directly in AHSL and indirectly in AEL (through AHSL). In the
merger under the Part 111 of the Composite Scheme, as a consideration for the reverse merger the
Company would issue and allot equity shares at par on a proportionate basis to each shareholder of
AGLSL whose name is recorded in the register of members of the Company on record date in the ratio
of 1:5 i.e. 1 (one) equity shares of Rs. 10/ each of the Company to be issued for every 5 (five) equity
share of Rs. 2/- each of AGLSL held by the shareholder(s) of AGLSL (“Share Exchange Ratio™).

The NCLT, Delhi vide its order dated September 30, 2019 has sanctioned the Composite Scheme, and
the Composite Scheme has been made effective from 14" October 2019. In terms of the Composite
Scheme, the Company issued and allotted 13,23 7,700 Equity Shares to shareholders of AGLSL on the
record date as per the Share Exchange Ratio.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Composite Scheme, the Equity Shares of the
Company issued to the shareholders of AGLSL (as on 25" October 2019 being the record date) shall
be listed and admitted to trading on the BSE and NSE. Such listing and admission for trading is not
automatic and will be subject to fulfilment by the Company of listing criteria of BSE and NSE for such
issues and also subject to such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by BSE and NSE at the
time of the application by the Company seeking listing.
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B. Summary of Financial Information
Balance Sheet (Standalone) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Ason
Particulars
30/06/2019 | 31/03/2019 | 31/03/2018 | 31/03/2017 31/03/2016 | 31/03/2015
EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES
1 | Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2103.50 2103.50 2,103.50 2,103.50 2,103.50 2,103.50
Reserves and Surplus 23521.06 | 23069.04 | 21,002.02 18,322.12 | 16,286.96 | 13,463.66
Non-current 4 — ~n
2 {iaksilitias 10,091.21 8,440.35 7,331.67 8433.88 5612.22 6288.22
3 | Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 6991.20 7,369.55 6,745.74 6160.78 5514.67 5233.11
Other Current
- ’ 2 (‘ .
Liabilities 9505 27 9965.30 8,002.11 7208.84 4946.03 6027.62
TOTAL 52212.24 50947.74 45185.04 42229.12 34463.38 33116.11
ASSETS
1 | Non-current Assets 41202.12 39854.38 | 36,452.90 | 33402.54 26825.52 25732.11
Non-current -
2 - - = = -
Investments
3 | Current Assets
Cashand Cash 9334 | 112530 | 121795 | 95422 | 59834 | 238153
Equivalents
Other Current Assets 10416.78 9967.97 7,514.21 7872.36 7039.52 5002.47
TOTAL 52212.24 50947.74 | 45,185.04 | 42,229.12 | 34,463.38 33,116.11
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the Financial Year

Particulars

30/06/2019 | 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 13570.76 | 54,650.09 | 50,277.13 | 45,899.55 | 40,179.45 36,736.95
Other Income 56.40 391.91 390.76 513.01 538.37 348.85
Total Revenue 13,627.16 | 55,042.00 | 50,667.89 | 46,412.56 40,717.82 | 37,085.80
Expenses 12,950.91 | 51,358.82 | 47,121.13 | 43,172.94 37976.41 | 34977.92
Total Expenses 12,950.91 | 51,358.82 | 47,121.13 43,172.94 | 37,976.41 | 34,977.92
Profit Before Tax 676.25 3,683.18 3,546.76 3,239.62 2,741.41 2,107.88
Tax Expenses:
For the current year 224.22 1,616.16 869.74 532.94 577.03 250.09
Profit After Tax 452.03 2,067.02 2,677.02 2,706.68 2,164.38 1,857.79
No of Shares (in Lakh) 210.35 210.35 210.35 210.35 210.35 210.35
Face Value per Share (INR) 10 10 10 10 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS (INR) -* 9.87 12.73 12.87 10.29 8.83

*Not Annnalized
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

30/06/2019

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

A

Cash Flow from operating
activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before
tax and extraordinary items
and interest

690.41

3,739.82

3,546.76

3,239.62

2,741.42

2,107.88

Operating Profit before
Working Capital Changes

690.41

3,739.82

3,546.76

3,239.62

2,741.42

2,107.88

Adjustment for :

Depreciation

541.47

1,992.29

1,847.08

1,515.85

1,238.84

1,242.71

Other Items of Profit &
Loss Account

218.36

618.64

(484.56)

656.62

233.66

1,055.83

(Increase) / Decrease in
assets & liabilities

47.25

(1294.06)

2,371.07

512.92

(2,138.3)

989.67

Cash generated from
operations

1,497.48

5,056.69

7,280.35

5,925.02

2,075.57

5,396.09

Effect of exchange diff on
cash & cash equivalents
held in Forex

1.22

Direct Taxes Paid/ Refund

(1178.64)

(986.27)

(89.60)

(130.88)

(26.20)

(116.81)

Net cash from operating
activities

318.84

4,070.42

7,190.75

5,794.14

2,049.37

5,280.50

Net cash from Investing
activities

(386.61)

(4965.83)

(6657.04)

(1416.98)

(1010.24)

(7394.39)

Net cash from Financing
activities

(516.29)

1,436.64

(966.86)

1,938.94

(2,429.75)

(3,540.88)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in
Cash & Cash Equivalents

(584.06)

541.23

(433.15)

338.70

(1,797.36)

Effect of exchange diff on
cash & cash equivalents
held in Forex

Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Opening)

8§11.00

269.78

702.96

364.26

2,161.62

Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Closing)

226.93

811.00

269.81

702.96

364.26

2,161.62
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VIL GENERAL INFORMATION
A. Details of the Company

The Company was incorporated as a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, in the
name of Artemis Medicare Services Private Limited pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated
May 18, 2004 bearing registration number U85110DL2004PTC126414 and subsequently was
converted into a Public Limited Company on October 5, 2009 by the ROC, National Capital Territory
of Delhi & Haryana

U85110DL2004PLC126414

ROC, National Capital Territory of Delhi

Plot No. 14, Sector 20, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

| Artemis Hospital, Sector-51, Gurugram-122001

s | (Haryana)

B. Board of Directors
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is as follows:

| Designation || Address

1. Mr. Onkar S Kanwar* Chairman and |H. No. 3/3, Shanti
00058921 | Non-Executive | Niketan, New Delhi —
Director 110021
2. Ms. Shalini  Kanwar Non-Executive | 48 Coronation RD West
Chand 00015511 Director #01-02 Astrid Meadows
Singapore 269263 SG
3. Mr. Neeraj Kanwar Non-Executive | 5 Upper Belgrave Street
00058951 Director London SW1X8BD GB
4. Dr. Nirmal Kumar Non-Executive | 701, Gayatri Apartment,
Ganguly 02316154 Director GH-06, Sector-45,
Faridabad-121010,
Haryana
5, Dr. Devlina | 07107875 Whole Time | W-12, 2nd Floor, Kings
Chakravarty Director Court, Greater Kailash,
Part-2, South Delhi Delhi
110048
6. Mr. Akshay Kumar | 00010630 Independent | Shanti ~ Cottage No.2,
Narendrasinhji Director Narayan Dabholkar Road,
Chudasama Chandralok, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400006,
Mabharashtra
7. Dr. Sanjaya Baru 05344208 | Independent | D-44, Panchsheel
Director Enclave, New  Delhi-
110017
8. Dr. Subbaraman | 00094081 Independent | Flat No. 2B, Nithyasree
Narayan Director Apartments, 51, Chaimers
Road, Raja
Annamalaipuram,
- | Chennai- 600028
9. Mr. Ugar Sain Anand 02055913 Independent | B-1/239, Paschim Vihar,
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Director Delhi — 110063

10. Mr. Sunil Tandon 08342585 Independent | D-36, Saket, Malviya
Director Nagar, Delhi - 110017
*Mr. Onkar 8. Kanwar is also the Promoter of the Company

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Rakesh Kumar Kaushik

Artemis Hospital Sector-51,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana
Telephone number: 0124-480-7180
Fax number: 0124 -6767 701

rakesh kaushik@artemishospitals.com

Legal Advisors to Listing

Chitale Legal

5th Floor, Nirlon House,

Dr Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai - 400030

+91 22 40041010-15/66396833
satish.dinavahi@chitale.net

Registrar of the Issue, Share Transfer Agents & Depository Participant

Alankit Assignments Limited

Reg. Office- 1E/13, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110055
SEBI Registration No: INR000002532

Phone 011 - 42541234

Fax No. 011-42541201

info@alankit.com

www.alankit.com

Statutory Auditors

SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants

B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi - 110017
000235N/N500089

Ph No. 011-26499111, 222/444/5555
delhi@scvindia.com

Secretarial Auditor

Chandrasekaran Associates

Company Secretaries

11F, Pocket — IV, Mayur Vihar Phase - I,
Delhi — 110091, Tel. No. 011 — 22710514
www cacsindia.com

Change in Auditors in last 3 vears

The auditors of the Company are M/s SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN:
000235N/ N500089). The following changes in the auditors have been made during the last three
years.
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"~ Name | Datex tment | Date of Removal | Reasons for Removal |
M/s S.P. Puri & Co. 12° 014 SPP ceased to exist Merger of SPP with
Chartered Accountants, w.e.f01% April 2018 and into M/s SCV &
New Delhi Co., Chartered
(FRN:001152N) (“SPP™) Accountants, New
Delhi (FRN:000235N)
M/s SCV & Co., 25™ April 2018 to hold | On conclusion of 14 Expiry of tenure of
Chartered Accountants, | office till conclusion of | AGM which was held | appointment in Casual
New Delhi 14™ AGM which was on 03" August 2018 vacancy
(FRN:000235N) held on 03" August
2018
M/s SCV & Co. LLP, 3 August 2018 - -
Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi,
(FRN:000235N/N500089)

**Note: Members of the Company at their 10" AGM held on 12" September 2014 appointed SPP to
hold the office until the conclusion of the 15" AGM.

SPP informed the Company vide a letter dated 18™ April 2018 that consequent to a merger of SPP with
and into M/s SCV & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN:000235N), SPP ceased to exist
w.e.f. 01* April 2018 and thereafter a casual vacancy arose in the office of Auditor of the Company
which was filled by the Board of Directors on 25" April 2018 through the appointment of M/s SCV &
Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office till
the conclusion of 14" AGM which was to be conducted in year 2018.

Members of the Company at their 14" AGM held on 03™ August 2018 appointed M/s SCV & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi and now presently known as M/s SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi, (FRN:000235N/N500089) as Statutory Auditor for a period of three
consecutive years i.e, till the conclusion of 17" AGM of the Company.

Authority for Listing

The NCLT Delhi, vide its order dated September 30, 2019 approved the Composite Scheme and the Composite
Scheme has been made effective from October 14, 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of the Composite Scheme, the Equity Shares of the Company issued to the
shareholders of AGLSL (as on October 25, 2019, being the record date) shall be listed and admitted to trading
on the BSE and NSE. Such listing and admission for trading is not automatic and will be subject to fulfilment
by the Company of listing criteria of BSE and NSE for such issues and also subject to such other terms and
conditions as may be prescribed by BSE and NSE at the time of the application by the Company seeking
listing. The Company has determined BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange for this listing.

Eligibility Criteria
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There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria of SEBI ICDR Regulation do not
become applicable. The Company has received letter dated January 10, 2020granting exemption from
compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR under Rule 19(7) of SCRR from SEBI.

The Company has submitted the draft information memorandum and this Information Memorandum,
containing information about itself, making disclosures in line with the disclosure requirement for public
issues, as applicable to BSE and NSE for making this Information Memorandum available to public through
their websites viz. www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

The Company has made this Information Memorandum available on its website viz
www.artemishospitals.com The Company has on Januvary 15, 2020 published an advertisement in the
newspapers containing its details in line with the SEBI Circular with the details required as in terms of
Annexure A Part III(A) para 2(5) of the said circular. The advertisement specifically draws reference to the
availability of this Information Memorandum on the Company’s website.

General Disclaimer from the Company

The Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Information Memorandum
or in the advertisement published on January 15, 2020 in terms of Annexure A Part ITI(A) para 2(5) of the
SEBI Circular or any other material issued by or at the instance of the Company and anyone placing reliance
on any other source of information would be doing so at his or her own risk. All information shall be made
available by the Company to the public and investors at large and no selective or additional information would
be available for a section of the investors in any manner.
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VIIL CAPITAL STRUCTURE

A. Share Capital of the Company

Particutars Number of securities | Description of Securities Agpregate Value
J T e 3 o at Face value (Rs.)
Authorised Capital 7,00,50,000 (i) 6,95,50,000 70,05,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-

each and

(i) 50,000 preference
shares of Rs. 100/- each
Issued Share Capital 1,32,37,700 1,32,37,700 Equity 13,23,77,000
Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Subscribed Share Capital 1,32,37,700 1,32,37,700 Equity 13,23,77,000
Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Paid Up Share Capital 1,32,37,700 1,32,37,700 Equity 13,23,77.000
Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Changes in Authorised Share Capital since Incorporation of the Company

8 0 ANee et ] A 0 a D
02.02.2007 Increase in Authorized Share Capital from Rs. 1,00,000 to Rs. 25,00,00,000
14.10.2019 Increase in Authorized Share Capital from Rs. 25,00,00,000 to Rs.
70,05,00,000
B. Note to Capital Structuie

(a) The following table sets forth the history of the Equity Share Capital of the Company.

Date of Name of [No. of | Face lssue | Nature of Nature of Cumulati Cumulative | Cumu
Allolment  Alloles Equity Value | Price  Allotment | Consider |ve No of ' Paid-Up fative
shares {Rs.) (Rs,) ation Equity Capital (Rs.) | Securi

allotted Shares ty
Premi
um

22.11.2004 | Dr. 5,000 10 10 Subscripti | Banking | 5,000
Yogesh K. on of Channel
Trikha Memoran
dum
22.11.2004 | Ms.Rani | 5,000 10 10 Subscripti | Banking | 10,000 100000 0
Saxena on of Channel
Memoran
dum
26.03.2007 | Artemis 1,20,00,0 | 10 50 Right Banking | 1,20,10,0 1,20,10,000 | 48,00,
Health 00 Issue Channel | 00 00,00
Sciences 0
Private
Limited*
27.02.2008 | Artemis 60,00,000 | 10 50 Right Banking | 1,80,10,0 18,01,00,00 | 72,00,
Health Issue Channel | 00 0 00,00
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Sciences 0
Private
Limited

05.08.2011 | Artemis 30,25,000 | 10 140 Right Banking | 2,10,35,0 |21,03,50,00 1,11,3
Health issue Channel | 00 0 2,50,0
Sciences 00
Private
Limited

26.10.2019 | Sharehold 1,32,37,7 | 10 10 Pursuant | N.A 1,32,37,7 | 13,23,77,00 | NA
ers of 00 to the 00 0
AGLSL Composite

Scheme
*(The first subscribers of the Company transferred 9,999 Equity Shares to PTL Enterprises Limited on 10" October

2005 and on 22™ February 2006,

PTL Enterprises Limited transferred 9,999 shares to AHSL. Accordingly, from 22"

February 2006, AHSL became the holding company of the Company)

(b) Equity shares issued for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation reserves
Date of Date of Name of Face || Issue | Reasons forlssu¢ | Details of  benehits
ISstie Revaiuatio | allotee Valu | Prics accried  to  ihe
i of & (Rs.) Company out of the
ASsets (Rs) said issue
(c) Issue of Equity Shares in terms of the Compasite Scheme
Date of Issue Number  of  Shares | Details of Composite Scheme
issusd and allotted
26.10.2019 1,32,37,700 Upon the Composite Scheme becoming effective, from
October 14, 2019, the issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity Share capital of the Company consisting of
2,10,35,000 Equity Shares aggregating to Rs. 10/- was
cancelled and 13237700 Equity Shares were allotted to
equity shareholders of AGLSL. For further details of the
Composite Scheme, refer to Section IX on page 51 of
this Information Memorandum.
(d) Employee stack option scheme
Quarter Name of Employes | Aggregate number of | Price range
Stock Option Scheme  Equity Shares Issued
NA
(e) Issue of Equity Shares at price lower than issue price

Name of | Part

Allottee

of  Promoter Raasons for issue Price

Group
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() Shareholding Pattern

Shareholding Pattern Pre Composite Scheme of Amalgamation

Name of srteholders _ No. of shares held
Promaoters
Artemis Health Sciences Ltd 21,034,994 100 %
Sanjay Dua* 1 0%
Pradeep Kumar* 1 0%
Sanjay Mudgil* 1 0%
G G Gupta* 1 0%
Gorav Arora* 1 0%
Davendra Mittal* 1 0%
Total 2,10,35,000 100%
Public 0 o
Total 2,10,35,000 ’ 100%

* Nominee Shareholder(s) of AHSL

Shareholding Pattern Post Allotment of Shares pursuant to Composite Scheme of Amalgamation
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Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15,2020
Private & Confidential

(g) Major Shareholders:

List of Shareholders holding more than 1% of the Share Capital of the Company as on 24.10.2019

Name of Sharcholder No. of Equity Shares 85 holding to Promoter / Non

Held total Sharc Promoter
Capital
Artemis Health Sciences | 2,10,35,000 100% Promoter
_ Limited

List of Shareholders holding more than 1% of the Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2017

‘Name of Shareholder No. of Equity Shares % holdingto  Promoter / Non
Held total Share Bromotes
_ Capital
Artemis Health Science | 2,10,35,000 ; Promoter
| Limited

List of Shareholders holding more than 155 of the Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2018

Name of Sharcholder No. of Equity Shares % holding to Promoter / Non
Held total Share Promoter
Capital
AHSL 2.10,35,000 Promoter

List of Shareholders holding more than 154 of the Share Capital of the Company as on 21.10.2019

Name of Sharcholder No. of Equity Shares | % holding to Promoter / Non
Held total Share Promoter

Capital
AHSL 2,10,35,000 100 Promoter

(h) Details of securities of the Company held by the Promoters

‘Nameof  Natureof | Dateof Numbe || Face value | Issue | Date Num %of % of total
Promoter Issue Allotment’t  rof Price/  when berof | total post-
ransfer shares Consid  shares  Pledg  pre- 1ssue
eration | wers ed §SSUS capital
made Share | capital
fully 5
paid-up

Mr. Onkar | Composite | 26.10.2019
S. Kanwar | Scheme of 019
Amalgamat
ion
Constructiv | Composite | 26.10.2019 | 92,42,5 | 10 10 26.10.2 | Nil 69.82% | 69.82%
e Finance Scheme of 79 019
Private Amalgamat
Limited ion
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Name of
Promoter /
Promoter
Group
Entity

[ Nil

Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential
As on the date of this Memorandum, the Company has 5,781 members.

Details of:

0)] the aggregate shareholding of the promoter group and of the directors of the promoters, where
the promoter is a body corporate

“Name of No. of % Promoter Group / Directors of Promoter
Sharcholder | Equity holding

Shares to {Gtal
Held Share

_ Capital
Constructive | 92,42,579 | 69.82 1. Sudhir wadhawan
Finance 2. Rajan sabharwal
Private
Limited

(1D the aggregate number of specified securities purchased or sold by the promoter group and/or
by the directors of the company which is a promoter of the issuer and/or by the directors of the
issuer and their relatives in the preceding six months

Nil

(1) all financing arrangements whereby the promoter group, the directors of the company which is
a promoter of the issuer, the directors of the issuer and their relatives have financed the
purchase by any other person of securities of the issuer other than in the normal course of the
business of the financing entity in the six months immediately preceding the date of the
Information Memorandum

Nil

(IV)  In case it is not possible to obtain information regarding sales and purchases of specified
securities by any relatives of the promoter, details on the basis of the transfers as recorded in
the baoks of the issuer and/or the depository, as applicable and a statement to such effect

N.A

Promoters’ Contribution
(I) Details of Promoters’ contribution and lock-in

Date of Date Nature of  Number | (Face Issue %to Lock-In
Allotment  when Allotment of Value Price Total Restrictions, if
of shares Securities  (Rs.)  (Rs.) | Shares any
Speeified  were held by
Securities | made Proimoter
fully
paid-up
No. of | Locked
Shares | in Till

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil | Nil Nil | Nil
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Final Information Memorandum
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Private & Confidential

Except the allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Schenie, the Company has not allotted any
Equity Shares pursuant o any scheme of arrangemnent approved under sections 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 or sections 230 to 234 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

Other than in accordance with all applicable laws, neither the Company nor any of the Company’s
Directors have entered into any buy-back and/or standby arrangements for the purchase of Equity
Shares of the Company from any person

The Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of
this Information Memorandum.

There are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures, loans or other convertible
instruments into Equity Shares as on the date of this Information Memorandum.

There will be no further issue of Equity Shares whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential
allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of filing of
this Information Memorandum with SEBI until the Equity Shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchanges.

The Company presently does not intend or propose to alter the Company 's capital structure for a
period of six months of this Information Memorandum, by way of split or consolidation of the
denomination of Equity Shares, or further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of securities
convertible into or exchangeable for, directly or indirectly into Equity Shares), whether on a
preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of Equily Shares or qualified
institutions placement. However, if the Company enters into arrangements for acquisitions, joint
ventures or other arrangements, the Company mday, subject to necessary appmvals, consider raising
additional capital to fund such activity through issue of furiher Equity Shares.

There shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law. The
Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from
time to tine.
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Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

The Composite Scheme between AGLSL, AHSL, AEL, the Company and their respective shareholders and
creditors deals with two distinct mergers i.e. merger under Part 11 and merger under Part 111 of the Composite
Scheme to occur sequentially.

(i) Part 11 of the Composite Scheme deals with merger of AHSL and AEL with AGLSL i.e. merger of
subsidiary and sub-subsidiary with the Company. Upon the Composite Scheme becoming effective, in
terms of the merger envisaged under Part Il of the Composite Scheme, all the assets, liabilities
(whether or not recorded in the books of accounts of AHSL and AEL), properties, estates, rights, title,
interests, contracts, proceedings, employees and related retirement funds, taxes and the entire business
and undertaking of each of AHSL and AEL, shall stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to
have been transferred to or vested in AGLSL, with effect from the appointed date.

(ii) Part III of the Composite Scheme deals with merger of AGLSL (after giving effect to the merger under
Part II of the Composite Scheme) into the Company i.e. a reverse merger of holding company into
subsidiary. Upon the Composite Scheme becoming effective, in terms of the merger envisaged under
Part 111 of the Composite Scheme (post the merger under Part I of the Composite Scheme being given
effect to), all the assets, liabilities (whether or not recorded in the books of accounts of AGLSL),
properties, estates, rights, title, interests, contracts, proceedings, employees and related retirement
funds, taxes and the entire business and undertaking of AGLSL including assets, liabilities (whether or
not recorded in the books of accounts of AHSL and AEL), properties, estates, rights, title, interests,
contracts, proceedings, employees and related retirement funds, taxes and the entire business and
undertaking of each of AHSL and AEL which were merged into AGLSL under Part 11 of the
Composite Scheme), shall stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to
or vested in AMSL, with effect from the appointed date relevant to Part I1] of the Composite Scheme.

The appointed date for the merger under Part II of the Composite Scheme is the opening of business on 1*
April 2018 and the appointed date for the merger under Part I1I of the Composite Scheme is 1% April 2018,
immediately after giving effect to the merger under the Part II of the Composite Scheme. The effective date for
the Composite Scheme in respect of the merger under Part II of the Composite Scheme is upon satisfaction of
the conditionalities in the Composite Scheme; whilst the effective date for the merger under Part [l of the
Composite Scheme is upon the merger under Part 11 of Composite Scheme becoming effective. The Composite
Scheme is effective for the mergers under each of Part IT and Part 11 of the Composite Scheme from their
respective appointed dates; but shall be operative from the effective date.

The mergers under both Part II and Part 111 of the Composite Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
section 2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act.

The Composite Scheme would:

o benefit shareholders and other stakeholders of the respective companies by consolidating and
simplifying the group structure, business operations, provide optimal utilization of various resources
and eliminating cross holdings within the group;

. enhance growth prospects, reduce overheads, administrative, managerial and other costs and
expenditure and remove inefficiencies and bring operational rationalization and organizational
efficiency; and

° result in improved shareholder value for the shareholders of the respective companies, thus providing a
stronger and wider capital and financial base for future growth/expansion of the Company.

In relation to the merger under Part II of Composite Scheme, there would be a cancellation of shares held by
AGLSL directly in AHSL and indirectly in AEL (through AHSL), hence no share issuance. For the merger
under Part I of the Composite Scheme, the Company would issue and allot equity shares to each shareholder
of AGLSL on record date in the ratio of 1:5 i.e. | (one) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each of the Company to be
issued for every 5 (five) equity share of Rs.2/- each of AGLSL held by the shareholder(s) of AGLSL. There
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would also be a combination of the authorised capital of each of AHSL, AEL and AGLSL with the authorised
capital of the Company as an integral part of the Scheme.

Consequently, AHSL, AEL and AGLSL would each be dissolved without winding up pursuant to the
provisions of Companies Act as an integral part of the Composite Scheme.

The shares issued by the Company to the shareholders of AGLSL as on record date would be listed on BSE
and NSE in terms of the rules, regulations and circulars issued by them in this behalf.

A joint application was filed by AGLSL, AHSL, AEL and the Company before the NCLT Delhi on 28"
September 2018 under section 230-232 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act. NCLT Delhi
sanctioned the Composite Scheme pursuant to its order dated September 30, 2019, a certified copy of which
was filed with the ROC, New Delhi on October 14, 2019
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

This statement of tax benefits has been certified by M/s AKCJ & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New
Delhi vide their letter dated October 12,2019.

Outlined below are the possible benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the direct tax
laws in force in India (i.e. applicable for the Financial Year 2019-20 relevant to the assessment year 2020-21).
Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed
under the relevant tax laws. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the possible tax
benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on business imperatives it faces in the
future, it may or may not choose to fulfil.

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act™) - BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY
1. Carry Forward and Set off of Losses

O As per the provisions of Section 72(1) of the Act, if the net result of the Income under the Head
Business & Profession is a loss to the Company, not being a loss sustained in a speculation business,
such loss can be set off against any other income except Income under the Head capital gain & Salary
and the balance loss, if any, can be carried forward for eight consecutive assessment years immediately
succeeding the assessment year for which the loss was first computed and shall be set off against the
Income under the Business & Profession.

O As per the provisions of Section 72A of the Act, pursuant to business re-organizations such as
amalgamation, demerger, etc., the successor company shall be allowed to carry forward any
accumulated tax losses/ unabsorbed depreciation of the predecessor company, subject to fulfillment of
prescribed conditions.

O The carry forward of accumulated losses/unabsorbed depreciation by the amalgamated/resulting
companies other than company owning industrial undertaking or ship or hotel or banking company or
public sector airline company shall be allowed subject to the following conditions: -

. The amalgamating company has been engaged in the business in which accumulated business
loss occurred or depreciation remains unabsorbed for three years or more years;

. The amalgamating company has held continuously as on the date of the amalgamation of at
least three fourth of the book value of fixed assets held by it two years prior to the date of
amalgamation;

. The amalgamated company continues to hold at least three fourth of the book value of fixed

assets of the amalgamating company which it has acquired as a result of amalgamation for five
years from the effective date of amalgamation;

. The amalgamated company continues the business of amalgamating company for a minimum
period of five years; and

. The amalgamated company fulfills other conditions as may be prescribed to ensure the revival
of the business of the amalgamating company or to ensure that the amalgamation is for the
genuine business purpose.

2 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit
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As per provisions of Section 115JAA of the Act, the Company is eligible to claim credit for Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) paid for any assessment year commencing on or after April 1, 2006. The amount
of credit available shall be the difference between MAT payable under section 115JB of the Act and
taxes payable on total income computed under other provisions of the Act.

MAT credit shall be allowed to be carried forward for any assessment year to the extent of difference
between the tax paid under Section 115JB and the tax payable as per other provisions of the Act for
that assessment year. Such MAT credit is available for carry forward up to 15 years succeeding the
assessment year in which the MAT credit arises. The MAT credit is allowed as set-off in the year
when tax is payable under the provisions of the Act other than section 115JB.

Dividends

As per the provisions of Section 10(34) read with Section 1 15-0 of the Act, dividend (both interim and
final), if any, received by the Company on its investments in shares of another Domestic Company is
exempt from tax. However, as per Section 94(7) of the Act, losses arising from purchase and sale of
securities, where such securities are bought or acquired within a period of three months prior to the
record date and such securities are sold or transferred within three months from the record date, will be
disallowed to the extent of the amount of dividend claimed as exempt, if any.

Any amount declared, distributed or paid by the Company to shareholders by way of dividends on or
after 1 April 2003, whether out of current or accumulated profits, shall be chargeable to additional
income tax at the rate of 15 percent (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) of the aggregate
dividend declared, distributed or paid. The DDT payable is required to be grossed up and effective rate
is 17.65% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) under Section 115-O of the Act. Above
grossed up is in view of the amendment brought in by Finance (No.2) Act, 2014, for the purpose of
determining the tax on distributed profits payable in accordance with Section 115-O of the Act, the
amount of dividends on or after 1 April 2003 needs to be increased to such amount as would, after
reduction of tax on such increased amount at the specified rate, be equal to the net distributed profits.

Further, if the company being a holding company, has received any dividend from its subsidiary on
which dividend distribution tax has been paid by such subsidiary, then company will not be required to
pay dividend distribution tax to the extent the same has been paid by such subsidiary company.

As per the provisions of Section 115BBD of the Act, dividend received by Indian company from a
specified foreign company (in which it has shareholding of 26% or more) would be taxable at the
concessional rate of 15% on gross basis (excluding surcharge and education cess*) up to March 31,
2014. As per Finance Act, 2014, the benefit of lower rate of 15% is extended without limiting it to a
particular assessment year.

For removing the cascading cffect of dividend distribution tax, while computing the amount of
dividend distribution tax payable by a Domestic Company, the dividend received from a foreign
subsidiary on which income-tax has been paid by the Domestic Company under Section 115BBD of
the Act shall be reduced.

Any income received from distribution made by any mutual fund specified under Section 10(23D) of
the Act or from the administrator of the specified undertaking or from the units of specified company
referred to in Section 10(35) of the Act, is exempt from tax in the hands of the Company under Section
10(35) of the Act. However, as per Section 94(7) of the Act, losses arising from the sale/ redemption
of units purchased within three months prior to the record date (for entitle to receive income) and
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sold within nine months from the record date, will be disallowed to the extent of the amount of income
claimed exempt, if any.

As per provisions of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an exempt income is not allowed as
deduction while determining taxable income.

4,

0

Capital gains

Capital assets are to be categorized into short-term capital assets and long-term capital assets based on
their nature and the period of holding. All capital assets, being a security (other than a unit) listed in a
recognized stock exchange in India, or a unit of the UT] established under the UTI Act, or a unit of an
equity oriented fund (as defined in the Act), or a zero coupon bond (as defined in the Act), held by an
assessee for more than twelve months.

In case of shares of a company whose shares are not listed in a recognized stock exchange in India are
held by an assessee for more than twenty-four months, are considered to be long-term capital assets,
capital gains arising from the transfer of which are termed as long-term capital gains ("LTCG").

STCG means capital gains arising from the transfer of capital asset being a security (other than a unit)
listed in a recognized stock exchange in India, or a unit of the UTI established under the UTI Act, ora
unit of an equity oriented fund (as defined in the Act), or a zero coupon bond (as defined in the Act),
held by an assessee for twelve months or less. In respect of any other capital assets, STCG means
capital gains arising from the transfer of an asset, held by an assessee for thirty-six months or less.

As per provisions of Section 48 of the Act, which prescribes the mode of computation of capital gains,
provides for deduction of COA/I and expenses incurred (other than STT paid) in connection with the
transfer of a capital asset, from the sale consideration to arrive at the amounts of capital gains.
However, in respect of LTCG arising on transfer of capital assets, other than bonds and debentures
(excluding capital indexed bonds issued by the government) and depreciable assets, it offers a benefit
by permitting substitution of COA/I with the indexed COA/I computed by applying the cost inflation
index as prescribed from time to time. Finance Bill, 2017 has vide Section 50CA proposed that for
shares of companies other than in which public is substantially interested, the full value of
consideration would be the higher of (i) fair market value as determined in accordance to the rules
prescribed or (ii) the actual consideration received.

In case of immovable property being land or building or both, the Finance Bill, 2017 proposed to
decrease holding period to twenty four months to be considered as a long term capital asset. In respect
of other capital assets, the holding period should exceed thirty six months to be considered as long -
term capital assets,

As per the provisions of section 2(29A) of the Act, read with section 2(42A) of the Act, a listed equity
share is treated as a long term capital asset if the same is held for more than 12 months immediately
preceding the date of its transfer,

Long Term Capital Gain (LTCG) arising on transfer of equity shares of a company or units of an
equity oriented fund which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section
10(23D) or a unit of a business trust as defined in Section 2(13A) and, is exempt from tax as per
provisions of Section 10(38) of the Act, provided the transaction is chargeable to Securities
Transaction Tax (STT) and subject to conditions specified in that section. However, Exemption for
long-term capital gains arising from transfer of listed securities as referred to in Section 10(38) has
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been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2018 w.e.f. Assessment Year 2019-20 and a new section 112A is
introduced in the Act.

As per Section 112A, long-term capital gains arising from transfer of an equity share, or a unit of an
equity oriented fund or a unit of a business trust shall be taxed at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and
education cess*) (without indexation) of such capital gains. The tax on capital gains shall be levied in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh.

Further, the cost of acquisition of listed company shares acquired by the shareholder before 0Olst
February, 2018, shall be deemed to the higher of following:-

. The Actual cost of acquisition of such share; or

. Lower of following:
o Fair Market value of such share as on January 31, 2018; or
o Actual sales consideration accruing on its transfer

As per provisions of Section 112 of the Act, LTCG not exempt under Section 10(3 8) of the Act are
subject to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) with indexation
benefits. However, if tax on long term capital gain resulting on sale of listed securities (other than a
unit) or zero coupon bond, calculated at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education
cess*) with indexation benefit exceeds the tax calculated at the rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge
and education cess*) without indexation benefit, then such gains are chargeable to tax at a
concessional rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*). The exemption u/s 10(38) is
however not allowed for income arising from transfer of long-term capital asset, being an equity share
in a company, if the acquisition of shares (other than that notified by the Central Government) was on
or after October 1, 2004 and did not attract securities transaction tax.

Income on transfer of investment in a company is to be taken into account while determining book
profits in accordance with provisions of Section 115JB of the Act.

As per provisions of Section 111A of the Act, STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity
oriented mutual fund which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section
10(23D) or a unit of a business trust, are subject to tax at the rate of 15% (plus applicable surcharge
and education cess*) provided the transaction is chargeable to STT. No deduction under Chapter VIA
is allowed from such income.

STCG arising on sale of equity shares or units of equity oriented mutual fund as defined which has
been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under section 10(23D), where such transaction
is not chargeable to STT is taxable at the normal prevailing rate (plus applicable surcharge and
education cess®).

As per Section 50 of the Act, where a capital asset is forming part of a block of assets in respect of
which depreciation has been allowed under the Act, capital gains shall be computed in the following
manner: -

. where full value of consideration on account of transfer of any asset forming part of block of
asset, as reduced by expenditure incurred wholly or exclusively in connection with transfer,
exceeds the written down value of block of assets and actual cost of assets acquired during the
year, such excess shall be deemed to be short term capital gains and taxed accordingly.
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. where any block of assets ceases to exist, for the reason that all the assets in that block are
transferred, the difference between the consideration arising on result of transfer and the
written down value of block of assets and the actual cost of assets acquired during the year,
shall be deemed to be short term capital gains/ (losses) and taxed accordingly.

O As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, short - term capital loss arising during
a year is allowed to be set-off against short - term as well as long — term capital gains. Balance loss, if
any, shall be carried forward and set-off against any capital gains arising during subsequent eight
assessment years.

O As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, long - term capital loss arising during
a year is allowed to be set-off only against long - term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, shall be
carried forward and set-off against long — term capital gains arising during subsequent eight
assessment years.

O As per the provisions of section 54D of the Act and subject to the conditions to the extent specified
therein, capital gains arising on compulsory acquisition of land and building or any right therein used
by an industrial undertaking, will be exempt from tax if the capital gains are invested in —land,
building, or any right therein within 3 years from the date of compulsory acquisition for the purpose of
shifting / re-establishing/setting up another industrial undertaking Gain or the Cost of acquisition of
new land and building subject to lower of Capital.

O Exemption of capital gains from income — tax:- In accordance with and subject to the conditions and to
the extent specified in section 54EC of the Act, the company would be entitled to exemption from tax
on gains arising from transfer of the long term capital asset (not covered by section 10(36) and10(3 8))
if such capital gain is invested within a period of six months from the date of transfer in bonds
redeemable after three years and issued by:-

. National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) constituted under Section 3 of National
Highway Authority of India Act, 1988: and

. Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC), a company formed and registered under the
Companies Act, 1956.

. Any other bonds notified by the Central Government in this behalf.

Where a part of the capital gains is reinvested, the exemption is available on a proportionate basis. The
maximum investment in the specified long term asset cannot exceed Rs. 50,00,000/- during any financial year
as well as capital gain arising from transfer of one or more original assets. Where the long term specified assets
is transferred or converted into money at any time with in a period of three years from the date of its
acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital
gains in the year in which the long term specified assets is transferred or converted into money.

O As per provisions of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an exempt income is not
allowed as deduction while determining taxable income.

O The characterization of the gain / losses, arising from sale/transfer of shares as business income or
capital gains would depend on the nature of holding and various other factors.

5. Buy Back of Shares
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Buy back means purchase by a company of its own shares in accordance with the provision of any law
for the time being in force relating to companies.

As per the section 115QA of the Act, amended by the Finance Act, 2019, in addition to the Income
Tax Chargeable in respect of the total income of a domestic company for any assessment year, any
amount of distributed income by the company on buy back of shares from a shareholder shall be
charged to tax and such company shall be liable to pay income tax @ 20% (plus applicable surcharge
and education cess*) on the distributed income.

Distributed income means the consideration paid by the company on buy back of shares as reduced by
the amount which was received by the company for issue of such shares determined in the manner as
prescribed by the act.

However, as per Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance,2019 and the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019,
listed companies which have made public announcement of buy back before 5th July, 2019 then tax on
buy back of shares of such companies shall not be charged.

Other benefits

As per section 35D of the Act, the Company is entitled to amortize certain preliminary expenditure,
specified under Section 35D (2) of the Act, subject to the limit specified in Section 35D(3). The
deduction is allowable for an amount equal to one-fifth of such expenditure for each of five successive
assessment years beginning with the assessment year in which the extension of the unit is completed or
the unit/ business commences production or operation.

As per the provisions of Section 35DD of the Act, any expenditure incurred by an Indian Company, on
or after April 1999, wholly and exclusively for the purpose of amalgamation or demerger of an
undertaking, shall be allowed a deduction of an amount equal to one-fifth of such expenditure for each
of five successive financial years beginning with the financial year in which the amalgamation or
demerger takes place.

As per the provisions of Section 35DDA of the Act, if a Company incurs any expenditure in any
financial year by way of payment of any sum to an employee in connection with his voluntary
retirement, in accordance with any scheme or schemes of voluntary retirement, the Company would be
eligible to claim a deduction for one- fifth of the amount so paid in computing the profits and gains of
the business for that financial year, and the balance shall be deducted in equal instalments for each of
the four immediately succeeding financial years.

As per Section 80JJAA, Where the gross total income of an assessee to whom section 44AB applies,
includes any profits and gains derived from business, there shall, subject to the conditions specified in
sub-section (2), be allowed a deduction of an amount equal to thirty per cent of additional employee
cost incurred in the course of such business in the previous year, for three assessment years including
the assessment year relevant to the previous year in which such employment is provided subject to
conditions specified therein.

As per the provisions of section 90, for taxes on income paid in Foreign Countries with which India
has entered into Double Taxation Avoidance Agreements (Tax Treaties from projects/activities
undertaken thereat), the Company will be entitled to the deduction from the India Income-tax of a sum
caleulated on such doubly taxed income to the extent of taxes paid in Foreign Countries. Further, the
company as a tax resident of India would be entitled to the benefits of such Tax Treaties in respect of
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income derived by it in foreign countries. In such cases the provisions of the Income tax Act shall
apply to the extent they are more beneficial to the company. Section 91 provides for unilateral relief in
respect of taxes paid in foreign countries.

As per provisions of Section 80G of the Act, the Company is entitled to claim deduction of a specified
amount in respect of eligible donations, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions specified in that
section.

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act”) - BENEFITS TO MEMBERS/SHAREHOLDERS

1.

ad

O

]

Dividends exempt under section 10(34) of the Act

As per provisions of Section 10(34) of the Act, dividend (both interim and final), if any, received by
the members [ shareholders from the Company is exempt from tax. The Company is liable to pay
dividend distribution tax on the amount distributed as dividend, if any.

However, the Finance Act 2016 has introduced Section 115BBDA which provides that the aggregate
of dividends received by an individual, HUF or a firm resident in India from domestic companies in
excess of Rs. 10 lakh will be taxed at 10 percent (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) on a
gross basis and no deduction will be available for any expenditure.

Also, Section 94(7) of the Act provides that losses arising from the sale/transfer of shares purchased
within a period of three months prior to the record date and sold/transferred within three months after
such date, will be disallowed to the extent dividend income on such shares is claimed as tax exempt, if
any.

Capital gains

Capital assets are to be categorized into short term capital assets and long term capital assets based on
their nature and the period of holding. All capital assets, being a security (other than a unit) listed in a
recognized stock exchange in India, or a unit of the UTI established under the UTI Act, or a unit of an
equity oriented fund (as defined in the Act), or a zero coupon bond (as defined in the Act), held by an
assessee for more than twelve months are considered to be long - term capital assets, capital gains
arising from the transfer of which are termed as LTCG. In respect of any other capital assets, the
holding period should exceed thirty six months to be considered as long - term capital assets.

STCG means capital gains arising from the transfer of capital asset being a security (other than a unit)
listed in a recognized stock exchange in India, or a unit of the UTI established under the UTI Act, or a
unit of an equity oriented fund (as defined in the Act), or a zero coupon bond (as defined in the Act),
held by an assessee for twelve months or less. In respect of any other capital assets, STCG means
capital gains arising from the transfer of an asset, held by an assessee for thirty six months or less.

Long Term Capital Gain (LTCG) arising on transfer of equity shares of a company or units of an
equity oriented fund which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section
10(23D) or a unit of a business trust as defined in Section 2(13A) and, is exempt from tax as per
provisions of Section 10(38) of the Act, provided the transaction is chargeable to Securities
Transaction Tax (STT) and subject to conditions specified in that section. However, Exemption for
long-term capital gains arising from transfer of listed securities as referred to in Section 10(38) has
been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2018 w.c.f. Assessment Year 2019-20 and a new section 112A is
introduced in the Act.
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As per Section 1124, long-term capital gains arising from transfer of an equity share, or a unit of an
equity oriented fund or a unit of a business trust shall be taxed at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and
education cess*) (without indexation) of such capital gains. The tax on capital gains shall be levied in
excess of Rs. [ lakh.

Further, the cost of acquisition of listed company shares acquired by the shareholder before Olst
February, 2018, shall be deemed to the higher of following:-

. The Actual cost of acquisition of such share; or
. Lower of following:

o Fair Market value of such share as on January 31, 2018; or
o Actual sales consideration accruing on its transfer

As per provisions of Section 112 of the Act, LTCG not exempt under Section 10(38) of the Act are
subject to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) with indexation
benefits. However, if tax on long term capital gain resulting on sale of listed securities (other than a
unit) or zero coupon bond, calculated at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education
cess*) with indexation benefit exceeds the tax calculated at the rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge
and education cess*) without indexation benefit, then such gains are chargeable to tax at a
concessional rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess™). The exemption w/s 10(38) is
however not allowed for income arising from transfer of long-term capital asset, being an equity share
in a company, if the acquisition of shares (other than that notified by the Central Government) was on
or after October 1, 2004 and did not aftract securities transaction tax.

Income on transfer of investment in a company is to be taken into account while determining book
profits in accordance with provisions of Section 115]B of the Act.

As per provisions of Section 48 of the Act, which prescribes the mode of computation of capital gains,
provides for deduction of COA/I and expenses incurred (other than STT paid) in connection with the
transfer of a capital asset, from the sale consideration to arrive at the amounts of capital gains.
However in respect of LTCG arising on transfer of capital assets, other than bonds and debentures
(excluding capital indexed bonds issued by the government) and depreciable assets, it offers a benefit
by permitting substitution of COA/I with the indexed COA/I computed by applying the cost inflation
index as prescribed from time to time.

In case if individual or Hindu Undivided Family (HUF"), where the total taxable income as reduced by
LTCG is below the basic exemption limit, the LTCG will be reduced to the extent of the shortfall and
only the balance LTCG will be subjected to such tax in accordance with the Proviso to sub-section (1)
of Section 112 of the Act.

As per provisions of Section 111A of the Act, STCG arising on transfer of equity shares, or units of
equity oriented mutual fund (as defined in the Act), or units if a business trust (as defined in the Act)
and are subject to tax at the rate of 15% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) provided the
transaction is chargeable to SIT. No deduction under Chapter VIA is allowed from such income.

STCG arising on transfer of equity shares, or units of equity oriented mutual fund (as defined in the
Act), or units if a business trust (as defined in the Act), where such transaction is not chargeable to SIT
is taxable at the rate of 30% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*)
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O As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, short - term capital loss arising during
a year is allowed to be set-off against short - term as well as long — term capital gains. Balance loss, if
any, shall be carried forward and set-off against any capital gains arising during subsequent eight
assessment years.

O As per provisions of Section 71 read with Section 74 of the Act, long - term capital loss arising during
a year is allowed to be set-off only against long - term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, shall be
carried forward and set-off against long — term capital gains arising during subsequent eight
assessment years.

0

Exemption of capital gains from income — tax:- In accordance with and subject to the conditions and to
the extent specified in section S4EC of the Act, the company would be entitled to exemption from tax
on gains arising from transfer of the long term capital asset (not covered by section 10(36) and10(38))
if such capital gain is invested within a period of six months from the date of transfer in bonds
redeemable after three years and issued by:-

. National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) constituted under Section 3 of National
Highway Authority of India Act, 1988; and

. Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC), a company formed and registered under the
Companies Act, 1956.

. Any other bonds notified by the Central Government in this behalf.

Where a part of the capital gains is reinvested, the exemption is available on a proportionate basis. The
maximum investment in the specified long term asset cannot exceed Rs, 5,000,000/~ during any financial year
as well as capital gain arising from transfer of one or more original assets. Where the long term specified
assets is transferred or converted into money at any time with in a period of three years from the date of its
acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital
gains in the year in which the long term specified assets is transferred or converted into money.

d As per provisions of Section 14A of the Act, expenditure incurred to earn an exempt income is not
allowed as deduction while determining taxable income.

O The characterization of the gain / losses, arising from sale/transfer of shares as business income or
capital gains would depend on the nature of holding and various other factors,

O As per provisions of Section 36(1)(XV) of the Act, STT paid in respect of the taxable securities
transactions entered into in the course of the business is allowed as a deduction if the income wing
from such taxable securities transactions is included in the income computed under the head 'Profit and
gains of business or profession'. Where such deduction is claimed, no further deduction in respect of
the said amount is allowed while determining the income chargeable to tax as capital gains.

.

In addition to the same, some benefits are also available to a shareholder being an individual or HUF.,
As per provisions of Section 54F of the Act, LTCG arising from transfer of shares is exempt from tax
if the net consideration from such transfer is utilized within a period of one year before, or two years
after the date of transfer, for purchase of a new residential house, or for construction of residential
house within three year from the date of transfer and subject to conditions and to the extent specified
therein.
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Tax Treaty benefits to non-resident shareholders

As per provisions of Section 90(2) of the Act, non-resident shareholders can opt to be taxed in India as
per the provisions of the Act or the double taxation avoidarnce agreement entered into by the
Government of India with the country of residence of the non-resident shareholder, whichever s more
beneficial, while deciding taxability in India (subject to furnishing of Tax Residency Certificate &
information in the Form 10F as prescribed vide Notification 57 of 2013 dated 1 August 2013.).
However, it may be noted that Tax Authorities may ask for other information and supporting
documents if required.

Requirement to furnish PAN under the L.T. Act: -

[

Section 139A (5A) requires every person from whose income; tax has been deducted at source under
chapter XVII-B of the IT. Act to furnish his PAN to the person responsible for deduction of tax at

source.

Section 206AA of the LT. Act requires every person entitled to receive any sum, on which tax is
deductible under Chapter XVIIB (deductee) to furnish his PAN to the deductor, failing which tax shall
be deducted at the highest of the following rates:

i at the rate specified in the relevant provision of the L.T. Act; or
if. at the rate or rates in force; or
iii. at the rate of twenty per cent.

As per sec 206AA(7), with effect from June 1 2016, the provisions of section 206AA shall not apply to
a non-resident, not being a company, or to a foreign company, in respect of:

1. Payment of interest on long-term bonds as referred to in section 194LC; and

ii. Payment in the nature of interest, royalty, fees for technical services and payments on transfer
of any capital asset, subject to fulfillment of conditions specified vide Notification no. 53/2016
dated 24th June, 2016.

Non-resident taxation

Special provisions in case of Non-Resident Indian (‘NRI”) in respect of income/ LTCG from specified
foreign exchange assets under Chapter XII-A of the Act are as follows:

NRI means an individual being a citizen of India or a person of Indian origin who is not a resident. A
person is deemed to be of Indian origin if he, or either of his parents or any of his grandparents, were
born in undivided India.

In accordance with section 115E, income from investment or income from LTCG on transfer of assets
other than specified asset shall be taxable at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education
cess*). Income by way of LTCG in respect of a specified asset (as defined in Section 115C(f) of the
ncome-tax Act, 1961), shall be chargeable at 10 percent (plus applicable surcharge and education
cess*). Specified foreign exchange assets include shares of an Indian company which are acquired /
purchased/ subscribed by NRI in convertible foreign exchange.
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As per the provisions of Section 115F of the Act, LTCG [not covered under Section 10(38) of the Act]
arising to an NRI on transfer of a foreign exchange asset is exempt from tax if the net consideration
from such transfer is reinvested in specified assets or in savings certificate referred to in Section
10(4B) of the Act within six months of the date of transfer, subject to the extent and conditions
specified in that Section. If only part of the net consideration is so reinvested, the exemption shall be
proportionately reduced. The amount so exempted shall be chargeable to tax subsequently; if the
specified assets or saving certificates referred in Section 10(4B) of the Act are transferred or converted
into money within three years from the date of their acquisition.

Under the provisions of Section 1 15G of the Act, it shall not be shall not be necessary for an NR] to
furnish his return of income if his only source of income is investment income or LTCG or both and
tax deductible at source under provisions of Chapter XVII-B has been deducted from such income.

Under the provisions of Section 115H of the Act, where a person who is an NRI in any previous year,
becomes assessable as a resident in India in respect of the total income of any subsequent year, he / she
may furnish a declaration in writing to the assessing officer, along with his her return of income under
Section 139 of the Act for the assessment year in which he / she is first assessable as a resident, to the
effect that the provisions of the Chapter XII-A shall continue to apply to him / her in relation to
investment income derived from the specified assets for that year and subsequent years until such
assets are transferred or converted into money.

Under the provisions of Section 115-] of the Act, an NRI may elect not to be governed by the
provisions of Chapter XII-A for any assessment year by furnishing his return of income under Section
139 of the Act declaring therein that the provisions of the Chapter shall not apply to him for that
assessment year. In such a situation, the other provisions of the Act shall be applicable while
determining the taxable income and the tax liability arising thereon.

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act”)- BENEFITS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTORS (“FlIs")

1.

O

0

Dividends exempt under section 10(34) of the Act

As per the provisions of Section 10(34) of the Act, dividend (both interim and final), if any, received
by the shareholder from a domestic Company is exempt from tax. The Company will be liable to pay
dividend distribution tax at the rate of 15 percent (plus applicable surcharge and cess*) on the amount
distributed as dividend. However, as per Section 94(7) of the Act, losses arising from purchase and
sale of securities, where such securities are bought or acquired within a period of three months prior to
the record date and such securities are sold or transferred within three months from the record date,
will be disallowed to the extent of the amount of dividend claimed as exempt, if any.

In view of the amendment brought in by Finance (No.2) Act, 2014, for the purpose of determining the
tax on distributed profits payable in accordance with Section 115-O of the Act, the amount of
dividends needs to be to be increased to such amount as would, after reduction of tax on such
increased amount at the specified rate, be equal to the net distributed profits. Resultantly, the effective
rate of tax will be 17.65 percent (plus applicable surcharge & cess*) of the amount of dividends
declared, distributed or paid by the Company.

Capital gains
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In Finance Act (No.2), 2014 it was provided that any securities held by a FII which has invested in
such securities in accordance with the regulations made under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 would be capital asset. Consequently, the income arising to a FII from transactions in
securities would always be in the nature of capital gains.

In accordance with Section 115AD, FIIs will be taxed at 10 percent (plus applicable surcharge and
education cess*) on long-term capital gains (computed without indexation of cost and foreign
exchange fluctuation), if STT is not payable on the transfer of the shares.

Long Term Capital Gain (LTCG) arising on transfer of equity shares of a company or units of an
equity oriented fund which has been set up under a scheme of a mutual fund specified under Section
10(23D) or a unit of a business trust as defined in Section 2(13A) and, is exempt from tax as per
provisions of Section 10(38) of the Act, provided the transaction is chargeable to Securities
Transaction Tax (STT) and subject to conditions specified in that section. However, Exemption for
long-term capital gains arising from transfer of listed securities as referred to in Section 10(38) has
been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2018 w.ef Assessment Year 2019-20 and a new section 112A is
introduced in the Act.

As per Section 1124, long-term capital gains arising from transfer of an equity share, or a unit of an
equity oriented fund or a unit of a business trust shall be taxed at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and
cducation cess*) (without indexation) of such capital gains. The tax on capital gains shall be levied in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh.

Further, the cost of acquisition of listed company shares acquired by the shareholder before 0lst
February, 2018, shall be deemed to the higher of following:-

- The Actual cost of acquisition of such share; or
. Lower of following:
0 Fair Market value of such share as on January 31,2018; or

0 Actual sales consideration accruing on its transfer

As per provisions of Section 112 of the Act, LTCG not exempt under Section 10(38) of the Act are
subject to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*) with indexation
benefits. However, if tax on long term capital gain resulting on sale of listed securities (other than a
unit) or zero coupon bond, calculated at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education
cess*) with indexation benefit exceeds the tax calculated at the rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge
and education cess*) without indexation benefit, then such gains are chargeable to fax at a
concessional rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*). The exemption u/s 10(38) is
however not allowed for income arising from transfer of long-term capital asset, being an equity share
in a company, if the acquisition of shares (other than that notified by the Central Government) was on
or after October 1, 2004 and did not attract securities transaction tax.

Income on transfer of investment in a company ‘s to be taken into account while determining book
profits in accordance with provisions of Section 115JB of the Act.

As per the provisions of Section 111A of the Act, STCG arising on sale of short term capital asset,
being listed equity shares in a company, shall be chargeable to tax at the rate of 15 percent (plus
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applicable surcharge and education cess*) provided the ftransaction is chargeable to STT. If the
provisions of Section 111A are not applicable to the short term capital gains, then the tax will be
charged at the rate of 30% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*), as applicable.

As per provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, income (other than income by way of dividends
referred to Section 115-O of the Act) received in respect of securities (other than units referred to in
Section 115AB) is taxable at the rate of 20 percent (plus applicable surcharge and education cess*).

The benefits of exemption under Section S4EC of the Act mentioned above in case of the Company
are also available to FIIs.

The CBDT has issued a Notification No. 9 dated 22 January 2014 which provides that Foreign
Portfolio Investors (FPI) registered under SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014 shall
be treated as FII for the purpose of Section 115AD of the LT, Act.

Tax Treaty benefits

In accordance with the provisions of Section 90 of the Act, FIIs being non-residents will be entitled to
choose the provisions of Act or the provisions of tax treaty entered into by India with other foreign
countries, whichever are more beneficial, while deciding taxability in India (subject to furnishing of
Tax Residency Certificate & information in the Form 10F as prescribed vide Notification 57 of 2013
dated 1 August 2013.). However, it may be noted that Tax Authorities may ask for other information
and supporting documents if required.

As per section 2(14) of the Act, securities held by an FII which has invested in such securities in
accordance with the regulations made under the SEBI Act, shall be treated as capital assets.
Accordingly, income of an FII from transfer of securities shall be treated as capital gains.

Computation of book profit under Section 115JB

An explanation has been inserted in Section 115JB stating that, the provisions of Section 115JB shall
not be applicable and shall be deemed never to have been applicable to a foreign company if: -

i. It is a resident of a country or a specified territory with which India has a tax treaty referred to
in sub-section (1) of Section 90 and it does not have a permanent establishment in India; or

ii. It is a resident of a country with which India does not have a tax treaty and it is not required to
seek registration under any law for the time being in force relating to companies.

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act”)- BENEFITS TO MUTUAL FUND

O

In terms of Section 10(23D) of the Act, all Mutual funds set up by public sector banks or public sector
financial institutions or Mutual Funds registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act/ Regulations there under or Mutual Funds authorised by the Reserve Bank of India, subject to the
conditions specified, are eligible for exemption from income taxes on all their income, including
income from investment in the shares of the company.

However, the Mutual Funds would be required to pay tax on distributed income to unit holders as per
the provisions of Section 115R of the Act. However, w.e.f. 1 October 2014, for the purpose of
determining additional income tax, the amount of distributed income shall be increased to such amount
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as would after reduction of additional income tax on such increased amount at the rate specified be
equal to the amount of income distributed by mutual fund

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act”)- BENEFITS TO VENTURE CAPITAL
COMPANIES/FUNDS '

O In terms of Section 10(23FB) of the Act, all venture capital companies/ fund registered with Securities
and Exchange Board of India, subject to the conditions specified, are eligible for exemption from
income tax on any income from investment in a venture capital undertaking. Further, the Finance Act,
2015 has inserted a proviso providing that nothing contained in this clause shall apply in respect of any
income of a venture capital fund or venture capital company, being an “investment fund” of the
previous year relevant to the assessment year beginning on or after April 1, 2016.

O “Investment fund” has been defined under in clause (a) of Explanation 1 to Section 115UB of the Act
to mean any fund established or incorporated in India in the form of a trust or a company or a limited
liability partnership or a body corporate which has been granted a certificate of registration as a
Category 1 or Category 1I Alternative Investment Fund and is regulated under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Fund) Regulations, 2012, made under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“Act”)- BENEFITS TO ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND

The Finance Act, 2015 has inserted Chapter X1I-FB in the Act which provides for special taxation regime for
Category I and Category 11 Alternative Investment Funds referred to as investment fund” as per clause (a) of
Explanation 1 to Section 115UB of the Act. Further, the said Act has also inserted Section 10(23FBA) in terms
of which income of any investment fund other than income chargeable under the head “Profits and gains of
business or profession” shall be exempt from income tax.

UNDER THE WEALTH TAX ACT, 1957
Wealth tax has been abolished from FY 2015-16 onwards.
UNDER THE GIFT TAX ACT, 1958

Gift tax is not leviable in respect of any gifts made on or after October I, 1998. However, gift of certain
properties including shares are liable to tax in the hands of recipient other than from certain specified relatives
as other income under the head income from other source. The scope of this provision is significantly tightened
by Finance Bill, 2017 from lst April, 2017 and therefore even listed shares received by body
corporate/company or a firm for under consideration or without consideration would be subject to tax as other

income.
Notes:

1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole I first name
holder where the shares are held by joint holders.

2. The above statement of possible direct tax benefits sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner
only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase ownership
and disposal of shares.
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The possible tax benefits are subject to the condition and eligibility criteria which need to be examined for

taxes implication.

In view of the individual tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult his/her own tax advisor with
respect to specific tax consequences.

65



Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15,2020
Private & Confidential

X. INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

A,

ey

)

Industry Overview

India is one of the fastest growing healthcare markets in the world. Rising income levels, an ageing
population, increasing insurance coverage and the imbalance in demand-supply presents a big opportunity
for healthcare providers to increase bed capacity and investments in this sector. The Indian healthcare
industry is expected to grow at CAGR of 22-25 per cent due to aging and growing populations, chronic
& lifestyle diseases, exponential advances in costly digital technologies — these and other developments
continue to increase healthcare demand. Additionally, investments, innovation and entrepreneurship are
expected to increase the market size, thereby boosting the contribution of healthcare to the country’s
GDP.

The hospital industry in India stood at Rs. 4 trillion (US$ 61.79 billion) in FY17 and is expected to reach
Rs. 8.6 trillion (US$ 132.84 billion) by FY22. India is experiencing 22-25 per cent growth in medical
tourism and the industry is expected to reach US$ 9 billion by 2020.

There is a significant scope for enhancing healthcare services considering healthcare spending as a
percentage of GDP is rising. Rural India, which accounts for over 70 per cent of the population is set to
emerge as a potential demand source.

Details of the business of the issuer:

(a) Primary business of the Issuer;
To provide Healthcare services, in a super specialty quaternary care set up, with a focus on better
clinical outcome and excellence in service delivery

(b) Plant, machinery, technology, process, etc.
Artemis Hospital is located in Sector 51 in Gurugram, Haryana, India

(c) Description of subsisting collaborations, any performance guarantees or assistance in marketing by
the collaborators, infrastructure facilities for raw materials and utilities like water, electricity, etc.

Not Applicable
(d) Products or services of the issuer:

(i) Nature of the product(s)/services, and the end users.

Healthcare services for treatment of patients. Artemis Hospital provides super specialty healthcare
services in OPD, diagnostics services, emergency management, surgical and medical management
IPD.

(ii) Approach to marketing of products and services

Artemis Hospital caters to both India - domestic and international markets, domestic patients come
through various channel, like word of mouth, Insurance/TPA tie ups, Government empanelment.
International patients also approaches directly to Artemis Hospital, referred by patients treated earlier
and also through various empanelment with Government and other agencies. Artemis Hospital focuses
on building institutional practice and promote the ‘Artemis’ brand through various brand building
activities including promotion through digital media.

Business Strategy: Description of the business strategy of the issuer, without any forecast of projections
relating to the financial performance of the issuer
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Artemis Hospital is a 394 bed hospital, planning to become 700+ bed over a period of time in same
campus in Gurugram. Artemis is also working on setting up cardiac cath labs in tier 2/3 cities in

collaboration with Phillips through its subsidiary company viz. ACCPL.

Artemis Hospital is also exploring multiple domestic and international management contract to run-

manage hospitals for a fee.

(3) Capacity and Capacity Utilization:
Average occupancy @ Artemis Hospital is 80% + for last 3 years,

(4) Intellectual Property Rights:

(a) If the issuer is entitled to certain intellectual property rights such as trademarks, brand names, etc.
whether the same are legally held by the issuer and whether all formalities in this regard have been

complied with.

Yes, Trade Marks are legally held by the Company and all formalities have been complied with in this

regard

(b) In case any of the material intellectual property rights are not registered in the name of the issuer,

the name of the entity with which these are registered.

Not Applicable

(c) In case the intellectual property rights are registered in the name of an entity in which the
promoters are interested, the salient features of the agreement entered into for the use of the

intellectual property rights by the issuer.

Not Applicable

(5) Property: Premises of Artemis Hospital along with land and building situated at Sector 51, Gurugram,
Haryana, India belongs to the Company. The land of the same was acquired from HUDA

B. Business Overview

The Company is engaged in the business of providing healthcare services and is managing and
operating 394 bedded multi-specialty hospital situated at Sector 51, Gurugram, Haryana, India. The
Company caters to both India- domestic and international markets and Government empanelments.
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C. Key Industry Regulations

The following description is a summary of certain sector specific laws and regulations in India, which are
applicable to the Company. The information detailed in this chapter has been obtained from publications
available in the public domain. The regulations set out below may not be exhaustive, and are only intended to
provide general information to the investors and are neither designed nor intended to substitute for
professional legal advice.

Environment Laws

e The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 (“Environment Act”)

The Environment Protection Act provides for the protection and improvement of the environment and for
matters connected there with, including without limitation the standards of quality of air, water or soil for
various areas and purposes, the maximum allowable units of concentration of various environmental
pollutants, procedure for handling of hazardous substances, the prohibition and restrictions on the location of
industries and the carrying on of processes and operations in different areas. Among other things, these laws
regulate the environmental impact of construction and development activities, emission of air pollutants and
discharge of chemicals into surrounding water bodies. These various environmental laws give primary
environmental oversight authority to the Ministry of Environment and Forest (“MoEF™), the CPCB and the
SPCB. Penalties for violation of the Environment Act include fines up to Rs. 1,00,000 or imprisonment of up
to 5 years, or both.

e Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974 (“Water Act”)

The Water Act mandates that the previous consent of the State Pollution Control Board (“SPCB”) be taken
before establishing any industry, operation or process, or any treatment and disposal system or any extension
or addition thereto, which is likely to discharge sewages or trade effluent into a stream or well or sewer or on
land; or bring into use any new or altered outlet for the discharge of sewage; or begin to make any new
discharge of sewage. In addition, a cess is payable under the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess
Act, 1977 by a person carrying on any specified industry. The person in charge is to affix meters of prescribed
standards to measure and record the quantity of water consumed. Furthermore, a monthly return showing the
amount of water consumed in the previous month must also be submitted.

o Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 (“Air Act”)

The Air Act was enacted for the prevention, control and abatement of air pollution. The persons managing
industry are to be penalized if they produce emissions of air pollutants in excess of the standards laid down by
SPCB.

e Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 2016 (“BMW Rules™)

The BMW Rules apply to all persons who generate, transport, treat, dispose or handle bio-medical waste in
any form. The BMW Rules mandate every occupier of an institution generating bio-medical waste to take steps
to ensure that such waste is handled without any adverse effect to human health and environment and to set up
bio — medical waste treatment facilities as prescribed under the BMW Rules. The BMW Rules further require
such persons to apply to the prescribed authority for grant of authorization and submit an annual report to the
prescribed authority and also to maintain records related to the generation, collection, storage, transportation,
treatment, disposal, and/ or any form of handling of bio-medical waste in accordance with the BMW Rules and
the guidelines issued there under.

e The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989
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The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989 has been formulated by the
Department of Environment, Forests and Wildlife, Ministry of Environment and Forests in exercise of the
power conferred by the Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 to govern the storage and import of hazardous
chemicals.

* Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 as amended in 2008

The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 allocate the responsibility of the occupier
and the operator of the facility that treats hazardous wastes to collect, treat, store or dispose the hazardous
wastes without adverse effects on the environment. Moreover, the occupier and the operator are required take
steps to ensure that persons working on the site are given adequate training and equipment for performing their
work. Hazardous wastes can be collected, treated, stored and disposed of only in such facilities as may be
authorized for this purpose. The occupier is liable for damages cansed to the environment resulting from the
improper handling and disposal of hazardous waste and any fine that may be levied by the respective SPCB.

Tax laws
e Income Tax Act, 1961

The Income Tax Act, 1961 consolidates all the provisions in relation to income tax and is applicable to every
domestic / foreign company whose income is taxable under the Income Tax Act depending upon its
“residential status” and “kind of income” earned by the company. Further, every company is required to file a
return for the income earned in the previous year with the authorities under the Income Tax Act by 31st
October of the assessment year. The Income Tax Act inter alia provides for tax deduction at source, fringe
benefit tax, advance tax and minimum alternative tax and the like which is required to be complied with by
every company.

¢ Goods and Services Tax

The Government of India has introduced the GST regime with effect from J uly 1, 2017 pursuant to which the
exemptions available under the earlier service tax regime for health care services provided by a clinical
establishment, an authorized medical practitioner or paramedics within the taxable territory continue to prevail.

e Finance Act, 1994

The Finance Act, 1994 (“Finance Act”) provides for the valuation and levy of service tax wherein every
service provider is liable to pay service tax and furnish a return with the Superintendent of Central Excise in
accordance with the provisions of the Finance Act. It further provides for penalty in case of failure on part of
the service provider to pay of service tax and power to the Central Government to grant an exemption in
payment of service tax.

Labour Laws

e The Code on Wages, 2019

The Code on Wages, 2019 was approved by the Lok Sabha on 30 J uly 2019, by the Rajya Sabha on 2 August,
2019 and finally received Presidential assent on 8 August, 2019. It seeks to regulate wage and bonus payments
in all employments where any industry, trade, business, or manufacture is carried out. The Wage Code
replaces the following four laws: (i) the Payment of Wages Act, 1936, (ii) the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, (iii)
the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and (iv) the Equal Remuneration Act, 1976. The Code will apply to all
employees

¢ Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 provides for welfare and health of contract
laborers. Under the CLRA, the principal employer has to be registered with the appropriate authority and the
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contractor has to get licensed by the licensing officer. The contractors are required to provide facilities such as
canteens, rest-rooms, first-aid amongst others. In case of failure of the contractor in providing such facilities,
the CLRA shifts the obligation upon the principal employer within a prescribed time period. Contravention of
the provisions of the CLRA may result in imprisonment of up to three months or a fine of up to one thousand
rupees.

e Employee State Insurance Act, 1948

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, (“ESI Act”) provides for certain benefits to employees in case of
sickness, maternity and employment injury including covering of accidents occurring to an employee while
commuting to and from office. All employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act are required to be
insured, with an obligation imposed on the employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In
addition, the employer is also required to register itself under the ESI Act and maintain prescribed records and

registers.
e Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923

WCA has been enacted with the objective to provide for the payment of compensation to workmen by
employers for injuries by accident arising out of and in the course of employment, and for occupational
diseases resulting in death or disablement. WCA makes every employer liable to pay compensation in
accordance with the WCA if a personal injury/disablement/loss of life is caused to a workman (including those
employed through a contractor) by accident arising out of and in the course of his employment. In case the
employer fails to pay compensation due under the WCA within one month from the date it falls due, the
commissioner appointed under the WCA may direct the employer to pay the compensation amount along with
interest and may also impose a penalty.

e The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (“Gratuity Act”)

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 provides for payment of gratuity to employees who have been in
continuous service for a period of five years upon their resignation, retirement, superannuation, death or
disablement due to accident or disease. The maximum gratuity payable under the Gratuity Act is one million
rupees.

e The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 regulates the employment of women for certain periods before and after
childbirth and also provides for maternity and other benefits to pregnant women. The maternity benefit under
the Act is to be paid at the rate of the average daily wage for the period of her absence immediately before the
delivery and six-weeks after that day. Contravention of the Act is punishable by imprisonment up to one year
and/or a fine up to Rs.5000. Further, the Maternity Benefit (Amendment) Bill, 2016 was recently passed by the
Rajya Sabha to amend certain provisions of the MB Act.

Intellectual Property Laws

e The Trade Marks Act, 1999

The Trade Marks Act, 1999 governs the law pertaining to trade marks in India. A trade mark is essentially any
mark capable of being represented graphically and distinguishing goods or services of one person from those
of others and includes a device, brand, heading, label, ticket, name, signature, word, letter, numeral, shape of
goods, packaging or combination of colours or combination thereof. In India, trademarks enjoy protection
under both statutory and common law. Indian trademarks law permits the registration of trademarks for goods
and services. Certification trademarks and collective marks can also be registered under The Trademarks Act.
The Registrar of Trademarks is the authority responsible for registration of the trademarks, settling opposition
proceedings and rectification of the register of trademarks.
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Once a mark is registered, it is valid in India only, for a period of 10 years and can be renewed from time to
time in perpetuity. Registration of a trademark grants the owner a right to exclusively use the trademark as a
mark of goods and services and prevents the fraudulent use of deceptively similar marks by any third party.

Other Applicable Resulations

* Shops and Commercial Establishments Legislations

The provisions of various Shops and Establishments legislations, as applicable in the states in which
establishments are set up, regulate the conditions of work and employment in shops and commercial
establishments and generally prescribe obligations in respect of inter alia registration, opening and closing
hours, daily and weekly working hours, holidays, leave, health and safety measures and wages for overtime
work.

* The Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010

The Act has been enacted by the Central Government to provide for registration and regulation of all clinical
establishments in the country with a view to prescribe the minimum standards of facilities and services
provided by them. The Act is applicable to all types (both therapeutic and dignostic types) of Clinical
Establishments from the public and private sectors, belonging to all recognized systems of medicine, including
single doctor clinics.

* Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex Selection) Act, 1994
(“PNDT Act”)

The PNDT Act prohibits sex selection, regulates the use of pre-natal diagnostic techniques by restricting their
usage for the purposes of detecting genetic or metabolic disorders or chromosomal abnormalities or certain
congenital malformations or sex-linked disorders and seeks to prevent the misuse of such techniques for the
purposes of pre-natal sex determination leading to female feticide, and, for matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto. The PNDT Act makes it mandatory for all genetic counselling centers, genetic clinics,
genetic laboratories and all persons and facilities utilizing pre-natal diagnostic

techniques, such as ultrasound machines, to register with their respective appropriate authorities failing which
penal actions could be taken against them.

¢ Medical Termination of Pregnancy Act, 1971 (“MTP Act”)

The MTP Act regulates the termination of pregnancies by registered medical practitioners and matters
connected therewith. It stipulates that abortion can be carried out only in certain specified circumstances by a
registered medical practitioner who has the necessary qualification, training and experience in performing
medical termination of pregnancy and only at a place which has facilities that meet the standards specified in
the rules and regulations issued under the MTP Act. Under the MTP Act, private hospitals and clinics need
government approval and authorization (certification) to provide medical termination of pregnancy services.
Under the rules framed pursuant to the MTP Act, private hospitals and clinics can receive their certification
only if the government is satisfied that termination of pregnancies will be done under safe and hygienic
conditions, and the clinic has the requisite infrastructure and instruments in place.

* Transplantation of Human Organs and Tissues Act, 1994 (“Transplantation of Organs Act”)

The Transplantation of Organs Act provides for the regulation of removal, storage and transplantation of
human organs and tissues for therapeutic purposes and for the prevention of commercial dealings in human
organs, tissues and matters incidental thereto, It prohibits the removal of any human organ except in situations
provided therein, and no hospital can provide services specified therein unless such hospital is duly registered
under the provisions of the Transplantation of Organs Act.
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e Tndian Medical Council Act, 1956 (“IMCA”)

The IMCA was enacted to register, establish and regulate the working of a medical college or a hospital/ health
centre where a person undergoes medical training. Under the IMCA, state medical councils are required to
maintain a medical register regulating the registration of practitioners of medicine.

° Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 (“DCA”) regulates the import, manufacture, distribution and sale of drugs
and cosmetics in India. It provides the procedure for testing and licensing of new drugs which involves
obtaining a series of approvals for different stages at which the drugs are tested, before the Central Drugs
Laboratory. Under the DCA, the Government can, by notification in the official gazette, regulate or restrict the
manufacture, sale or distribution of a drug, if it is satisfied that in the public interest, it is necessary or
expedient to do so or that the use of such drug is likely to involve any risk to human beings or animals or that it
does not have the therapeutic value claimed or purported to be claimed for it or contains ingredients and in
such quantity for which there is no therapeutic justification.

In order to give effect to the provisions of DCA, the government has notified the Drugs and Cosmetics Rules,
1945 (“DC Rules”) which prescribes the procedure for licensing new drugs and import of drugs as well as
aspects relating to labeling, packing and testing. It provides for the sampling of drugs for analysis and classes
of drugs for the import of which a license is required. On application, the medical and the chemical data are
examined followed by which a no objection certificate is issued allowing the manufacturer of the drug to move
on to the next stage of testing for its chemical integrity and analytical purity. The DC Rules also provides for
the cancellation or suspension of such license in any case of contravention. The DC Rules further prescribe
good manufacturing practices and requirements of premises, plants and equipments for pharmaceutical
products including the manner of labeling and packaging of drugs.

e Essential Commodities Act, 1955

The Essential Commodities Act, 1955 is enacted to control the production, supply and distribution of trade and
commerce in the essential commodities for maintaining or increasing supplies and for securing their equitable
distribution and availability at fair prices. The Central Government has the power to seize products for
inspection and if it is expedient to do so, can also confiscate after issuing a show cause notice to the owner. In
case of contravention, penalties in terms of imprisonment and fine have been prescribed under the act.

e Consumer Protection Act, 1986

The COPRA came into effect on December 24, 1986. The COPRA reinforces the interest and rights of
consumers by laying down a mechanism for speedy grievance redressal. Any person to whom goods were
delivered/intended to be delivered or services were rendered/ intended to be rendered, or a recognized
consumer association, or nUMeErous consumers having the same interest, or the Central/State Government may
lodge a complaint before the district forum or any other appropriate forum under the COPRA, inter alia, where:
(a) an unfair trade practice or a restrictive trade practice has been adopted by a service provider; (b) the
services availed or agreed to be availed suffer from any deficiency in any material aspect; and (c) the provision
of services which are hazardous or likely to be hazardous to life and safety of the public when used are offered
by the service provider which such person could have known with due diligence to be injurious to life and
safety. When a person against whom a complaint is made fails to or omits to comply with any order made by
the forum/commission, such person shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term ranging from one month
to three years, or a fine of not less than “2,000, but not more than 10,000, or both.

[n addition to the above, the Company is also required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act
and rules framed thereunder and other applicable statutes imposed by the Centre or the State Government and
authorities for our day-to-day business and operations. The Company is also amenable to various central and
state tax laws.
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D. History and Corporate Structure
History

The Company was incorporated as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, in the name of
Artemis Medicare Services Private Limited, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated May 18, 2004,
bearing registration number U85] 10DL2004PTC126414 and subsequently was converted into a Public
Limited Company on October 5, 2009 by the ROC, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana.

Registered Office
The registered office of the Company is presently situated at Plot No. 14, Sector 20, Dwarka, New Delhi-
110075. The changes in the registered office of the Company since incorporation are as set out below:

_ Detailsof Change ~~  Reason(s) forchange
Shifted from ‘414/1, 4th Floor, Operational convenience
DDA Commercial Complex,
District Centre, Janakpuri, New
Delhi- 110058’ to ‘Plot No.
14 , Sector-20, Dwarka, New
Delhi- 110075

25" February, 2008 Shifted from M-4, Surya | Operational convenience
Mansion, 1, Kaushalya Park,
Hauz Khas, New Delhi-110016
to 414/1, 4™ Floor, DDA
Commercial Complex, District
Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-
110058

1" April, 2006 Shifted from 20, Ansari Road, | Operational convenience
Daryaganj, New Delhi-110002
to M-4, Surya Mansion, 1,
Kaushalya Park, Hauz Khas,
New Delhi-110016

_Effective date of Change
13" February 2017

The Company has corporate office situated at Artemis Hospital, Sector-51 Gurugram-122001 (Haryana).

Business

The Company is engaged in the business of managing and operating of multi-specialty hospital and
commenced its commercial operation by setting up Artemis Hospital (also known as Artemis Health Institute)
at Gurugram on July 16, 2007. Artemis Hospital has also successfully received accreditation from the JCI &
NABL and also accredited from NABH.

Major Events and Milestones

Details of the major events in the history of the issuer, such as:

(i) Significant financial or strategic partnerships

During the year 2018-1 9, the Company approved an investment in a JV (Artemis Cardiac Care Private
Limited) up to Rs. 50 Crores

(i) Time/cost overrun in setting up projects
Not Applicable

(iii) Capacity/facility creation, location of plants
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Artemis Hospital is located at Gurugram and an expansion is being planned at the same location.
(iv) launch of key products or services, entry in new geographies or exit from existing markets

Artemis Hospital focuses on introducing cutting edge medical technology, both for diagnostic and treatment of
patients. The Company plans to expand its business to new and high paying international markets.

(v) Key awards, accreditations or recognition

The information on key awards, accreditations or recognition  can be found at
hnps:,f,fx\-ww.artemish-:-s.pitals.cc-m:"ab-:-u‘z’-artemis—hos1)ital.r’v\fhv—artanisfa\’»'ards-and-ac.creditations

(vi) Defaults or rescheduling/ restructuring of borrowings with financial institutions/ banks
Not Applicable

(vii) Details regarding material acquisitions or divestments of business/undertakings, mergers, amalgamation,
any revaluation of assets etc., if any, in the last ten years.

There have been no divestments of business/undertakings, mergers, amalgamation in last ten years. However,
during the year 2018-19, the Company approved an investment up to Rs. 50 Crores in ACCPL, a Joint venture
with Philips Medical Systems B.V. ACCPL is now a subsidiary of the Company.

Also, during the FY 2015-16, the Company has revalued its land based on current market price determined by
an approved valuer. This has resulted in increase in the book value of fixed assets by Rs 6,58,90,000/-.

Objects of the Company
The objects of the Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association inter alia include:

1. To purchase, sell, manage, improve, maintain, obtain/give on lease, promote, administer, operate and
otherwise deal and obtain license for running hospitals, clinics, nursing homes, pharmacy,
dispensaries, maternity homes, old age homes, health resoris and health clubs, all types of ambulatory
services, polyclinics, medical centers, child & women welfare and family planning centers, diagnostic
centers, health aids and research centers/laboratory and to undertake all kinds of medical and health
care activities in India and’or abroad.

2. To undértake, promote, assist or engage in all kinds of research including clinical and development
work required to promote, assist or engage in setting up hospitals, any type of healthcare/medical
relief centers and facilities for manufacturing medical equipments, apparatus and instruments eic. in
India as well as abroad.

3. To undertake, provide, encourage, initiate or promote facilities for the discovery, improvement or
development of new methods of diagnostics, understanding and prevention and treatment of any
disease and to carry out medical and clinical research and other development work by engaging the
research and development of all medical sciences and all types of treatment therapies in India as well
as abroad.

4. To establish, run, promote and make investment in the educational institutions, schools, colleges, for
imparting medical and healthcare education and management training in the field of medicine,
nursing, physical medicine, rehabilitative medicine, pharmacy and allied medical administration and
management of such medical institutions including health and hospital management, training and
development, pharmaceutical management, hospitality, programmes for skills and competency
development, training and certification of professionals and/or post-graduate students in India as well
as abroad, in accordance with applicable laws/guidelines.
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To research, design, manufacture, import, export, buy, sell, and otherwise deal in all types of
pharmaceuticals, organic and in-organic chemicals, medicines including all types of alternate
medicines/therapies, drugs & intermediates and all kinds of equipment and instrumentation for
medical and healthcare activities and to carry on in India or aboard any business activities of
rendering support services of all types and kinds including forex services, e-commerce services,
catering & food services, tailoring, washing & laundering with the objective of delivering solutions in
relation to the medical and healthcare services provided/to be provided by the Company.

To carry on the business activities of medical publications and manufacturing of articles made from
paper & cardboard, books, magazines, periodicals, brochures, pamphlets, catalogues, booklets,
leaflets, bulletins, posters, newsletters, photographs, stationary, artist material, office requisites,
packing materials, instructions and teaching materials, direct mailers and printed matters for publicity
and advertisement in India or elsewhere and to provide all types of management consultancy and
business development services in relation to medical and healthcare services provided by the
Company”

Changes in Memorandum and Articles of Association in last ten years

_ Date of Event _ "
5™ October 2009 Company converted from private | 5'

B =
S,

| ChangeEffected
October 2009

~ NawrcofEvent =

i L2 LN,

limited company into a public limited
company with approvals of ROC,
National Capital Territory of Delhi &
Haryana

05" August2016 |A new set of Memorandum of | 05" August 2016

Association as adopted by the
shareholders in the AGM held on 05th
August 2016 in order to rationalize and
expand the main objects clause of the
Company and to bring them in line with
the requirements of Companies Act.

05" August 2016 | A new set of Articles of Association as | 05" August 2016

adopted by the sharecholders in the
AGM held on 05™ August 2016 in
order to bring them in line with the
requirements of Companies Act.

26" August, 2019 | Altered the Article of Association | 26" August, 2019

through insertion of new clauses.

26" October 2019 | Change  in  Memorandum  of | 14™ October 2019

Association for increase in Authorized
Capital of the Company pursuant to the
approval of Composite Scheme

Subsidiary

The Company has the following subsidiary and Joint Venture:

Name of the Company:

Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
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Capital Structure of ACCPL and stake held by the Company:

Name of shareholders No. of shares held % Shareholding
Artemis Medicare Services Limited 16,90,000 65%
Philips Medical Systems Nederland BV | 9,10,000 35%
Total 26,00,000 100%

Amount of accumulated profits or losses of the subsidiary not accounted for by the Company: N.A.

Holding Company
Constructive Finance Private Limited is the holding company of the Company.

Name: Constructive Finance Private Limited

Capital Structure: The Authorised Capital of Constructive Finance Private Limited is Rs. 11,00,00,000 and its
Paid-up Capital is Rs. 8,61,29,400.

Stake held by Constructive Finance Private Limited in the Company: 69.82%

Nature of Business: Investment Company

E.

(2)

Shareholders Agreement And Other Agreenments

(2)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Key terms of all subsisting shareholders’ agreements- N.A.

Key terms of agreements entered into by a key managetial personnel or director or promoter
or any other employee of the Company, either by themselves or on behalf of any other
person, with any shareholder or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit
sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the Company. - N.A.

Key terms of Guarantees, if any, given to third parties by the promoter offering its shares in
the proposed offer for sale, stating reasons, amount, obligations on the issuer, period of
guarantee, financial implications in case of default, security available, consideration etc.-
N.A.

Key terms of dates, parties to and general nature of ‘any other subsisting material
agreements including with strategic partners, joint venture partners and/or financial partners,
entered into, other than in the ordinary course of business of the issuer.

A JV agreement was entered with Philips Medical Systems BV on 9" November 2018,
according to which a JV company namely ACCPL was incorporated in which AMSL
contributed 65% of the agreed capital of ACCPL primarily for operating and setting up of
Cath Lab Units in India.

Management

Board of Directors

ey

As per the Article of Association of the Company, the Company shall not have less than 3
Directors and not more than 15 Directors. Presently the Company has 10 (Ten) Directors, the
details of which are as follows:
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Mr. Onkar S Kanwar

“Name of the Director ||

. v nformation o
Age:77
Date of Birth: 01/03/1942

Qualifications: Science and administration
graduate

Experience: Over 40 Years

Address: H. No. 3/3, Shanti Niketan, New
Delhi — 110021

Occupation: Industrialist

Date of Appointment: 14.09.2006

Date of Expiration of Current Term: N.A.

Period of Directorship: 13 years

Other Directorships (India):

1. Apollo Tyres Limited (Listed)

2. PTL Enterprises Limited (Listed)

3. Classic Industries & Exports Limited
(Unlisted)

Leto Retailers Private Limited (Unlisted)

=
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Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar, son of Late

Shri Raunaq Singh, the co-
founder of Apollo Tyres in 1976.
Mr. Kanwar has experience of

over 40 years in  the
manufacturing industry.
Presently, Mr Kanwar is the

Chairman of the Apollo Tyres
Limited. He was the past
president of FICCI and former
Chairman of ATMA.

Ms. Shalini Kanwar
Chand

Age: 51
Date of Birth: 08/03/1968
Qualifications: Post-Graduate

‘| Experience: 12 Year

Address: 48 Coronation RD West #01-02
Astrid Meadows Singapore 269263 SG
Occupation: Professional

Date of Appointment: 25.09.2007

Date of Expiration of Current Term: NA
Period of Directorship: 12 years
Other Directorships: Nil

Ms. Shalini Kanwar Chand,
daughter of Mr. Onkar S Kanwar,

is experienced in Strategic
Planning, New Business
Developments, Marketing

Strategy and Team Building. She
graduated from the University of
Delhi and pursued her Master’s
Degree specialising in Cognitive
Behavioural Therapy from the

Swinburne University of
Technology,  Australia.  She
propelled  forward in  her

educational journey with several
courses from the Academy of
Human Development Singapore
in association with Edith Cohen
and is consummate in Cognitive
Behavioural Therapy.
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Mr. Neeraj Singh | Age: 48 Mr. Neeraj Kanwar, son of Mr.
Kanwar Date of Birth: 06/09/1971 Onkar S Kanwar, is the Vice
Qualifications: Graduated from Lehigh Chairman & Managing Director
University, USA, of Apollo Tyres Limited. He is
Experience: 20 years also associated with various
Address: 5 Upper Belgrave Street London industry associations and was the
SW1X8BD GB former  Chairman  of  the
Occupation: Industrialist Automotive Tyres Manufacturer's
Date of Appointment: 17.01.2008 Association, India.
Date of Expiration of Current Term: NA
Period of Directorship: 11 years
Other Directorships (India):
1. Apollo Tyres Limited (Listed)
2. PTL Enterprises Limited (Listed)
3. Sunlife Trade Links Private Limited
(Unlisted)
Dr. Nirmal Kumar | Age: 77 Dr Nirmal Kumar Ganguly is a
Ganguly Date of Birth: 11.11.1941 Biotechnology Research
Qualifications: MBBS, MD (Microbiology), Professor at the National Institute
DSc (hc) of Immunology, New Delhi. He is
Experience: more than 40 Year also President of the Jawaharlal
Address: 701, Gayatri Apartment, GH-06, Institute of Post Graduate
Sector-45, Faridabad-121010, Haryana Medical Education and Research,
Occupation: Professional Pondicherry. He is former
Date of Appointment: 10.02.2014 Director General of the Indian
Date of Expiration of Current Term: N.A. Council of Medical Research.
Period of Directorship: 5 Years
Other Directorships:
1. Gennova Bio Pharmaceuticals Limited
(Unlisted)
2. Sapien Bio Sciences Limited (Unlisted)
3. Pushpawati Singhania Hospital & Research
Institute (Unlisted)
4. International Bio Tech Private Limited
(Unlisted)
5. NCD Predisease Forum (Unlisted)
Dr. Subbaraman | Age: 76 Dr. Subbaraman Narayan, IAS
Narayan Date of Birth: 20/06/1943 (Retd.) served the Government of

Qualifications: M.Sc. Physics, Master of
Business Management

(Finance) M.Phil (Development Economics) -
Ph. D

Experience: 40 years

Address: Flat No. 2B, Nithyasree Apartments,
51, Chaimers Road, Raja Annamalaipuram,
Chennai- 600028

India as Finance and Economic
Affairs Secretary. Dr. Narayan

was also Secretary in the
Departments of Revenue,
Petroleum and Industrial

Development. He has experience
of 40 years in implementation of
economic policies and monitoring
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Occupation: Professional

Date of Appointment: 19.10.2006

Date of Expiration of Current Term:

11.09.2024

Period of Directorship: 13 years

Other Directorships:

1. Seshasayee Paper and Boards Limited
(Listed)

2. Dabur India Limited (Listed)

3. Rudransh Trading Private Limited
(Unlisted)

4. Castlewood Trading Private Limited
(Unlisted)

5. IIFL Wealth Finance Limited (Unlisted)

6. IIFL Wealth Management Limited

of the special economic agenda of
the Cabinet on behalf of Prime
Minister's Office.

(Unlisted)
7. Shanti Narayan Foundation (Unlisted)
Dr. Sanjaya Baru Age: 65 Dr. Sanjaya Baru, is one of

Date of Birth: 28/05/1954

Qualifications: PhD, Master’s Degree in

econoimics

Experience: 30 Years

Address: D-44, Panchsheel Enclave, New

Delhi-110017

Occupation: Professional

Date of Appointment: 06/02/2013

Date of Expiration of Current Term:

11.09.2024

Period of Directorship: 7 Years

Other Directorships:

1. Wockhardt Limited (Listed)

2. Parampara Family Business Institute
(Unlisted)

India’s most respected and
influential ~ commentators  on
political and economic issues.
After serving as a consulting
senior fellow of the IISS from
September 2008, he became the
first director of the institute’s
Geo-economics and  Strategy
programme in 2011, analysing the
interplay between economics and
geopolitics at the global level.
From 2016, he moved to focusing
on India for the IISS. Dr Baru
was the Official Spokesman and
Media Advisor to the Prime
Minister of India from May 2004
until August 2008. He is a former
editor of the leading Indian
financial newspapers The
Business  Standard  and The
Financial Express, and associate
editor of The Economic
Times and The Times of India.

Mr. Akshay Kumar
Chudasama

Age: 50

Date of Birth:30/09/1969

Qualifications: Advocate

Experience: more than 20 years

Address: Shanti Cottage No.2, Narayan
Dabholkar Road, Chandralok, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400006, Maharashtra

Mr Akshay Chudasama, is the
partner of a leading legal firm,
Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas.
He has been practicing Law since
1994 and has experience in
Mergers & Acquisitions, Joint
Ventures, Cross Border
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Occupation: Lawyer

Date of Appointment: 06/11/2015

Date of Expiration of Current Term:

04.08.2021

Period of Directorship: 3 Years

Other Directorships:

1. Raymond Limited (Listed)

2. Bata India Limited (Listed)

3. Apollo Tyres Limited (Listed)

4. Wyosha Real Estates Private Limited
(Unlisted)

Tnvestments, Private Equity, Real
Estate, Hospitality, Franchising
and Media & Entertainment Law..

Dr. Devlina

Chakravarty

Age: 52

Date of Birth: 12/06/1967

Qualifications: MD, DNB, DMRD, Radiologist

Experience: 26 years (approx.)

Address: W-12, 2nd Floor, Kings Court,

Greater Kailash, Part-2, South Delhi - 110048

Occupation: Services

Date of Appointment: 02/04/2015

Date of Expiration of Current Term:

31.03.2020

Period of Directorship: 4 Years

Other Directorships:

1. Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
(Unlisted)

Dr Devlina Chakravarty started
her career in 1993 as a radiologist
trained from Mumbai University.
She did fellowships/
perceptorship programmes from
University of Berlin (Germany),
UCLA (Los Angeles) and
Brigham & Women (Boston) in
Head and Neck & Body Imaging.
She worked as senior faculty and
Programme Director in Radiology
in different reputed hospitals in
Delhi before joining AMSL. She
is the Whole Time Director of the

Company designated as
Executive  Director of  the
Company.
Mr. Ugar Sain Anand | Age: 76 Mr. Ugar Sain Anand, is a

Date of Birth: 15.01.1943

Qualifications: Chartered Accountant
Experience: more than 38 Years

Address: B-1/239, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-
110063

Occupation: Professional

Date of Appointment: 10/10/2019

Date of Expiration of Current Term:
09/10/2020

Period of Directorship: upto 1 year

Other Directorships:

1. PTL Enterprises Limited (Listed)

2. Apollo International Limited (Unlisted)

Chartered Accountant, with over
38 years of experience. He joined
the Board of Directors of the
Company in the year 2019. His
experience is focused in the areas
of Accounts, Finance, Taxation
and Business development.

Mr. Sunil Tandon

Age: 65

Date of Birth: 28.01.1954

Qualifications: MBA

Experience: 42 years

Address: D-26, Saket, Malviya Nagar S.0.,
South Delhi-110017

Occupation: Professional

Mr. Sunil Tandon is a Mechanical
Engineer from Delhi College of
Engineering (1975 batch) and an
MBA with top honours & a gold
medal from FMS (1977 batch),
University of Delhi. He has
started his career with Engineers

80




Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

Date of Appointment: 10/10/2019
Date of Expiration of Current Term:
09/10/2020

Period of Directorship: upto 1 year
Other Directorships:

1. PTL Enterprises Limited (Listed)

India Ltd. a premier Engineering
design consultancy, where he had
the opportunity of working with
International Engineering design
companies like Toyo, Snam
Progetti etc. Thereafter, Mr. Sunil
Tandon has changed over to
commercial aspects of business,
including Purchase & Project
exports at Ballarpur Industries
Ltd, followed by a stint as
Executive  Asstt. to  Vice
Chairman at Modi Alkalies &
Chemicals with exposure to
diverse functions.

(b)

(I1) Details of directorships in suspended companies

None of the Directors have held or are holding directorship in any listed companies whose
shares have been or were suspended from being traded on BSE and/or NSE in the past five

years.

(IlI)  Details of directorships in delisted companies

None of the Directors have held or are holding directorship in any listed companies whose
shares have been or were delisted from being traded on BSE and/or NSE in the past five years.

(IV)  Relationship between Directors

Save and except for the following Directors none of the Directors are related to each other

pursuant to Companies Act.

__ NameofDircctor | RelatedTo
Mr. Onkar S Kanwar Mr. Neeraj Singh Kanwar

e 1 e

1 3
i

_Nature of relationship
Father

Mr. Onkar S Kanwar Ms. Shalini Kanwar Chand

Father

V) Arrangements with Major Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers and Others
There are no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or
other, pursuant to which a Director was selected as a Director.

(VI)  Service Contracts

There are no service contracts entered into by and between the Directors and the Company
whereby benefits would be provided upon termination of employment.

(VII) Borrowing Powers of the Board

The shareholders have, pursuant to a special resolution adopted at the EGM dated 16™ November 2016
authorized the Board to borrow sums from time to time, to the extent of Rs. 1000 Crores (Rupees One

Thousand Crores).

Compensation of Managing Director and/or whole-time Director

Dr. Devlina Chakravarty is the whole time Director of the Company and the current remuneration is

Rs. 459.77 lacs per annum.
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(D Terms of appointment of Directors

Formis of Appointment
Date of Board resolution: 25" February 2015 effective
from 02™ April 2015

“Name of Director |
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty

Date of Special Resolution: 30" March 2015

Terms of Employment: appointed for a period of five
years at a maximum remuneration of Rs. 6 Crores. J

(1) Details of compensation paid to Directors during the Jast financial year (FY 2018-19)

Name of Services' | Compensation | Compensation paid! [ FPayment of
Director Provided | paid/payable by payable by the the
the Company in | subsidiary/associate compensation
(FY 2018-19) in (FY 2018-19) as
including including bonus/profit
contingent and contingent and sharing plan.
deferred deferred Briel
compensation) compensation) description of
(Rs. in lakhs) plan
Sitting Fees | 1.40 NIL NIL
for Board and
Mr. Onkar S |its Committee

Kanwar Meetings
Sitting  Fees | 0.80 NIL NIL
for Board and
Mr. Neeraj | its Committee
Singh Kanwar | Meetings
Sitting Fees | 2.60 NIL NIL
for Board and
Ms. Shalini | its Committee
Kanwar Chand | Meetings
Sitting Fees | 2.80 NIL NIL
Dr. for Board and
Subbaraman its Committee
Narayan Meetings
Sitting  Fees | 1.00 NIL NIL

for Board and
Dr. Sanjaya | its Committee
Baru Meetings

Sitting Fees | 18.80 NIL NIL
for Board and
its Committee

Meetings
Dr. Nirmal | along  with
Kumar professional
Ganguly services  for
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. orConcern

Apollo Tyres (UK) Pvt. Ltd. Director/ Member
Apollo Tyres (London) Pvt Ltd Director
Apollo Vredestein B.V. (Supervisory Board) | Director
Apollo Tyres(Hungary) Kft Director
Kanwar Family Trust Director
Neeraj Family Trust Beneficiary
CATL Financial Services LLP Beneficiary
Designated Partner
Vidyawati Chuttani Trust Trustee
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited Director
Sapien Biosciences Private Limited Director
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Pushpawati Singhania Hospital & Research | Director
Ganguly Institute Director
International Biotech Park Limited Director
NCD Predisease Forum Director
Dabur India Limited Director
Seshasayee Papers Board Limited Director
T — IIFL Wealth Finapce Limit.ed. D@rector
Narayan Castlewood Tr;ladmg Pvt L1r.mt.ed D}rector
Rudransh Trading Private Limited Director
IIFL Wealth Management Limited Director
Shanti Narayan Foundation Trustee
Dr, Sanjaya Bare Wockhardt Limited Director
’ Parampara Family Business Institute Director
Apollo Tyres Limited Director
Bata India Limited Director
Raymond Limited Director
;E;;ﬁiﬁ?ﬂ;{j?mar Wy.osha Real EST?:ltB P‘rivate I_Jirpited Director/Member
P — India Luxco Retail Private Limited Member
Wyoma Art Consultants LLP Designated Partner
Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas & Co Equity Partner
Dr. Devlina Artemis Education & Research Foundation | Trustee
Chakravarty Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited Director
PTL Enterprises Limited Director
Mr. Ugar Sain Anand Apollo International Limited Director
Mr. Sunil Tandon PTL Enterprises Limited Director
Change in directors in last three years and reasons thereof
- NameofDirector | DatcofChange | Reasons for Change
Mr. Akshay Kumar Change in Designation Appointment recommended by

Chudasama

from Additional Director
to Independent Director
w.e.f. 5™ August 2016

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the
Board of Directors and the
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Shareholders in their respective
meetings.
Mr. P.N. Wahal Resigned w.e.f. 31 Pre-occupancy
November 2016
Mr. Naveen Kapur Resigned w.e.f. 3™ Pre-occupancy
November 2016
Mr. Saurabh Srivastava | Appointed as Additional Appointment recommended by
Director w.e.f. 12" Nomination and Remuneration
November 2018 Committee and approved by Board
of Directors
Mr. Saurabh Srivastava | Resignation w.e.f.13™ May | Preoccupancy
2019

Management Organisation Structure

Corporate Governarce

The provisions with respect to the corporate governance will be applicable upon Listing of the Equity
Shares of the Company on BSE and NSE. The Company administers corporate governance through the
Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board. The Company is in compliance with the
requirements of the applicable regulations in respect of corporate governance in accordance with the
LODR and the Companies Act, pertaining to the constitution of the Board and committees thereof.

As on the date of filing this Information Memorandum, the Company has 10 Directors on the
Company’s board of directors, of whom 5 are Independent Directors, 1 is executive director and 4 are
non-executive directors.

In compliance with the requirement of the Regulation 17-27 of LODR, the Company has constituted
following Board Level Committees:

(a) Audit Committee;

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC);
(c) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee; and

(d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Audit Commiitee
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To approve policies in relation to the implementation of the Code and to supervise
implementation of the Code.

To note and take on record the status reports detailing the dealings by Designated Persons in
Securities of the Company, as submitted by the Compliance Officer on a quarterly basis,

To provide directions on any penal action to be initiated, in case of any violation of the Regulations
by any person.

Review compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time, at least once in a financial year and verify that the systems
for internal control are adequate and are operating effectively.

NS NN

Nomination and Remuneration Comniittee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was originally constituted by the board of directors at a
meeting held on April 30, 2007. As on the date of this Information Memorandum the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee consists of the following Directors:

Namé of Director Desionation in the Nature of Directorship
_ Commiftee | §4 1zl g

Dr. Subaraman Narayan | Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Onkar S Kanwar Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Akshay Kumar Member Independent Director
Chudasama
Ms. Shalini Kanwar Member Non-Executive Director
Chand

Terms of Reference:

Authority and Power

¢ Investigate any matter within the scope of this charter or as referred to it by the Board. The
Committee shall coordinate with other Committees to the extent that its work has a bearing on
their scope of work.

* Seck any information or explanation from any employee or director of the company.

¢ Invite Senior Management or other executives, as it considers appropriate to be present at the
meetings of the Committee,

* Ask for any records or documents of the Company.

* The Committee may also engage (at the expense of the Company) independent consultants and
other advisors and seek their advice on matters related to discharge of their responsibilities.

Responsibilities

e Recommend to the Board the setup and composition of the Board and its committecs,
including the “formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.” The Committee will consider periodically reviewing the
composition of the Board with the objective of achieving an optimum balance of size, skills,
independence, knowledge, age, gender and experience.

* Recommend to the Board the appointment or reappointment of directors.

* Devise a policy on Board diversity.
Recommend to the Board appointment of Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP* as defined by
the Act) and executive team members of the Company (as defined by this Committee).

* Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the Board and Independent
Directors in evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual
Directors. This shall include “Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors
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and the Board”. Additionally, the Committee may also oversee the performance review
process of the KMP and executive team of the Company.

e Recommend to the Board the ‘Remuneration Policy’ for directors, executive team and KMP as
well as the rest of the employees.

e On an annual basis, recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the directors and
oversee the remuneration to executive team and KMP of the Company.

o Oversee familiarization programmes for directors.

e Oversee the human resource philosophy, human resource and people strategy and human
resource practices including those for leadership development, rewards and recognition, talent
management and succession planning (specifically for Board, KMP and executive team).

e Provide guidelines for remuneration of directors on material subsidiary/(ies).

e Recommend to the Board on voting pattern for appointment and remuneration of directors on
the boards of its material subsidiary company(ies).

e Performing such other duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with the provisions of
the Committee charter.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”) was originally constituted by the Board of
Directors at a meeting held on October 10, 2019. As on the date of this Memorandum the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee consists of the following Directors:

,,,,,, P —
[
|l

~ Name of Director

"!———' T C

Mr. Ugar Sain Anand Chairman | Independent Director

Dr. Devlina Chakravarty | Member Executive Director
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Member Non-Executive Director
Ganguly

Terms of Reference:
Role and Responsibilities
The SRC shall have the powers to

. Review statutory compliances relating to the holders of securities issued by the Company.

. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints
related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

° Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

° Oversee compliances in respect of dividend payments and transfer of unclaimed amounts to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
o Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or duplicate

share certificates), transfer and transmission of securities, etc.
o Approve issuance of duplicate certificates of securities issued by the Company
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° Review movements in shareholding and ownership structure of the Company

. Ensure setting up of proper controls on the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent and oversee the same.

. Authorize any person to take such actions as necessary or deemed fit by the Committee for
any matter.

. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the registrar and share transfer agent.

o Recommend measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor services.

o Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Comimittee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was originally constituted by the Board of Directors at
a meeting held on May 2, 2014. As on the date of this Memorandum the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee consists of the following Directors:

Name of Director  Designation in the Nature of Directorship

Commitice -

Ms. Shalini Kanwar Chairperson Non-Executive Director
Chand

Dr. Nirmal Kumar Member Non-Executive Director
Ganguly

Dr. Subbaraman Narayan | Member Independent Director
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty | Member Executive Director

Terms of Reference:

Scope Of CSR Activities

o To eradicate hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive
health care and sanitation including contribution to the Swatch Bharat Kosh set-up by the
Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

o To promote education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

° To promote gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women
and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backwards
groups;

° To ensure environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
soil, air and water including contribution to the clean ganga fund set-up by the Central
Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga;
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To protect national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional arts and handicrafts;

To take measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

To train to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports;

To make contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by
the Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the

Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

To contribute funds to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are
approved by the Central Government;

To take measures for rural development projects.
To take measures for Slum Area Development.
To sustain urban development and urban public transport system.

To undertake any other activities in furtherance of the aforesaid objectives, as the CSR
Committee may deem fit.

Any other activity which is notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs through its notification,
general circular etc.

Key Managerial Personnel

@

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors (including its committees) and assisted by
qualified persons who form the key managerial personnel team of the Company. The
following are the Key Managerial Personnels of the Company:

(A) Name of Personnel: Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
Date of Appointment: 02" April 2015
Qualifications: MD, DNB, DMRD, Radiologist
Term of Office with date of Expiration of term: For a period of 5 years w.e.f.
02.04.2015 to 01.04.2020
Details of Service Contracts: Board Resolution passed on Dated 25" February 2015
Previous employment: She worked as senior faculty and Programme Director in
Radiology in different reputed hospitals in Delhi before joining Artemis Hospital in
2007
Past Business Experience and Achievements: Senior Radiologist
Designation: Whole Time Director
Status of employment: Permanent
Scape of Functions: Executive Director of the Company

(B) Name of Personnel: Rakesh Kumar Kaushik
Date of Appointment: 04™ February 2019
Qualifications: Bachelor of Law from Delhi University and is also a Fellow Member
of Institute of Company Secretaries of India
Term of Office with date of Expiration of term: N.A.
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Details of Service Contracts: Board Resolution dated 4™ February 2019
Previous employment: Bharti Airtel Limited

Past Business Experience and Achievements: 22 years in Corporate Laws,
Compliances with Companies Act, SEBI and other Securities Laws, Litigation,
Contracts, Risk Management and Governance.

Designation: Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Status of employment: Permanent

Scope of Functions: Company Secretary and Chief Legal Officer

(©) Name of Personnel: Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
Date of Appointment: 24.07.2014
Qualifications: Chartered Accountant
Term of Office with date of Expiration of term: N.A.
Details of Service Contracts: Board Resolution dated 24.07.2014
Previous employment: General Head — Commercial in Ultra Tech Cement
Past Business Experience and Achievements: associated with Apollo International as
VP Accounts for more than 2 years, he has already been spearheading the finance
team at the Company since September 2013.
Designation: Chief Financial Officer
Status of employment: Permanent
Scope of Functions: Chief Financial Officer

Relationship between Key Managerial Personnel

None of the Key Managerial Personnel are related to each other pursuant to Companies Act.
Arrangements with Major Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers and Others

There are no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or
others, pursuant to which a Key Managerial Personnel was selected as a Key Managerial
Personnel.

Other Commercial Arrangements with Key Managerial Personnel

Except for terms set forth in the appointment/engagement letters, the Key Managerial
Personnel have not entered into any other contractual arrangements with the Company.

Details of compensation paid to Key Managerial Personnel during the last financial year (FY
2018-19)

Name of Key Services Compensation Benefits Payment of the

Managerial Provided = paid/pavable by | grantedto  compensation as
Personnel the Company in KMP in bonus/prefit
(FY 2018-19) = (FY 2018- sharing plan,

including 19) Brief description
contingent and of plan
deferred
compensation
{in Rupees)

Dr. Devlina | Whole 459.77 Lacs 0 0
Chakravarty Time
Director
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Mr. Navneet | Company | 60.13 Lacs 0
Goel Secretary
till 4"
February
2019
Mr. Sanjiv | Chief 68.62 Lacs 0 0
Kumar Kothari | Financial
Officer
Mr. Rakesh | Company | 24.51 Lacs™* 0 0
Kumar Secretary
Kaushik

*The remuneration paid to Mr. Rakesh Kumar Kaushik was for the part of the year as he

Jjoined the organisation in the month of November 2018

Shareholding of Key Managerial Personnel in the Company

S Name of Key Managerial Personncl || Shares held by Key Managerial

Personnel in the Conipany

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel in the past 3 years

Namé of Personnel | Pate of " Dateof Reason
and Designation Appointment Cessation
Mr. Navneet Goel | 24" July 2014 04' Cessation
February
2019
Mr. Rakesh Kumar | 04™ February 2019 | N.A. ‘To fill the
Kaushik Vacancy of
Company
Secretary
(KMP)

Interest of Key Managerial Personnel

None of the Key Managerial Personnel have been paid any consideration of any nature from

the Company, other than their remuneration.

Employee Stock Options

The Company does not presently have in place any employee stock option plan/scheme.

Number of Employees

At present the Company has 2051 employees including the Key Managerial Personnel. The

attrition rate in the Company is not higher than industry standards.

Promoter and Promoter Group
The following are the Promoters of the Company

Brief Details of Promoters

For Promoters who are individuals:
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Name: Mr. Onkar Singh Kanwar

Date of Birth: 01/03/1942

Age: 77

Personal Address: H. No. 3/3, Shanti Niketan, New Delhi — 110021

Educational Qualifications: Science and Administration Graduate

Experience in Business / Employment: Over 40 Years

Position / Posts held in the Past: Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar has experience of over 40 years in the
manufacturing industry. Presently, Mr Onkar S. Kanwar is the Chairman of the Apollo Tyres Limited
and PTL Enterprises Limited. He was the past president of FICCI and former Chairman of ATMA.
Directorships held: Please refer to page 77 of this Information Memorandum.

Other Ventures: Apollo Tyres Limited & PTL Enterprises Limited

Special Achievements: Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar has experience of over 40 years in the manufacturing
industry. Presently, Mr Onkar S. Kanwar is the Chairman of the Apollo Tyres Limited. He was the
past president of FICCI and former Chairman of ATMA. Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar is the Chief Architect

of the Apollo Tyres Ltd Vision and its value driven business strategy.

Business / Financial Activities: Hospital

Photograph:

PAN: AAIPK9639F
AADHAR No: 997655956612
Driving License: DL-0420050169421

Brief Details of Promoter Company

Where the promoters are companies:
Name: Constructive Finance Private Limited
Date of Incorporation: August 26, 1988

CIN: U67120DL1988PTC250410
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Registered Office: 414/1, 4TH FLOOR, DDA Commercial Complex, District Centre, Janakpuri New
Delhi- 110058

Nature of Business / Objects / Activity: Investment & Finance Company
PAN: AACCC9252D

TIN: NA

Names of Directors: 1. Mr. Sudhir Wadhawan and 2. Mr. Rajan Sabharwal

Shareholding Pattern: 100% Shareholding is held by Mr. Onkar S Kanwar

Individuals holding more than 15% voting rights: Mr. Onkar S Kanwar

Details of promoters of Promoter Company: Mr. Onkar S Kanwar

Directors of promoters of Promoter Company: NA

History of Promoter Company: NA

No Change in any activity since incorporation

Details of change in control or management of the Promoter Companies, if any, including details of
the persons who held the controlling interest in the three years immediately preceding the Information
Memorandum: - Mr. Onkar S Kanwar was at all times whether directly or indirectly holding 100%
shareholding/controlling interest.

Original Promoters

Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar

Reasons for change in control and date. — No Change

Interest of Promoters

Mr. Onkar S Kanwar

Except for the sitting fees received in the capacity of director for attending the meeting or shares held
by him, Mr. Kanwar has no interest in the Company

In Promotion of the Company: Mr. Onkar S Kanwar is interested in the promotion of the Company as
a Promoter/Director

In Property acquired by / proposed to be acquired by the Company in preceding 3 years: Not
Applicable

Interest of the Promoters in the Company arising out of being a member of firm or company: Presently
Mr. Onkar S Kanwar holds 500 shares in the company

In Business of Company: Nil
In acquisition of land, construction of building and supply of machinery in relation to the Company:
Nil
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Constructive Finance Private Limited

In Promotion of the Company: Constructive Finance Private Limited is interested in the promotion of
the Company as a promoter/holding company.

In Property acquired by / proposed to be acquired by the Company in preceding 3 years: Not
Applicable

Interest of the Promoters in the Company arising out of being a member of firm or company: Presently
Constructive Finance Private Limited holds 69.82 per cent shares in the company

In Business of Company: Nil
In acquisition of land, construction of building and supply of machinery in relation to the Company:
Nil

(iv) Payments / Benefits to Promoters
Apart from receiving sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board by Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar,
there are no payments made to or benefits provided to the Promoters in the 2 years preceding date of

filing Information Memorandum

(v) Material Guarantees given to third parties by the Promoters with respect to specified securities of the
Company

NIL

(vi)  Promoter Group of the Comparny

Name of Petson / Entity Manuer in which part of Aadhar / CIN

: ; Promoter Group )

Mr. Taru Kanwar Relative 453805937473

Mr. Neeraj Singh Kanwar Relative 630875559517

Mr. Raaja Raunaq S. Kanwar Relative 860640662409

Ms. Shalini Kanwar Chand Relative 74836015 (passport No.)

Sunrays Properties & Investment Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(B) of | U74899DL1983PTC015890

Company Private Limited ICDR Regulations

Neeraj Consultants Private Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(B) of | U67200DL1980PTC253585
ICDR Regulations

Global Capital Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(B) of | U74899DL1994PLC060911
ICDR Regulations

Apollo Finance Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(B) of | U65923DL1995PLC064163
ICDR Regulations

Motlay Finance Private Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(B) of | U67120DL1990PTC248374
ICDR Regulations

Classic Auto Tubes Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii}(C) of | U74899DL2005PLC141511
ICDR Regulations

PTL Enterprises Limited Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | L25111KL1959PLC009300
ICDR Regulations

Ganga Kaveri Credit & Holdings Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U74899DL1994PTC061451
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Name of Person / Entity Manner in which patt of Aadhai/ CIN

Promoter Group
Private Limited ICDR Regulations
Sacred Heart Investment Company Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U74899DL1983PTC015873
Private Limited ICDR Regulations
Kenstar Investment & Finance Private | Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U67120DL1998PTC096572
Limited ICDR Regulations
Sayush Consultants & Investment Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U74140DL1999PTC101354
Private Limited ICDR Regulations
Kewaldeep Consultants Private Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U74140DL2003PTC120884
Limited ICDR Regulations
Indus Valley Investment & Finance Regulation 2(pp)(iii)(C) of | U74899DL1994PTC061425
Private Limited ICDR Regulations

(vii)  Disassociation by Promoters from any company or firms during preceding three years:

Name of Promoter | Enfity from Date of Reéasons for || "Terns of
swhich Disassocration Disassociation Pisassociation
disassociated |

Nil

(H) Dividend Policy
The Company has not declared or paid any dividends to its members in the last three financial years

The declaration and payment of dividends if any, will be recommended by the Board of Directors and
approved by the members of the Company in their discretion, and will depend on a number of factors,
including but not limited to the Company’s earnings, capital requirements, contractual obligations, results of
operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements,
applicable legal restrictions and overall financial position of the Company. The Company has no stated
dividend policy. This is not indicative of the Company’s dividend policy or dividend amount, if any, in the
future.
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(INR in Lakh)

Particulars

30/06/2019

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

Cash Flow from operating

A e
activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before
tax and extraordinary items
and interest

690.41

3,739.82

3.546.76

3,239.62

2,741.42

2,107.88

Operating Profit before
Working Capital Changes

690.41

3,739.82

3,546.76

3,239.62

2,741.42

2,107.88

Adjustment for :

Depreciation

541.47

1,992.29

1,847.08

1,515.85

1,238.84

1,242.71

Other Items of Profit &
Loss Account

218.36

618.64

(484.56)

656.62

233.66

(Increase) / Decrease in
assets & liabilities

47.25

(1294.06)

2,371.07

512.92

(2,138.3)

Cash generated from
operations

1,497.48

5,056.69

7,280.35

5,925.02

2,075.57

Effect of exchange diff on
cash & cash equivalents
held in Forex

Direct Taxes Paid/ Refund

(1178.64)

(986.27)

(89.60)

(130.88)

(26.20)

(116.81)

Net cash from operating
activities

318.84

4,070.42

7,190.75

5,794.14

2,049.37

5,280.50

Net cash from Investing
activities

(386.61)

(4965.83)

(6657.04)

(7394.39)

(1416.98)

(1010.24)

Net cash from Financing
activities

(516.29)

1,436.64

(966.86)

1,938.94

(2,429.75)

(3,540.88)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in
Cash & Cash Equivalents

(584.06)

541.23

(433.15)

338.70

(1,797.36)

729.38

Effect of exchange diff on
cash & cash equivalents
held in Forex

(1.22)

Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Opening)

811.00

269.78

702.96

2,161.62

Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Closing)

226.93

811.00

269.81

364.26

2,161.62
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting'pelicies and other explanatory information.

in our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforeszid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and
its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows and for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Ne conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our repert. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The cther information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors including annexures
to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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I connection wiy our audit of the ind as linancial statements, gy responsibility is to read the other
information and, iy doing se, consider whether the other information js materially inconsistent wirp the
financial stateinents or gup knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to he materially
misstated, [f, hasod on the work we haye Performed, we conclide that there jg a material misstatement
ofthis other info, mation, we are Feduired to report thay fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibmty tor the Ind As Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Divectors is responsible for the Matlers stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the Preparation of these Ing AS financig] statements thag give a true and fajr view of the
financial positig, financial performance including other tomprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company iy dccordance with the decounting principles generally accepled in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian f\u?m.mfing Sl:mni:—u*ds) Rules, 2015, a5 amended, Thig responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records ip dccordance with the Provisions of the Act for
saleguarding of the assets of the Coempany and for Preventing ang detecting frauds and other
rregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policjes; making judgments ang
estimates that ape reasonable and pradent; and desigi, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that wepe operating elfectively for ensuring rhe accuraecy and completeness of
the ac ViRting records, relevant to the Preparation and Presentation of the [ng AS financig] statemerits
that give a trye and fair vi

ew and are free fram matepjal 1'11jssl':!ren‘eeul:. whether due to fraud or error,

I preparing the ng AS financial statements, Management iy responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continye 95 & going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related to going concern and
tsing the 80ing concern basis ol”;_-;ccounihm tnless management either intends ro liquidate the Company
Orto cease opey ations, or has no Fealistic alternatiyve but to do so,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible tor wverseeing the Com Pany’s financial reporting process.
Auditur'g responsibility for the Audit of the [nd AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain Fedasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as g
whole are free from marerig misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor's
repart that includes ouy opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve| ol assurance byt is not a guarantee
that an audit cunducted 1 accordance with §As will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or “reor and are considered material if, individually or in the
agsregate, they coyly reasunably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these 1 AS financial statements,

AS part of an aydiy inaccordance with SAs, we exercise prolessional judgment angd maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentily and assess the risks of Material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due 1o fraud or ep ul, design and petform audit Procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sulficient ang appropriate to provide g basis for our Opinion. The risk of not
detecting o material misstatemen resulting from fraug is higher than for one resulting from ervor,
as frand may involye collusion, r:k_ugery, intentional omissionsg, mis;‘f-pre&entations, or the override
ofinternal control,

° Obtain an l_mdui'suemling ofinternal contro) relevant to the audit in order to design audit pro

that are dpbropriate in the circumstances, Under section T43(3)(0) of the Act, we /R
fesponsible for EXPressing owr opinion ap ther the Company has adequate internaf= ‘ﬁ’e’ﬁiﬂfelhi
w

controls system in place and the Operating effectiveness ol such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of thé going concern basis of accounting and,

" based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reiated to events or

We

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income),

the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“"Annexure B”.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid/provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V

to the Act.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial positien in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 28Db(ii) to the Ind AS financial

statements.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 26% April, 2019

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235},/N500089
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i,

iti.

vi.

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our Report of even date.

(@)

)

()

The Company has maintained proper records showing full, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets verification has been conducted by the management during the year. All the fixed
assets of the Company have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular phased programme of physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its fixed assets. According to the
inforination and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of inmovable properties are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and book
records, which in our opinion were not material, have been properiy dealt with in the books of
account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecired, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the paragraphs 3(iii){a),
3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investment
made in the subsidiary company during the year. The Company has not given any loans or
guarantees or security during the year which are covered under provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the
opinion that the company has not accepted any deposits fram public covered under section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of Health
services, namely functioning as or running hospitals pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete,

\o3-

Continuation Sheet No. ........
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vil.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to it to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, as on 31t March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, there are no dues of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

viii. Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or to
any banks. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures, or loans or borrowings from
Government during the year.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year. Based on our audit procedures and according to
information and explanations given by the management, the term loans were applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

K. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

xi. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial

remuneration has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

Xil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xiil. According to the inforination and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sectians
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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XV, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934, Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUE‘\ITANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235%’/&5”0089
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PLACE: GURUGRAM ((c o » (RAJIV PURI)
DATED: 26t April, 2019 AN PARTNER
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Annexure “B” To the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARTEMIS MEDICARE
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company"”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errurs, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
af reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to he prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
nternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
Linancial controls over fnancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
contlruis over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089
4 /
/ﬁ: —Cbﬁ:\‘\:\\ zﬁ
Vo URAAL
( *J(Ne'.'-.' Dehv « <
PLACE: GURUGRAM e NCR /& ( RAJIV PURI)
DATED: 26 April, 2019 N L PARTNER




Artamis Medicare Services Limiled
_Batance Shest as at 31st March, 2019

Particulars Note No. As M T ASAL
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

2.1 33.337.25 30,608 87
494322 4,317.48
22 40248 252.84
8.1 6.50 ;
32 25588 14825
33 32.42 28.51
No 4 £68.80 34095
it non-cuier s - & 3 20374 714.82
Total non-curient assels o A ) 39,854.38 ) 36,452 90
B Current assols
Inventorss 5] £683.70 544 79
7 7,844 06
8 811.00
§ 14.35
3.2 165 98
33 514 70
5 755.55
) B ] 11,093 36
Total Asscls o C=A+B B 50,347.74  45185.04
Eauity and Ligbilities
D Equity
Equily share capilal 10 2,103.50
Clher equity B 1 = 21,00202
Total oruity o - 3 23,105.52
E Liabiities
Non-current lahilities
ial liaboies
12 5,224 61
13 25884
bolities (Nat) 14 1.747.22
Total non-current lizbiiiics B T E 8,440.35 7.331.57
F  Current liabiiities
15 3.787.80 -
'3
{A) Tolal O'_‘f:"a'id.:"_;, dues of Micrs Enterprises 16 82,81 A
ard Small Enlerprizes
16 7,308 74 B,745.74
i i 17 2,337 10 3,516.36
ans 13 855.85 1.078 32
Ciner curent liabiwes B .18 258476 3,007 43
Tatal current liabilities F 17.334.06 14,747 85
Tolal liabilities G=E+F 25,775.20 22,079.52
Total equity and liabiiities H=D+G o 50.847.74
Significant ounting paticles 1
Ses scco ying Nades to Financial Stalemants 2to 43
As par our report of cven date aflached Far and on behall of the Board of Direclirs
& Co LLP of Artemis Madicare Sarvices Limitzd

Dr Devitina Chakravarty
[Executive Directog]
[DIN - 07 197675

i
A\ \! %”x_‘ P
i \{E[ f\ " :‘,},"://:,

Ly L4
2 fiakesh Kaushik
[Company Sscrelary)

Placs : Gurigram Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
Daled: 26th Apdl, 2018 [Chisf Financial Officer)

AT



Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Significant accounting policies 1
Sze accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For SCV & Co. LLP
C“ ""—""d .L“:fu--*:-::!s

3 & Co Ornkar S. Kanwar
/,_"\l_}// -
Ca
- , MNew Delhi
(Rajiv Puri) (_f_i NCR
Partner Q’
Membership No. 084318 \\i "

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 2G5th April, 2019

P @ul-w()- ILM

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artamis Madizare Services Limited

L

[Eve""* ve Ullts_'fffj'

Particulars MNote Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
o o B o Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Income
Revenue from operations 18 54,650.08 50,277.13
Other income 20 391.91 390,76
Total income () _ 55,042.00 T 50,667.89
Expenses
irchases of ph’-\rma.y drugs & medical consumables - 12,940.84 12,083.89
1523 - 145.16 137.15
Changcs in mven*:: ries of Pharmacy drugs,
Medical consumables & Stock in Trade 21 (27.72) (8.31)
Emp cyee benefils 2apense 22 9,887.31 9,044.65
er»*: 23 1,103.82 8456.14
24 1,992.29 1.847.08
25 25,460.37 23,070.53
Total expenses () _51,302.18_ 4142143
Profit before Tax m={-4) 3,738.82 3,546.76
Tax Expense 26
Current Tax 1,377.54 652.32
Defarrad tax 28551 217.42
Total Tax Expense (V) 1,663.05 869.74
Profit for the year V=(Il-1V) 2,076.77 2,677.02
Other comprehensive income
Itams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss gain / (less)
on remeasurement of defined banefit plans (V) (58.65) (17.56)
Deferred tax adjustment on revalustion of land (Vi) 27.11 14.30
Income tax relating fo items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss {Vith) 19.79 6.14
Other comprehensive income for the year 1X = (V1 + Vil - VI “(9.75) 2.88_
Total comprehensive income for the year X=V+IX 2,067.02 2,679.90
Earning Per Equily Share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic (Rs.) 9.87 12.73
Diluted (Rs.) 9.87 12.73

[DiN O?’EC?.A 9 .




Arternis Medicare Services Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2013

(Rs.in lacs)

Particutars - Year Endod
As At
31st March, 2018

Year Ended
As At
31st March, 2018

Cash flow from operaling aclivilles

e gain (nel)
ranl
of |lvr—" as5%

§,350.74

els 2iu5|

(2,327.05;
(48.91)

income lax paid/refund)
Net cash generaled from operaling activites (A)

Cash flow from investing admty

operly, Plant & Eq iprosnt ) CWIP (5.725.70)
sale of Prope nt & Equl 5.12
of /in & r-,-i deposits having orginal maturily of mors then 3 months 633.77

! (8.50)
12748

(4,955 83)

Met cash generated from financing activiles (C)

Netincrease in cash & cash equivaients (A+B+C)
Cash & cash equivalents as the beginning of the yaar
Cash & cash equivalents as the end o the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

85 88

74412

314 32

{314.58)

811.00
As par our report of even &o tachad Far and on behall of the Board of Dire
For SCV & Co LLP of Artemiz Medicare Services Llrruivzl
Charterad Ac

O bizre Mo nel
Onkar S, Kanwar
[C -,‘;-man & D 1-,,5./’/—-"

(Raiiv Puri)
Partner
Membership No. 084318 |

Dated: ZEth April, 2018

LU

Dr. Devhna Chakravarty

[Exacutive Director]
[DIN : 07 137875] /

-R.Jl\t.i' Kaushix
~~ [Company Secr

3,54676

1,847.08
(144 00y
735.55
(5FR.28)

(17.58)
(28.08)
{52.30)
{328.41)
7851
480827

48794
(518
(26.13)
(231.56)
72872
1,253.24
(475.80)
54163
7,200.32
(89.50)

- 7,480.72

(6,132 88)
2873
{595.89)

14400
(6, £57.0 04}

132330

730,85}

(966.86)

(433.18)
c2.98
263.78

83.81

20587
g42.16
{048.18)
26378




Adtemis Madicars Services Limited
Noles 12 Financial Ststerments for the vear ended 315t Masth, 2018

MNate No, 2.1

PROPDICTY, T, ANT AND EQUIRNENT Re. in Lacz
Partioutars o o Fraehold Land * Buiiding** I“‘:L’:if:’ﬂ . Compulers '?__:E& - VEQ‘;’:'::"; Efr::i‘:d': Vehichs e
Cost er deemedd ¢ o%! -
As at 15t Aprd, 2817 s — B PP X T Y T
Adcditicns . 37661 1238 %8 6159 5261 3566 1788 435304

- {80 o) i275) {156 87

Tispotals ! Discarded during the yer -

B nt during the year # -

Ar # D15t March 7098 05858 T
Addtions 370364 5357
Dispatals / Discaded dusing the year - (25€3 (18827

Adjuriment durmg the year ¥ - -

Te2

T 3tzt March 2018

DEFRECIATION

Faadot Apb - P £ I Tiiw T s Sva_ tadeei
Chazan for e year 147, 2752 118.10 101 88 58.04 127774 2484 179654
Dispasabs [ Ditcerded duding ke year . - . (31.80) 5 59 42.71}
As st 812t March 2018 ) . R 18377

Chnarge forihe yoaf {85 89 1870 148 40 T3 138611

Disponals { Disvcarded during the year {6 4% - {47.28)
Aaatatst Masch, 2018 Sl IE T

NFT BOOK VALUE

Aeatziathacn, pe Tt 1 W rE jee0s__  inGseNy EETE O T
[ 3t 3ist March 2018 - LY — Eam T N T L) S a3k

« Under e Previous GAAP {indian GAAP), frechold lang was carried in the talance sheel on the bas
L the date of Liansition.

\o regard surch value as deemed cost

414

*» |ncludas port of the building given on operaling Whase whose cost, depreciztion for the year and WDV al the end of the yesr |s not segregated,

# comprises of borowing cost of Rs. 7.52 Lacs (31 March 2018 :Rs, 4351 Lacy). Tha b
(31 ‘tarch 2018 : Rs 138 59 Lacs) The company capilatised this borrowing cost int
sdjustments in he above note reflscls the amount of borrowing cos! Yransferrad from CVIP

)
HNote N, 2.2

INTANGIBLES ASSETS

Ra. inLlacs
Camputer
Rettwapre

Particutars

Cost ar desmad cott

Ae At dnt Apeil 2017

Addilions

Cuspesa’s [ Disconded durng the vear »

Asat Mzt Maray, 2018

Asditions

Dispasals | Discardad dusing the yeir |

Asat3ist Narch,

AMORTIZATION

At tnt Apel, 2017 o T aan
Chorga for he year 89 54
Dispossls / Discarded &on -
Rl e A
Chame for the year 74 57

Disposals [ Discaried during the yeos

NET BOGH VALUE el

Tix 31 213t Maruh, 2010

Az a1 305 March, 2048

of revaluation performed as on 31.03.2016. The company has slected

sl capiialised during the year ended 31 March 2018 was R 86,62 Lacs
spéal work in-progress {CWIP), The amount of borrowing cost shown as other




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
) - N I o Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Finauncial Asssts
31 Investments (Non-Curreit)
Unguoted Invesiments
Invesiment in Equity instruments (at cost)
investment in Subsidiary Company
i) Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited 6.50
(65,000 (Nil as at March 31, 2018} Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/ each) (all fully paid) .
Total 650 -
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments and market value thercof T B
Agaregale value of unguoled investment 6.50 -
3.2 Loans
Non Current (Unsccured, Considerad gaod)
Sacuiily Deposits 163.89 72.71
Others
Loans & advances to Employses * 91.87 75.54
Total 25586 148.25
Current {Uns
Security Depe 91.18 1.55
Others
Loans & advances to Employses * £8.78 39.25
~ 159.96 100,80
* Loans & advances to Employess inciudes dues
frem Exzcutive Director, officers ste. (Refer Nats 25) 97.50 115.50
(As a part of service condition extended to all its eligible employess)
3.3 Other Financial Assets
Non Current
Fixed Depositin banks having remaining maturity 32.42 25.51
of mare than 12 months (Refer Note 9) —
32.42 28.51
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 16.15 16.¢8
Unbilled Revenie (Accrued operating incems) 455 55 478.25
_ 514.70 T 49494




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notas to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars - As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
o o Rs.inlLacs _Rs.in Lacs N
4 income tax assets
Non Current
Income Tax Recoverable (Net of provision for taxation) 5E8.50 390.95
Total 668.80 390,95
Note Particulars As At 7 As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs.in l.acs
5 Other Assels
Non-Current (Unsacurad, Considerad good)
Capital Advances 93.42 45286
Amount paid under protest/dispute - 500,00
Deposit with Service Tax Authorities 73.26 64.64
Prepaid Expenses 37.08 105.02
Total 20374 ; _7714.92 _
Current (Unsecured, Considered gond)
Advances / other receivables * 55.69 34.39
Bzlances with statutery / government authoritias 25.11 73.43
Prepaid Expeanses 140.34 32.09
Export Incentive receivable 534.41 §77.36
755.55 ~ 71721

*includes of Rs. 20.77 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. Nil ) dus from the private limited campany, in which director of

the company is direclor.

‘Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
o Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
6 Inventories

(Valuad at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Stock of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Cosumables 605.03 57413
Stock in Trade (Pharmacy and Other ltems) 30.43 33.61
Stores & Spares 58.24 37.05
Total ~893.70 644.79

W¥+



Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Stataments for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
B Rs.in Lacs ) Rs.in Lacs
7 Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

Current - at amortised cost

Considersd good 7.844.08 5,556 40
Credil Impaired 210.74 171.32

Less: Allowancze for doubtful debits (expecied credit (210.74) (171.32)

7,844.08 ~ 5,556.40
o 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
- Duzs from Direclors . 0.48 . 2,98

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company appliss Expacted Credit Loss (ECL) modeal for measurement and
recognition of impairmiant foss towards expected risk of delays and defauit in collection.

Mo single customer accounted for more than 1G% of the revenue as of 31st March, 2019 & 31st March, 2018. There is
no significant concentration of credit risk.

The Company ws2s judgements in making certain sssumplions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of thass
trade receivables, bassd on the Company's historical experiznce towards potential biing adjusiments, delays and
defaulls at the end of each reporting period. The p on matrix used to compute the expectad credit loss allowance
for different categaries of trade receivables is as follows.

Agsing Expecled Credit Allowance %
0-1 year o 0% --50% -
1-2year 25% - 100%

i i 50% -- 100%

Mare than 3 years 50% -- 100%

The Company has rec

there is no further pro nrequired in excess of the allowance for doubtful debt

=d an allowance of Rs. 210.74 lacs towards trads receivables. The Management belizves that

The mcvement in allowance for expected credif loss in respeclt of frade receivables during the year was as follows:

As At As At
Allowance for expeciad cradit loss B 31st March. 2018 31st March, 2018
Opsaning balance 171.32 180.40
Credit loss creatad freversed) 3042 (28.08)
Closing belance 210.74 171.32

The Company's exposurs to currancy risks relaled fe trade receivables ars disclosad Refer Note No. 35 (ii).




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs __Rs,inlacs
8 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 744.12 20587
Cash on hand £5.88 53.91
811.00 - 269.78
“Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2018
- Rs. In Lacs Rs. InLacs
9  Other Bank Balances
Fixad Deposit in banks having original maturity of
more than 12 months and remaining maturity of 314.39 948.16
less than 12 months *
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of
more than 12 months and remaining maturity of 32.42 29.51
more than 12 months *
Amount disclosed under Other Non-Current Assats (32.42) (28.51)
Total 314.39 848.16

* Given as security of Rs. 91.86 Lacs ( As at31st March, 2018 Rs. 52.23 Lacs ) to secure bank guarantes issued to

Customers.




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year endad 31st March, 2619

Note Paiticulars
No.

As At
31st March, 2018

As At
, 2018

31st March

Rs. in Lacs

___ Rs.inlacs

10  Eguity Share Capital:
Authorized Shares (in nos.)

25 000, 000 (Previous Year 25 000 000)
Equily Shares of Rs 10/- Each

lssued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares (in nos.)

21,035 00F (Previous Year 21,035 040)

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up

Total issusd, subscribed and fully paid up capital

2,103.50

’ 2,103.50

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

Reconciliation

2,500.00

2,103.50

2,103.50

‘As At
31st March, 2018
Nos. Rs. in Lacs

As At
31st March

, 2018

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares iszusd during the year

Shares bought back during the year

o

21,035,000

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

~ 21035000  2,103.50

Nos. Rs.in Lacs
2,103.50 21,035,000 2,103.60
21,035,000 2,103.50

b. Terms/rights attachad to Equity Shares

The compan
voie per shars, v
MNumber of shares heid.

v ha

in the event of liquidation of the company, the holder

distributio

holders.

¢, Shares held by holding / ullimate holding company and [ or their subsidiaries / associates:

s only one clase of equity shares having a par vatue of Rs. 10 par share. Each holder of equily shares is entitied to one
vhere voling is held by show of hands. In case of Poll each holder of equity share is entili=d to Number of voles against

s of equity shares will ba entilied to receive reinaining ssccls of the company, after
i of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equily shares held by the equity share

Name of the Share_ho!der

As At 31st March, 2019

As At 31st March, 2018

No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs

No. of Shares

Rs. in Lacs

Artemis Health Sci
{inciuding nominee shares)

ences Limited - holding company

21.035.000 2,103.50

21,035,000

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder o __As At 3ist March, 2019 As At 31st March, 2018
No. of Shares | % of Holding No. of Shares | % of Holding |
Artamis Health Sciences Limited - holding company
ding nominee shares) 21.035.000 100.00% 21.635.000 100.00%




Arternis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars ' As At As At
No. 31st March, 2619 31st March, 2018
- Rs. in Lacs ____Rs.inlacs
11 Other Equily:
Securities Premium
Balance as per last financial stalements 11,132.50 11,132.50
Closing Balance (A) 11,132.50_ T 1143250
Revaluation Reserve
Ralznce as per last financial statements 6,540.70 §,525.40
Lezs : Deferred tax adjusiment on revajuztion 27.11 14,30
Closing Balance {B) B 5,667.81 6,540.70
Retained earnings
Balance as per las! financial stalements 3,328.82 60322
Add : Profit / {Loss) for the year 2.076.77 2,677.02
Add : Other comprehensive income arsing from (36.63) {11.42)
re-measurement of defined benefit obiigation
nel of income tax I ——— ——— —
Balance at end of year (C) 538873 - 3,328.82
Total Other Equity ( A+ B +C) 23,058.04 _21,002.02_

Description of reserves

A, Security Premium

ecurilies preqium is used lo recard the premium on fssue of shares. The same Is to be utilised in accardance with the

pravisians of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

B. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Resarve represents freehold land revalued as on 31st March, 2016 as per independent valuer repon.

C. Retained Earmnings
Relalned earings represents the profils that the Company has eamsd till date, less any transler of ganeral reserve,

dividends or other dislibutions to ghareholders &}

(e
e

12\



Artemis Medicare Ssrvices Limited

Statvment of Changes in guity

Fquily Share Capilal

Particulars . T Hotes R ™

Balance as at Apeli 1, 2017 10 2,103 R0

Change aquity share capital during the year 10 "

-E! J-T—mr-? as at March 31, 2013 7 o A 2,?:?“5“‘5-

CH n oouily share capilal dusing the yea 16 "

Balance as at March 31,2018 R 24030

Othar Equity

_ _ Tl Resarves and surpius itams of OCl

Particutars Notes Ganeral Secutity Revaluation Retalnad Remeasuremonts Total
reserve P Ressrve earnings of the net deflned

beneflt plans

- 287702 - 2817

Frofit for the yaar 11 y "

Fita
g

na (OCI) (riet of tax} 1 . . - - (38.38)

Balancs as al April 1, 2017 11 - 11,132.50 6,526.40 677.53 {14.41) 18,322,
.02
raviauation 1 - - 14,37 - - 14,

sive Income (OCI) (et of 15x) 11 . = 5 < (11.42) (11
Balance as at March 31, 2018 11 . 11,132.50 6,540.70 | 3,354.65 (25.83} 21,002,

Proft for the year 1 - - 2.078.77 - 2.076.
Deforred tax adivsimant on revisvation ik - . 27.11 - - 27.

12

30

42)
02

77

11

lance as at March 31, 2019 1 - 11.132.50 £.567.81 | 543142 [62.69) 23,053

»% 1o Financial Staloments 143

n betialf of the Board ¢

fale allachied

SOV ECo LLP | of Ademnis Medicars Sorvice !
Chisrtored e f;\r* g
t {' 7/“[’-|‘~' DO023I5N F NS000ES # 'g\ *

Cnkar S, Kanwar iy Dr. Duwilna Chakravarly
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i"ﬁ"‘l\:_i—;d';!'l Kaushik
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S~ [Company Secrelary]
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i 26th April, 2018
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Artemnis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year endad 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars
No.

As At

31st March, 2019

Rs. in Lacs

12 Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings
Term Loans
From Banks
- indian Rupaa toans from Banks (secured
at amaoddised cost)

From Oihers
- Indian Rupee loan from NBFC (Unsacursd)

Deferred Payment Liabiiities {cecured)

Total
Current Maturity
Term Loans
From Bapks
- Indian Rupae loans from Banks (gecured)
(at amaortized cost)
From Others
- Indlan Rupes loan from NBFC (Unsecured)
Deferred Payment Liabitities (secured)
Transferred to Gther Financial Liability (Mote 17)
Total

1. Indian Rujpee Loans from Banks include :

a) Term loans of Rs, 7395.51 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 7177.91 Lacs) from

5,345.29

2,121.65

31.03

2,162.68

13218

2,284.86

(2.284.85)

2ch

20N

As At
31st March, 2018
Rs.in Lacs

~ 5224.61

57.45
2,137.88
3,865.88

(3,065.88)

ted Bank caries intzrest as

linked with Baze Rate of banks.The loans are secured by the chaige on enlire maovatie fixed sssels on pari passu

basis with exsting lender, and Sscond charge on curei d a

the Corporate Guarantes of Artermis Health Sciences Limit

b)

exclusive charge on the vehicles financed out of the said term loan. The rate of inlorest

to Bank's Prime Lending Rate (PLR).

2. Indian Rupee loan from NBFC include :

Unzecured loan of Rs, 31.03 Lacs (As at 31st mar“h
rate of 10.49% par annum, payabie in instalments,

3. Deferred Payment Liability :

Deferred payment liabifity of Rs. 132,18 Lacs (As at 31st March, 20
-al aquipments and secured against letter of credit ’"";—u by HDFC Bank Limited, ag per non fund bazed faciity
with existing lendar, and Second charge on curment

rad by the Corporate Guar ant»:e of Artemis Health Scien

meaai
with charge on entire movable fixed
assele. Furlher, these loans are co

_LS on parl passu

[Repayment Schedule

Secured Loan
Termn Lezn - HDFC Bank Limited
Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bark Limited

Unsecured Loan
Unsecured Loan - CISCO Systems Capital {india) Pvt, Lid.

Deleried Payment Liabili

018 Rs.1783.95 Lacs) is en azcount of pu

sse ‘3, Furiher, those loans are coliaterally secured by

Vehicle Loans of Rs. 75.52 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 45.83 Lacs) lrom Scheduled Bank carries interest as
on afpresaid loan is linked

018 Rs, B2.48 Lacs and) from NBFC carries effeclive Interest
= per repayment schedile below,

mces Limited,

FY 202¢-21 FY 2021-22
2,090,785 2,080.74
2219 21.80

Total

)ﬂ_,,. w.,__




Artemis Medicars Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year endad 31st March, 2619

Nete Particulars ) As At As At
No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2018
. — Rs, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Nen-Current Current Nan-Cursent Current
13 Provisions
Prevision for Employee Benelits
Laave Benefils 153 B3.15 127.40 61.85
Gratuily 330.78 101.92 23274 74.58
{Refer Nol= 34)
Other Provisions
] 670.78 - 541.45
496.96 855.85 359.84 1,078.32
N e T o Rs. In Lacs
Note Deferred tax assats / (liabilities) in As at Credit/ Credit/ (Charge) to As at 31st
No. relation to : April 1, 2017 {Charge) to Other March,
Profit or loss Comprehsanslve 2018
Income

14 Deferred Tax Assats / (Liabilities) (Net)

wmes recognised in atatement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

(3,715.60) (181.35) 14.30 (3.654.19)
s 514.88 (185 92) - 32838
r Doubtful Detids
0s8) (9.13) = 59.87
15.94 6.14 173.57
(582.75) - -
£5232 - 1.555.356
(1.13) (0.70)
Cihers 81.13 - 29.50
T (1,550.24) — (217.42) _ 2044 _(1,747.22)
tote: Deferred tax sosels and deferred taa lizbinnes have besn offsst as 1hay ae governad by the same tavation laws,
o Rs.In Lacs
Note Deferred tax asssts / (fiabiiities) in As at 31st Credit/ Cradit/ (Charge) to As at 31st
No. relationto . March, 2018 (Charge) to Other March,
Profit or loss Comprehensive 2019
Income

14 Deferrad Tax Assets [ (Liabilitles) (Net)
#ing is the analysis of deferred 12

sels /liabities recognised in slatement of profil and less and other comprehensive income

(3.854.18) 144 08) 27.11 (4,011.18)
i 328.08 {84.55) - 23443
e for
d cre 59.87 13.77 - 73.64
Employes Be 173.57 4497 19.78 238,33
MAT Credit Entifement 1,565.35 (776.13) * - 779.22
i 5 (0.73) (4.35) - {5.06)
25.80 63.20 - 83.09
(1,747.22) {897.47) — 46.90 _ {2,597.51)
=rred tax labiliies have been offset as hey are governed by the same taxaton laws,
on forming part of Current Year Tax of Rs.811.67 Lacs,
Nota Particulars ) - As At As At

31st March, 2018
Rs.In Lacs

No. 31st March, 2019
Rs. In Lacs

15 Borrowings

3,787.60

ing capital purp



Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
_ - Rs.in Lacs _ Rs.in Lacs
16 Trade payables .
Total Qulstanding dues of Micro Enterprizes and Small
Enterprizes (Refer Note 32) 62.81
Total Quistanding dues of Creditors other than Micro
Enterprizes and Small Enterprises 7,306.74 6,745.74
Total ~ 7,369.55 _ 674574
"Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
17  Other Financial Liabilities (secured)
Current
Term Loan {current maturily) (Refer Nole 12) 2,152.58 2,137.88
Deferred payment liability (current matirity) . 132.18 _+,728.00
(Refer Note 12) 2,284.86 3,865.88
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings e 52.24 50.48
5224 50.48
Total ' 2,337.10 ~ 3916.36
‘Note Particulars A - As At o As At -
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
- ~ Rs. in Lacs Rs.inLacs
18 Other Liabilities
Current
Advance from Patients { Others 1,217.88 945,70
Taxes payable * aps.23 318.83
Security Deposits 537.68 530,11
Deferred Government Grant * * 78.98 -
Other Payable **~ 843.90 1,207.79
Total 2,984.76 300743
*  Taxes payable includes Withhaolding Tax, Goods & Services Tax,
** During the year company has obtained EPCG License against import of fived asssts The company has recognizad this grant

as deferred income at fair value, which is being amortised in propartion to fulfilment of Export Obligation (Refer nale 388).

*** Other payable includes payments due to employess, due on account of capilal llems, contribution of PR, ESl ete.

,,7'2;:‘\»_ 2
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Artemis Medicare Services Limited

MNotes to Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31st March, 2019

Note Partlculars Yoar Ended Year Endod
Mo, 31st March, 2013 31st March, 2018
o . Rs.in Lacs Rs.In Lacs
19 Revenue from Operalions
Sale of Services
Rzvenue from Health Care Services 52,453.48 4735433
Sale of Goods
Sa'z of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 914.28 953.49
Salz of Slock in Trade (Pharmacy) 189,82 181.48
Other Operating Income
3462 34.41
650.73 108.68
612,60 925.97
no longer re 320.30 695,36
Salg of Scrap 13.656 12.41
Total 54,650.09 T 5027743
Note Particulars T Yoar Endad Year Ended -
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs
20 Other Income
Inleres! Income 127.48 144.00
- From Bank depasits G8.88 43.18
- From Finanzial cariied at amorticcd cost 57.62 11.99
- From Gliers 0.3 83.82
Income from oulsource activities (Cafeleria, Parki 105.37 96.74
Nen-Operaling Income (nel of reimburse 115.05 101.33
nge Gain (Net) 44.01 485
Total B 391.91 390.76

| 2.6



Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars " Year Ended Year Ended
Nao. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2018
_ _ Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
21 (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumabies
Inventories at the beginning of the year 574.13 577.73
Invertories at the end of the year 805.03 (30.90) 574.13 380
(Increase) ! Decrease in Inventeries of
Stock in Trade
lnvanionas at the beginning of the year 3361 2170
Invantories at the end of the year 3043 3.18 3381 (11.81)
Total T {21.72) _ (831)
Note Particulars - Year Ended Year Endad
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2618
o Rs.In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
22 Employse Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 8,951.98 8,414 60
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 355.38 331.686
Gratuity Expanses 101.58 73.46
Employee Welfare Expenses 268.37 224,83
Total ~ T9887.31 ~ 9,044.85
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
23 Finance Costs
Intersst expense on financial liabities measured at amortised cost
- Onteim Loans 817.97 573.27
- Defered Payment £68.39 163.57
Other Interest Expense 3.64 2.1
Other Borrowing Cosls 487 4.87
Bank Charges 208.96 201.72
Total ~ 1,103.83 846.14
Not= Particulars T Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2819 31st March, 2018
= Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
24 Deproeclation and amortization expense
Degrecialion of property, plant and equipment 1,917.72 1,796 .54
Amortization of intangible assets 74.57 50.54
Total 199229 T 1,847.08

\2 %



Artzmis Madicare Services Limitad

Notes to Financial Statements for the year endad 31st March, 2018

Tetal

Note Particulars T Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
o _ Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
25 Othear expenses
Consumption of stores & spares 133.23 150.26
Powsr & Fuel 1,102.35 1,107.12
Rent - Lease Rent 242.99 446.36
uipment Hire Charges 147.59 176.3¢C
Repzirs and Maintenance
- a :}-.inery 908 .45 830.79
- Buildings 147.97 21.20
- Others 168.02 188.20
225 & T 4263 50.85
Legal & Pr onal Consultation Fees 448.35 376.56
Merger &} 112.1¢ -
Fee paid tc S 11,842.81 10,781.83
Printing & St Ty 148.04 ‘ 162.74
alient Faciitty Malrtenance 732.91 7658.85
Patent Food & Beverages Expenses 548.28 660.18
s 387.55 325.77
253.61 270.96
6,147.54 5,188.76
- 7.08
614.69 541.84
385.37 348.18
ls Amerilizs 221.52 242.02
Communication Expenses 70.58 75.16
Charity & Conation 42.74 40.00
: 48.92 42.14
r 53.00 58.16
& Expenses 0.52 0.39
s Remunaralion
- Audit Fee 11.51 10.38
- Tax Audit Fee 2.88 2.60
ces 5.20 8.00
s Sitting Fess 14.32 13.08
e 60.64 ‘4
paper & Pericaicals 22.74 10.50
Bzd Debis VWitlen Off 17.81 17.01
Aliowance for Doublfui Debis 39.42 -
35 on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and
ipment (Nat) 210.51 78.51
Migcellanzous Expanses 2868 12.37

_ 23,070.53_




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note 26

Particulars

INCOME TAX

Year Ended

Year Ended

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Amount recegnised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Tax
(a) In respect of the current year 1,377.54 652.32
(b) Earlier years tax provision wrilten hack i -

1,377.54 652.32
Deferred Tax
(a) In respect of the current year 285.51 217.42
Tax expense recognised through statement of profit and loss 1,663.05 _ B69.74
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year 46.90 20.43
Tax credit recognised through Other Comprehensive Income 46.90 20.43
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciied to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 3,739.82 3,546.76
Enacted income tax rate in India 34.944% 34.608%
Income tax calculated 1,308.84 1,227.46
Effect of expenses not deductible in determing taxable profit 358.21 (359.62)
Others - 11.91
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit & loss //// ~Ja\ 1,683.05 869.74

o W 7 b
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Artemis Medicare Services Limiled
Notss to Financlal Statements for the yoar ended 31st March, 2013
Nete No,

1.1 Nature of nperations
s Madirare Service

ralﬂd on 18ih Lay, 2004, The Company is engagad in the
need its comaercial oporalion by setting up Artemis

7

1.2 Application of New and revized Ind ASs
As al the dalz of suthoriaation of the fir
have =sad by MCA but are not yet effe

s not applied the following revisions to the Ind AS that

IND AS 116 Leases :
ch 30, 2018, Mirslry ¢ fpo otified ’md A3 118, Lassas lnd AS 118 wil T \'e-r'-= the z:-f:'d!'ig leases

, Ind AS 17 te ? Standar, he ponciples for the recognill urement,
actie, the aru, the lessor Ind AS 116 ir-im-;. a gingla
ols and lial ~ a term of mare than twelve
”,r» ating leass e-pemaz a‘e c.!" rgad Lo the stalement of Profit &
23, Ing AS 118 substantially carries forward the
sn of Ind AS 118 is annual periods beginning on or

»:wrinxr\ Iu .03717 Th“ef‘f::‘ ive d

:3, Changes in Accounting

2 presanted applying ind AS 8 Accounting Pa

tivaly, with the cumuialive effect of inilially applying the Stendard recognized at the dale of

had besn applied since the commencement dals, but discounted at lessee incremanial
cation or

iabiiity. adjusted by the ame

ediately hefors the date of initial app!

it of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that leass
n. Certain practical expadients are availabie under

geiced andert Ind AS 17 inu
tioth the methods.

ion of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the 'Modificd Relrospective

wantin the company's financial elalements,

The sffect on

Ind AS 17 Appondix G Unueﬂpiuly over Incoma Tax Treatments :
On March 3 22 ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncartainly over Income Tax Trealments

nination of laxable proft (of 1oss), tax bases, unused lax josses, unused lax

some {ax treaiments un 0g e the appendix,

cradits and tax rales, when thers is uncerdainly ©

companing nead to deleiming the -ei’.whry’ of the raovant ax aulhaiity acc ach tax treatment or group of tax

ssed or plan to use in thelr Income tax filing which has to ba considered to compute the

ted valus of the tax reatment when determining laxable profit (fax loss), tax basos, unused lax

veed lax coadits and tax rales,

clive approach — Undar this approach, Appendix C will
= with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes

aly with cumulative effect of initially ap

atirits twe cossible methiods of transition - 1) Full retrosp

¥C DOs a

sactively io each pricr reporting period presented in &

siimales and E

r3, without using lindsight and i) Relrospacti
ity an initial appication, without adjusting comparatives,
dz baginning on or afier Apdl 1, 2012, The Company will

d by adjusting @
on of Ind AS 12 Appen
pril 1, 2019 and has de

% Cls annual ¢
d (¢ adjust the cumutative effectin og

on the dete of initial appiicalion

sy

.t\p,.,. 1. 2018 wilhout adiusiing comparalives
The effzct on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendiy C would ba ins

ant in the company's financial stalemenls
Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income faxss .

On March 30, 2018, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs is
accouniing rdludt' nd distribuli

dments te the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxas', in connection with

The & s of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income

or efuily according 0 whes

ment danifios that an entity sh
ra

the enlity Gngmﬁ.:y il:\ :

alion of this amendme pariod beginning on or afler April 1, 2018, The Company does not have any |

Effective date for applic
on account of this amendment.
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yoa Banelits', in connection with accounting for plan

The amendments require an entity:

-to use updaled sssumplions to determing current service cost and rat interzz! for the remainder of the pariod after a plan amendmeant,
curailment or s=ttiement; and

ogmise in profit or 10ss as pant of past service cosl, or a gain or luss on settfement, any reduction in a surp'us, even if that surplus was

-toreco
not prev

isly recognised because of the impact of the asset ceifing,

Effective dute for application of this amendment is annual pericd beginning on or after Apiil 1, 2019, The Company does nol have any impact
on account of this amendment.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of compliance
The financial sialements have been prepared in accordance of indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) not
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) read together with Companizs {IND-AS) Rules, 2015,

= under section 133 of the

The financiz! stalements were authenticated by the Company's Beard of Direclors an 26th Apdl, 2019, Delails of the accounting policles are
included in Note 1,

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

The finarc’al statemants have been propared on the historical sost basis except for certain financial lnstruments that are measured at fair
valiies at the end of each repo pariod.

ods and services,

Historicat Cost is generally based on the fair value of the conslderalion given in axchang

Fair value is the price that would be recaived to sell an assel or paid to lransfer a liabiiity in an ordery transaction between market participants
al the measurement dalz, regardiess of whether that prica is directly obse on technique. In estmaling
the fair valie of an assel or a liabifily, the Company taken into scc ics of tha assel or liability if markel parlicipants would

& those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the maasursment date. Fair value for measurement and / or

csure purposes in thess financial siale

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value maasurements are calegorized into Lavel 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to whish the
inputs to the fair value mossurements are cbservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entraty, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadiustad) in aclive markels for identica! assets or labltes that the entity can access at the
measurement dals;

«  Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoled prices included within Leve! 1, that are observabls for the assels or abiities either diractly or
indiroctly; and

«  Level 3inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or i

c) Property, Plant and Equipmient (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated al cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), loss ascumulated dapreciation and
impairment loss, if any Cost comprises the purchase price and any altributabie cost of bringing the property, plant and equipment
to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relaling to acquisition of propery, plant and squipment which takes
substantial pesiod of fime to gat ready for its intended use ars efso includad to the extent they relale te the peried tll such propedy,
piant and equipment are ready to be put to use,

oL

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the casa prics aquivalent at the recognition dete. If payment is deferred beyond normal
crecht ters, the difference between the cash price squivalent and the total payiment is recognised as interest over the petiod of credit, uniess
such interest is capitalised as per borrowing cost.

The Company ideniifies and determines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and aquipment, if they have useful
life that is matedally differant from that of the remaining asset, as per Schedule I of Compnniss Acl, 2013,

d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Cegreciation cn ail of the property, plant and equipment is grovided using the siraight line met!
Companies Act, 2013 and / or useful life estimated by management su
management belisves that depreciation rales currently used fairly reflect its esti
and equipment.

+d 8t the rates prescribed by Schedule Il of the
o dent sssessmen. The
ful fves and res'dial valuss of propeny, plant

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment costing fess than Rs. 5,000/«
Tha company is depreciating property, plant and equipment costing less than Re 5,0000- over their useful fife same as grescribad by 8cheduls
Il to the Companiss Act, 2013,




Asscts Uscful Life of property, |Useful Life of property, plant

plant and equipment as per and equipment as per
Schedule I Management supperted by

Technical Valuer's Estimate

Bulidings : B

AN YWears

Plant & Machinery

trie Madi
Cihei M
- Oithar

art & Machinasy;

|Offica Equlpments
Computers & Data Processing Units

(. - Deskiop & Laplops| 3 Wears ;

L. - o i 5 Years

Vehleles . . BYears [ —
Furnituras & Fittings ol 10Years | === —
Electrical Installations & Equipments — 10 Years

Lzasehold Improvements including renovation done on shared facilities have bean depracialad as per the useful iife ascertained
r over (he primary period of lease / conlract, whichever is shorler.

¢} intangible Assots

Inangitie ired recognition at cost lezz accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairent ny.
E cash or cash equivatents paid or the fair vatue of other o sration glven to acquire an asset at the time of its

the
lion ‘or constry

rindian Ac

04, of, when applicable, the amount zitnkutad to that asselwhen Initialiy recogs d in aecordance with the spacific

unting Standards

RN e
reguirements of o

of 2oftwars is amertized over a paiicd of 3-8 yaars, being the estimated uzeful life as per the managemen astimales,

on a sl

le assels ars amort ahit fins Lasls cvai their estimated vaeful iife of six years.

ction ar proguction of an property, plant and equipment that necessanily takes
god ready for ta intended use or sale are ca -od a5 part of the cos! of the respective propery, piant and

3 H P F ¥

are expensed inthe period they oc g costs corsist of inleres) and other costs that an entily

Borrowing costs d
a substanial perio
ment All o
imcurs in cona

it {he

g} Impatrment

Wie and intargible sssets to determine whether
e is 2ny in .2l factors that those assets Rave sufferod an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
e recoverable m order to determing the exlent of the impainme: s {if any). When itis nolt possitie {0
calimale the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimalos the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assal balangs, Whon a reason and consistent hasis of allocalion can be identified, corporate sssels are aiso aliocaled o individual
cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generaling unite for which a reasonable and consistent
alacation basis can be identified.

Althe end of eact gdod, (e company reviews the carmylng amo

assels not yel avallable for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
! i
wpaired,

uselul livas and infar
' that the assat may be

Intangible assets with ind
whenever thero is an indicalior

tis lhe

higher of fair value lezs costs =2l and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash
ng a pre-ta cate that reflects curient markal assessmanis of the time valus of monay
vthe eelimates of fulure cash flows have not been adjusted.

ing unif) is estimaled to be less than lts carrying amo unl, the carrying amaunt of the
mpairrant o3 is racognised immediately In the statement of profit

=
=
m
2
' 4
b §
-3
a8
F
i
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‘.';‘
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i
b ]
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2
@
g
P

W

& 10838,

nilly reverses, he carrying amount of the assst {ora cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised

When an impairment jos
3 unt doss not excead the carrying amaunt that wouid have been

-4
of g recovarablia amoint, but so that the incraased carrying ame

recogrisad immediatoly In the statemant of profit and loss,

h) Leases

Leases ara classified as finance laases whanever he le of the loass ransfer substantiaily all the fsks and rewards
of ownorship to the lessae, All othar leases are class/fad as oporating leases.




YWhare the Compary is the lesses

Lenses where the lossar effectvely retins substantially all the risks and henefils of swhership of lhe lsased items ars classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenss in the statement of profit and loss on a stralght-line basis over the lease
term. Whiere the rentals are struclurad soely to increasa in line with expacted general inflation to compenaala for the lessor's axpactad
Infiationary cost increases, such increases are tecognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising undsr

opsraling leases are recognisad as an expensa in the period in which they are Incurrad.

Leases where the lessor effeclively ransfers substantiaily all the risks and bensfits of cwrarship of the asset are classified as finance leases
and are capitalized at the inception of the lease lerm at the jower of 1ha fair value of the lased property and present value of minimum lease
payments, Lease payments are apportioned botween the finance charges and reduction of the lease liabiiity s¢ as o achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining batance of the llabilty, Finance charges are recognized as finance cosls In the slatement of profit and loss,
Lease management fees, legal chargos and other Initial direct costs of lease are capilalized.

Whawe the Cornpany is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transler substantially all the risks and banefits of swnership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Assels subject fo operating lzases are included in PPE. Rental income on oparaling leasa is recognized in the statement of profit
and 'oss on a straighi-line basiz aver the lease term. Whaere the rentals are struchired solely to Incresse in ling with expactad gensral
inflalion to compansate for the company’s expactad infiafionary cost increases, such incresses ame recognised in the year in which such

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expenss in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs inzurrad in negetiating and
aranging an opsialing lease are added to the cairying amount of the leased assels and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease

1) Inventories

Inventorles of Pharmacy Drugs & Other ltems, Medical Corsumables and the Slores and Spares are vaiued at lower of cost and net
reclizable value. Costis determined on weighted averags basis,

23 coat of plrchase and other costs Incurred to bring
hisd average basis,

Traded goods are valuesd at Jower of cost and net realissble value. Costs in
inventories to their present locations and conditions. Costis determined onwe'g

Net realizable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cotrse of business, less estimated costs nacessary lo make the sale.
J) Revenue recognlton
The Company derives revenue primarily fom Heallhcare Sarvices through opsiating of muiti-speciality Hospital.

Effective Apiil 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Conlracts with Cuslormers” using the cumulative ¢atch up transition
method, appiied to contracts that were not completed a5 of April 1, 2018, In accordance with the cumudative catch-up transition mathad, the
comparatives have not been retrospactively adjusted, The following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accou policies related
to revenue recognition, The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was ineignificant as the revenus is of short term nature and performance
obiigations are satisfied upon defivery of servica/goods,

Revenue is measured at the transaction prics. Revenue is reduced for relisns, irade ailowances for deduction, rebates, value added taxes
and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Swlo of Pharmacy Drizgs and Modten? Sipplos inclinding Tratted Goods

Revenue is recognized 2s and when Fharmacy Orugs, Modical Supplies and Traded goods ars sold, Revenue from the sale of Pharimacy
Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded good are recognisad when contre! of the goods has passad to the buyer i e. at the point of sale /

to e cuslomar at an amoeunt that refiects the consideration to whizh the Company expects to be entiled in exchange for those goods,
Sale is nel of sales relurns, discounts and gocds & services tax.

Itz froen Cperations

Revenue is recordad when the porformance cbiigation are satisfied. For ouitpatient customers services ars simultanecusly received and
vonsumad by the palient. For inpatient customers, revenus is recognized as serviced are performed ever the period. Revenue for the
angoing sarvices at the reparting date is recognised as ynbited revanye, The income is 3tated net of discount and price diffsrences,

a8 per worms of contract,

Interes!
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis laking inlo account the amount outstanding and the applicable inlerest rate,

Jncome fom Nursing Hostel
Revenue is recognized as par conlraciual arrangerment with nursing staff using the homal faciives,

fcome trom Loase Rentais & Quisourced Foaciities
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the ler~s of laaze agreements ontered inlo with the respeclive lessees

¢ front Sory Scheme (SEIS)
nooma fram 'Sery ™ india Scheme' is recognized on acerua! 5asiz as and when eligible services are performed and
converiible foreign exchange is received on a net basis

Fin

frcomie fronh £ cal R
Income from cliical re
agreemaonts,

rch is recognised as and when the senvices are rendersd in accordance with the terms of the respective




At the end of each reporting pariod

i) Monetary flems denominaled in foreign currencies ae jetranslated at the rales prevaiing al that date,
i} Non-mane! wiencies are relranslated at the rates prevaiting at the date when
{he fair

iransiated.

T

jii} Non-mo

od in which they arise except exchange
ich are included in the cost of

velve manths of receiving services are clsssified as shori-term employse bensfils, Thess benefis
8 Py
n‘nd anvth of short-term emp oyee benelils to be pald in exchange for employee

WhIZH an entity pays spaciied contibutions to separate enlity and has no
fied C'b'ig:i?unﬁ o au:ls empf‘,gw:: p"' !dun furd and employee state

on plan. The Campany's

e employes rendars the relaled

) n plan is pos
1 4e pay any further amour
to Govarniment adminish
conlributions ara recognized as an &

ot of profit and r_iurir.g the p;-ricd inwv

Dedined benafil plans
5 gra'r_'ily benelit scher

p =':y s nel .‘-! gal'ﬁn in respect of a defired tanefit plan is
nad for sarvizes in the current and pricr perio
aticn under the plan is performad p

199
ne it cresent valus, The calou
tad upit credit method.

on of Ccmpany's ot

Hing changs in benelit that rolales to past service or the gain or

! it in futuire servics pericds or receive
Hionat ngH 1o avall the leave, the benefitis ass fied as a
rsated absences in the pariod in which the employes renders
iz of independent actuaiial valuation using the projecled unit

™ employ

'»‘ The obligation is mce

m) Income taxes

Incama tax expense represents the sum of the tax currenlly payables and deferred tax.

iffers from 'profil before lax’ as reportad in the slalemsnt of
in olher yoars and Hems thal are nevar taxabiz or
an enactod or substantively enacted by the end of the

cable profit for the year, Taxatie pi
yng or expanse thal arg taxabie or
d tax laws that have b

anca wilh the fncome-tax Act, 15561 enacted

t=d to be paid to the tax authorilies in accord
dict ons where the Group cperales

differercas balwesn the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilies in the financ lal slaloments and the

scogiize
o pu,shfm of tanshle piofil

rally recognized for all laxable iem; srary differences, Deferred lax assels are ganerally 1 ized for all

et 10 (e extent thal it is probable that taxable profits will be availables sgainst which thoso deduclible temparary

dm:-ft'l'- ces can be

-4 ar subsianiively enactad at the balancs shest dale, Deferred lax assels and
tax assets agains! curvent tax lia 5. Deferred lax

t fulure laxahle income will be aval'able against which
rbed depreciation or carry forward lax losses, all

cralos and lax
ally enfurc
au-.,: te 1‘ @ exdent, that ‘hr‘re is reasona ertainty that suff-»
s whets the r:uﬂp«:n; "a_ unab
is virlual cartainty suppo 1g evidence

(

Defeired taxis nu-

o @

taxable profits



The casrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and rediced to the extent that is no
longer probatle thal sufficient taxable profits will be avaliable to allow all part of 2ssels to be recoversd.

Defaired (ax Is measured basad on tax rates and tax laws enacled or substantively enacled by the end of the reporting period,
Defarred tax nesels and deferred ta ez are offset, If a legally enforceshls right exs!s to 58t off current tax assels against
currenl tax lisbililes,

iy Curpent and deferied iax for the yoar

Current and deferred tax are recognized In the stalement of profil ard loss, except when
in gther comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are 5
comprehensive income or dioclly in equity respactively,

they retalz to flems thal are recognized
scognized in other

n) Expenditure en new projects

2 incurred during construction parl

Expenditure directly r=laling to construction activity is capitalized. Indirec
the exponditure ig indireclly refaled o construc

capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to extant {0 which the =
is incidental therelo Other indirect expenditure {including borrowing costs) i 2d during the constiucton period which is not
: the construction activily nor s incidental thereto is charged o the Stalement of profit & loss

o} Earnings Per share

”
'
2 i

O

Baslc carmings per shace Is being calouated by dividing r {including prior pedod ftems, if any) altributable o equity

nat profit or loss for the year
sharehalders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during th

@

arx.

For the purpose of caleulating dituted earnings per share, the nel profit or ces for the year allribidable 1o equity sharehciders and the weighted
average number of shares outslanding durlng he yaar are adiveted for the offects of all diulive polential equity shares.

p) Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and ‘the normal time botween acquisition of assets and their reaisation in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its asse!s and liabilities os

current and non-current,

q) Financial Instrument

Financial 23sote and finanzial liabiites are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractial provisions of the instruments.

Financ'al assets and financlal labiifies are initially measurad at fair value. Trans 7 coets that are direclly atlributabls ts the scquisition or
igsue of financial assats and financial Fabililies {clher than financial assels and financial iabiities at fair valus through profit or loss) ars added
lo or deducted fiom the fair value of the financial assats or financial liab , @8 appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly
atlibutalile to the acquisition of financial assats or financiat Habilites at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immadiately in profit or
loss,

All regular way purchases or ssles of financial assets are recognised and dereccgnised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within the time frame astablished oy regulation or convention in the
markelplaca,

All recognised financial 85s8is are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair valus, depending on the classification
of the financial assals,

Classification of financial assels

Financial Assais that meet the following conditiors are subsaquent!
designated as at fair volue through profit or loss on initial re

y measured at amoriised cost (except for financial assets that are

i} the assals is held within a business model whose cbhjective is to hold assats in order o collact contractual cash flows v and

i} the contractua! terms of the instiument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of nrincipal and inferes! on the
e g P ¥ Pay = v
principal arount autstanding.

Financial Assets that meet the faliowing conditions are subsequently measured at fair value thre ugh cther comprehansive income (excap! for
financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profil or 1055 on Inifial recognition):

i} the assels is held within a business mode! whose abjective is achieved both by collecting conlractual cash fiows and selling financial
assels; and

ual terms of the instrument give rise on specifed dales o cash flows that are solely payments of prncipal and Interest on the
‘pal amount gutatanding,

Intecest income is recognised in profit or foss for FYTOCH financlal assels. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses,
FVTOC! fnancial assels are treated as financial zssets measurad at amortised :

recogn'sad in profit or loss and ather changes in the fair value of FVTOCH fing recognised in other compre
accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for financiai assels through other comprehensive income’. When the invesim
the cumuialive gain or loss pravicusly ac profil or loss.

assels a




Al verd at fair value

nancial geaals am subsauer

Filective intborast method

thod ts @ mothod of caloutating the amortised cost of a debd instrumaent and of allocating interesl incoma over the
tive interest rate is tha rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash receipls {including 2 fees and points paid
or received that form an Integral part of the effectiva Interest rale, transaction cos!s and other premiums or discounts) through the expecled
lif= of the debl insirument, or, where appropriate, 4 shorls: perind, to the nel camydng amount on inftial recegnition,

nised on an effective inlerest basis for dabt Instruments olter than those financial assels classified as at FVTPL. Inlerest
ised in profit or foss and is Included in the “Ciher income” ling item.

Fiancial assols al fair value throug

st griteria or debt instruments thal meet R|"e vToC! cr'te-sa may be designated as st FVTPL
f antly reduces a me n inconsistency thal would ariss
ing assefls :;."ia yuilies Of rr"".s.-\g the gains and losses on them cn ::.’fe—enl bases, The Company has net designated any
ament ag 8t FVTPL

; y dividend or ane;, eamed oh ha fmanrfai

'3 al FVTPL is recognizad when the C‘--:mpan, s night to
wd n Is proba CONe iztad with the di wil flow to the entty, the dividend

very of part of cost of ihe investment 2nd tha amount of dividend can be measured reliabiy.

s the sxpected cradit loss mods! for recognizing impairment loss en financial asse!s mensurad at amontised cost, debt
se receivables, trade recefvables, and othar conractual rights to raceive cash or other financial asset, and
designated as at FVTPL

sted credit losses are the w euﬂ fe i average of crﬁjii losses with the 1 s@ risks of default cccurring as the waights. Credit loss is
ra dug ta the Com, =ny in @ccordanca with the conlract and all the cash fluws thal the

; “' counted ot the criginal effeclive Interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective intorest rate

imates cash flows : 4 .'"naauarmg all ¢ "itlaciuql lermb cfthe

Tipany ev':-fb
or ofigi "a‘f'J credilin i al assets). The Company ost
et {for evample, pre

Tha Cc-= nmy measures the loss al
al instrument has ﬂ.'s-w:i arglufum'y sinee mllral recogaiion, If the \"re-:ht rskeona t"nan..-raa mslmm&r‘-i has nat

ty $ince inflial recognition, the Company measures the loss sliowance for that Shancial instrument at an amount efual fo
~tad credil josses are portion of the life-tims axpecied credil lusses and represant the

ure within the 12 months after tha reporting dale and thus, are not cash sharifalis that are

lowance for 8 financial instrument at lifatime expucted oredit loss model in the previous period, but
d that the craditrisk ha increased significantly since indiial recognition due lo imgrevement in
us pariod, the Company again measures the loss afowancs based on 12-manth sxpacted cradit

=3 al end cf arep
uality as compared ¢

ein the rsk fa u‘efa ! curming ver the m;o;lef fife
sses, To make that ass nefzt the C-::r.;pa'f,' SO
raporling date with thn fisk of a d»(m it oo

ﬂ|= i
arzz the fizkkofa deh‘ullt cg,.:l.rriﬁc on the financial instrument as at the
instrument as at ne Ja'*' oﬁr-hal re"*;m ion and considers raasonable and

B3ETY

For trads roceivab'as or ary conlractual right to receive cath or ancther financial asset that resull from transactions that are within the scops
of Ind AS 145, the Company aiways moasuies the loss alivwance at an ameount equal te lilelime sxpected credil losses,

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifelime expected credit 122 allewance for trade receivables, the Company has used a prachical
o under Ind AS 102, This 2xpectod credit loss slionancs is compulad Basad on a provision malix which takes inlc
lcss oxperience and adjusted for forward looking informalion,

oexp

fallet
aocount historical credit

) ;.rq;n'en. ofalossa noe are equaiy applied to debt instruments at FVTOO)
ehonsive income and Is ot reducad Gom the cairying amount in the balance

m‘»"'i‘ir equirements for the recognl
13t the ":.x allowance is recognised in other compr

Derecognibion of inanca’ assels

s a fnancisl aesel whan the contractual rights to the cath fiows rom the assat sxpive, or when it lransfers the
tantially it the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel to another party. If he C:mpan} neither transfors nor
aily all the risks and rewards ef cwnership and continues to conleol the transforred asset, the Company recognises its
retainad intorast in the asset and an associaled liablity for mmounts it may have to pay. If the Company retzins stibslantially aEI the risks and
rawards WIS P of a tranalenad financial assel, the Company conlinues {a racognisa the financial asset and alsc recognisss a
collateralised borrawing for the proceads received.

retiing subsla




On derecognition of a financial asse! in s enbirely, the diferonce botween the assal's carrying amount and the sum of the co
received and receivalie and the cumulative gain or loas thal had been recognised in other comprehensiva income and accumulaled in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recogrised in profit of loss on disposal of that financial
asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset alher than in its extirely (2.9. when the Company relsing an oplion to repurchase part of a transfered
asset), the Company aflocates the pravicus carrying amount of the financial assat hetween the part it continues o recognise under
continuing invelvement, and the part it no longsr recognises on the baais of the relalive fair values of those paris on the date of the kanster,
The difference between the carrying amount aftocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration recsived for
ihe part he longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allccated {o it that had been recognised in other comprehansiva income is
recognised in profit or foss If such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or foss on disposat of thal financizl asset. A
cumulative gain or foss thal had been recognised In other comprahensive lncome Is sllocated betwesn the part that continues to he
recogrised and the part that Is no longer recoqnised on the hasis of the telativa fair values of those paris.

Foreign exchange gans and losses
The fair vaiue of finarcial assets denomirated In s forelgn currency is determined in that farsign currency and franslated al the spal rats at

Ihe end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated financial assels messured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the sxchangs
differences are recognised in statement of profit & less since there are no designated hedging instruments in a hiedging relationship,

Financial liabiiites
Aii financial liablities ars subsaquently measured at amortised cost ysing the sffsctive Intersat mathod or al FVTPL.

However, financial liabiiites that ardze when a transfer of a financial asset does net qualily for derscognition or then the continuing
involvsment approach applios, financial guarantss conlracts issued by the Company, and commitments lssued by the Company o provide a
loan at below-markel interest rate are measurad in accordance with the specific accounting policies sat out below,

Financial labiities at FYTPL

Financial llabiftes are clasaified a2 at FYTPL when the Snancizl liahility is sither conlingent considsration racognised by the Company as an
acquirer in a business combination fo which Ind AS 103 applies oris held for frading or itis designatad as at FVTPL.

A financiat kability Is classified as held for trading if:
I} ‘ithas beon incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in tha near term: or

i) oninitial recognition itis part of a porifolic of identifisd finandial instruments that the company manages togsther and has a recent
actual paftern of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) itis a derlvative thal is riol designated and effective a2 a hadging instrumant.

Financial kabililies at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising an remeasuremant recognised in profil or loss, The nat
ain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interast paid on the financial §abilty and is includad in the ‘Olher income’ line flerm.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that ars designatad as al FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
labiiity that is altributable to changes in the credit risk of that fiabiiity is recognised in othar comprahensive incoma, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting miamatch in profil or
o83, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profil or loss. The remaining amount of changs in the fair value of
ifity is atways recognised in profil or loss, Changes in fair valus attribulabla to a financial liability’s cradit risk that are recogniesd in other
compishensive income are reflected immedialely in retainad eamings and are not sub sequently reciassified to profit or loss.

Galns or tosses on financial guarantes confracts and loan commitments issued oy the Company that ara designaled by the Company as at
fair value through profil or loss are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial kabilities subsequently measured at amertised cost,

Financial liabiiities that are not held-for-rading and are not des'gnated as at FVTPL are measured at amartived cost at the and of
subszquent accounting peiiods. The carrylng amounts of financial liatlites thal ars subsequantly measurad at amortised cost ars
determinad basad on the effective interest method, Intorest evpense that Js nol capilalizad as part of costs of an asset is included in the
‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is g method of calculating the amortised cost of a financiaf fiability and of allocating interast expense over ths
relevant period, The effeclive inferest rate is the rate that exactly disco imated future cash payments {including =il fees and point
paid of received that farm an inlegral part of the effactive Intarast rate, k osts and other premiums or ¢iscounts) through the
eapected life of the financ’al liability, or (where appiopriate) a shorter period, 16 he nit carrying amaunt on inftial ‘eco i

12}

Afinancial guarantee contract is a conliact that requires the izsuer to make specifing payments lo reimburse the holder for a loss i incurs
because a specified deblor fails to make payments when dus in accordance with tha {rms of a debt instrument.

Financlal guaraniee contracls issued by a group enlity are inilizliy mensured at their fzir vaiues and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the highar of,

i) the amount of 'oss allowance datermined in 2ccordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 10¢; and

comis racognised in accordance with the principhes

ii) the amount initially recognised jess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of if
of ind AS 115,
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Commilments to pr 1 lcan al'a balow

Commiments to provide 2 loan at a betow-markel inlerest rals are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
agquent'y measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance det se with mpaltment requirernents of Ind AS 109, and

U S

ulative amount of income recegnised in accordance wilh the principles

i) the amount initiafly recognisad less, when appraprisle, the cu
of lind AS115.

geins and logses

Hiies that are denooinaled ina for
rd losses are datermin

eign currency and are msast od cost al the end of each reporting perl
2 basad on {he amorised cost of the Instruments and are recognisad in 'Other incoma’,

the fore

of financial Babilites denominated in a foreign currency is delermined in thal foreign suriency and liansiated at the spol rals at
ing period, For financial iabilties that are maasured as at FVTPL, the forsign 2xchangs compotent forms part of the fair
sas and is recognised in profit or ioss, !

The fair velus
the end cf the
vahie gans o

rcognition of inancial fiabiities

grises financial flabiitias when, and only when, tha Company's chligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired

fruments with iahy differant teimie is acoounted for as an sxlinguishmant cf the

o of a new financal liau Ty, Similarly, a substantial modifcation of the torms of an &xisting

{whether or not sable o the fna : of the deblor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
2 1y and the recogniion of a new financial liability, The diffierenca between tha camying amaount of the financial Hlabiiity

deracognised and Wis consideralion paid and payabls is recognisedin siatement of profit &loss

The Company dere
nge belwesn with a lendor of
! financial ligbty and the re

3R

r) Provislons & Contingencles

s a present obiigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it iz probabls that

gatian, and a relisble eslimate can be mads of the amaunt of lhe chligation.

Pic

the cor

sions are fracognised when the cor
oany will be required 1o asllle the obi

ate of the cor sideration required to selile the presand obligation at the end of the
ainlies surrounding the obligation. When a provision Is messured using the cash
ng amount is the present vaiue of those cash flows (when the effeat of the lims
i benefits requlred 1o setlls a provision are expected to be recovered from 3
ially zoriain that reimbursement will be received and the amocunt of the

The amount recognised as a provision is the best est
reporting period, taking into account tha risks
fiows sstimaled o setlie the present cbligation,
valie of maney i3 matanial), When some or all of the aco
third party; a receivatie is recognised as an assetifitlsy
receivable can be moasured reliskly,

s) Centlngent Llabilltles

7 is & possible gbiigation that arise
ncerdain fat

1
H

m past evanls whose xistence will be confirmad by cccurrance of non-oooue
cognized

w

A contingent |
of sneorm
M i bility alsc arisos
he extren whers therg is 2 ty that cannot be recegnized becauss it cannot be meas ured refiably s existence
in the financial slalements. Company 4048 nat recognize the contingent liability but disclesed its existence in financial slslaments,

t} Government Grants

Government grants ars nel recognised untt there s reascnable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditians allaching to
them and such grants can reasonably have a value piaced upon them

tes5 on @ syslematio basis over the periods in which the Company fecognises as

inment granis aie

nses ihe related cost

u) Cash and Cash Equivalents

for the purposes of cash flow slatemant sre comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand and shori-lerm

' o thiae months or less. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in curent liabilities in the hatance
ihe cash flow slatement, Book overdra® aré shown within other financial iiabitties In the

lies in the cash ficw enk -

Caszh and cash aguivalent
invesiments wilh an criginal matu
sheat and forms part of financing
balance sheet and fors

v) Critleal Aczounting Estimates
5 setit | 5
ment provielons for rade recoivables is based on assumptions about risk of defaull and expcted loss rates. The Campany uses
xirg ceriain assumptions and selecting inputs lo determing impairmant ofthess frade receivables, based on the
cenpany's historical exper'ance towards potential 3 adjustments, delays and defavite at the end of sach reponting period.

Segmental Reporting
s

posating segments

ishee standards for the way that putiic business enferprises report infarmation about
sots and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Baasd on the
Ind AS {08, Operaling seaments are 1o be reported in @ manner cons’slent with the idarnal reps
ker {CODM) The CODN evaluates ths Company's parioimancs and allocates resources o @
refore ‘Modical and Healthcare Services', A
vided in tha financial slalements.

Ind AS 108 "Operalin
operaling segments an
“‘ranagement approac
ed to the Chief Op:
o s, The C
disclosure to be pr

Segme
d related d
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Goographiical information

Gangraphical information analyses the company's revenue and non cuirent assets by the Company's country of domiciie (8. India) and

cther counliies, |n presenting the ge
and sogment assetls which have be

Secondary Segment - Goographical Location of customars

Revenug by geographical markets
i{Mon current assels

Capital and Other Commitments

a)  Capital Commitments

aphical Information, 3agment rev
n basad on the geographical location

cf the assots,

¢nue has beon based on the geographical location of the customers

India Qutside ind'a ) Tola!
Currznt Year | Previous Yaar| Current Year [ Frevious Year| Current Year | Previous Year
{Rs.Inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.in lacs) | {Rs.inlacs}
3334076 | 3230533 | 2130930 | 17.810.30 | 5485000 | 6027713 |
39,550.80 38,27513 . - 39,558 50 35.275.13

Estmated amount of contiacts remaining to be exoculed on
capitat account not provided for (Net of Advances)

b} Other Comimitments

(Bs. In Lacs)

As al 3%t March, 2018

As al 313t March, 2018

4,177.80

4,895 57

i) For commitments relating to lease arrangement, please refer Nots 30

ii} The Gampany does not have any long term commilments or material non-cancelable contractual commitmantsicontracts, inciuding
desivalive contracts for which there wers any material foreseeable losses,

8

i Amount speit dunrg the year ended 31

Expendlture on Corporate Soclal Responsibiity {CSR)
i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31t March, 2018

t March, 2016

{Rs. In Lacs)

Partioulars . |PaidiAal
(1) Construction / acquisition of any

property, plant and equipmant
L( i} On purposes other than { | ) above B0 A4 |

Rs. 84,12 Lacs

Tolal (A+B) |

Ye! o ba paid (B)

3.48 |

iiiy Details of relaled party transactions -

a) Coniribution during the year ended 315t March, 2048

b} Payabls 25 at 31st March, 2018

Relsted party dlsclosure
a) Name of related partles

Rs. 4582
Rs.  Nii

Partles where control exlsts Irrespective of whother transaztions have cecurred or nat

R

Ultimate Parent Company
Holding Company

Feilow Subsidiary Company

Arteris Global Life Scisnces Limited
Arlemis Health Sciences Limited

Athana Eduspark Limited

Names of other related partles with whom transactlons have taken place durlng the year
Artamia Cardiae Care Put, LI, (w.e.f. 14t Jan, 2018)

Subsidiary Company

Key Managenmen! Persannel

Relativas of Key Managerial Persannsl

Mr. Crkar 8. Kanwar (Chairman & Dirsclor)
Dr. Deviina Chakrayarty (Executive Director)

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Xothar {Chiaf Financial Officer)

Mr. Navneet G

ool (Head - Legal & Company Secretary)

usple 3rd Fab, 2019

Mr. Rakesh ¥aushik (Chisf Legal Officer & Company Sscretary} from 4th Fab, 2618

Nir. Neeraj Singh Kanwar (Non-Executive Director)
Nrs. Ehalin] Manwar Chand (Non-Executive Diractor)

Mrs. Taru Karwar
Mrs Devarchana Rana

Nen-Executive Directors

Enberprises owned or sigrificantly

management personnel or their relatives

d by key

. Hirmal Kumsr Ganguly (Non-Executive Director)
-5 Na
. Sanjaya Bary {indepandent Direclon
- Akshay ¥umar Chudasama (Independent Direc lor)

ayar (independent Direclo

¥




b}  Transaciions durlng the year

_ (Rs_Intacs)

Key Management Pers
and their refatives

onnel

s owned or

iy influanced by

kay managerment personnel
or their r=latives

. 31stMaich, | 3istMacch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch,
- 3019 208 2018 peionE:)
Remvbursemant of Expenses
incurred on behall of the
€0 5 T - — -
. = _
- N i o 5 - 232 o
i
- p « 36 95 43.34
| Artoris Ga - 277 - | - . - =
CSR Expenses —
Haalth Sciences o o
e s - 45 83 8.42
4871 - SN e . S
Al A 12 00 12.00 N .
> N 800 £.20 - “e ]
44 98 e N SRR S -
o B N - . 3 12.20 28240
Investment in Subsidiary ] B B
Cardise Care Pyt Ld - g KO - - = -
= . 31.31 7858 855 80 441,48 |
R — . - 84504 43718
_ - - . 7.0 7.08
Devarchana Rana _ B - T &0 G o0 _ N
Z & A Modical Towism Ple L, -
2 = 4. - - 85,38
Premedium Pharmaceuticals
Pviitd . - z - - 45,48 =
Donation Paid PRNSRECSSE S e i
Artemis Education & Resoarch
- - 40.30 40 00
. 274 .
1.40 1.20 - -
0.80 140 2 =5
280 2780 > -
2 80 180 . -
500 | 020 - :
0 80 120 - :
0.40 2 : 2
240| 220 .
45077 | 40359 B e
7315 55 AG - -
2750 | B z =
! cet God 54 63 3573 - =
{Defined banefil obligation i — N
> : = . 5201 47 48 = | -
7 - —23ac 2050 - -
- - 75 31 §8.08 - -
: 6421 | 5148 » :
> 10 21 741 - -
5 p . g ag . N
E i 0.85 - = e
&8 08 - =




{fs Inlacs)

o T . . - ) 1alMarch, | 31st March
;g.alnnce Payable ) Name of Entity - i - R 5018 _'
Ulimiate Parenl Company Arlamis Global Life Sciences Limited - 11.22
Helding Company Artemis Haalth Scierices Limited 4.38 4.1
alatives of Director & KMP 3
Kay Managemeni Personnol and their ralatives Relatives of Director & KMF 20
\polio Tyres Ltd. 7.08 68.48
Enlerprises cwhied or significantly influencad | Apolio International Lid, 1.48 0.45
by key management personnel or their relatives| Swaranganga Consultants P Lid 0.22
Prermedium Pharmacsutizale Pyt Lid, 49.48 -
. . - o (s In Lacs)
i : ; o 31stMarch, | 31stMarch,
_Enfance Recoverable hameifEnhty 7 2013 | 7018
Relatives of Director & KNP c.48 17.38
ey Manegement Persocnel and thelr reialives| Devina Chakravarty 82,14 72.50
Sanjiv Kumar Kothar 30,08 38.87
Enterprises owned or significantly infiuenced | Apolio Tyres Ltd. 438,82 1.85
by key management personnel or their relatives; Artemis Education & Rasaarch Feundation 36.00 42.30
Swaranganga Consultants P Lid 84.00 B4.00
Arternis Cardiac Cara Pyl Lid, 14.82 B

30 Opersting Leases
a) Azsots taken on lease {Cancellable)
The Company has taken cancellable lease for premises in the naturs of bulldings, hoslets and gues! housas ste. undsr oparating leass. All
pratnises taken on operaling lease are on cancellable terms after inilial lock in pariod 2 per each respeclive i2ase and thersafter may be
renewsd by mutual consent on mutually agresd terms.

Total lzase payments recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss far the year ls Rs. 242,90 Lacs {previous year Rs. 446.38 Lacs),
(Rs. In Lacs)

Minimum Leasz Renlals Asal31st As at 31st
Payatie for lock in period March, 2018 March, 2018
Mal later than one year - 2,29
After one year but not mors than five years - "

b) Assots glven on Lease
The Company has leased out some portion of hospital premises as outsourced activilies for a peiicd of 1to @ yoars, Tha relurns are fined as
well as based on a cerlaln percentage of net sales of the lesses from the lsaead peBmises,

Tatal lease amount received / receivabls in the respect of above leases recegnissd in the Siatement of Profit & Loss for the year are Rs.

104.69 Lacs (Previous yoar Rs, 84.81 Lacs).
{Rs. In Lacs)

Mirimum Lease Rentals Az at 31st Az at 31st
Recalvable during fock in March, 2019 March, 2018
period

Nzt taler than oine year 4.C7 3.88
Laler than one year but not later than five years 347 7.24
Latsr than five yeara = =

Nole : The lease payment racognized in statement of profit & loss under non-cenceliable operating leass reprasant only the fixed
component / minimum recoverable of lzases as variable comporeni receivable based on net sales from lease pramises cannct be

determined,

31 Earning Per Share (EPS) o - o (B inLace)
Year Ended Year Ended
Faricutars 31st March, 2012 31st March, 201
Nzt proflt after Tax - -
Profit/ (Loss) attibulable to the Equily Shareho'ders 2.076.77 2677.02
ic { Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
tslanding during the year 21,035,000 21,035,000
Eaming Per Shaie (in Rupsass)
- Basic 9.87 12.73
- Diluted Q.87 12.73
Nominal valug of Equily Shares $0.00 10,08
,..‘"('— “.’ ! S
7l ,‘?J' *

Sdh : .-:'j-\“-
)




entitiad by the Company from the svailabls information, which has been relied upon

a oy

closures az per Seclion 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enderprise Development

| ard Medium Ent
rding 1o

32 The Mi=ro, Sm
by the auditors Ac

{MSMED) Act, 206&" are as &
o e 3. 1t LLacs)
Detalle of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as par MSMED Act, | 31st March, | 31st March,
2006 i e} 2088 | 2098
The piircipal amount znd the ir g unpaid to
any sunrtiarat the 20 of cach a6 N
- Pringigal Amount 52 81 -
- Inlarest therson 0.33 -
The amaunt of inforest paid by the buyer in lerma of saction 18 of the
Micro Small and ?.W-M_fum Enlnrp‘sa Df spment Act, 2008 along with
the am diar bcy'* ndthe a;;:, e .
day du
The amount of interest due and ayabie for the pariad of delay in making
paymaat fwhich have been paid but beyoad the appointed day during the
yous) but without adding the interast specified undar Micre Srall and ) )
Madium Enterprise Development Act, 2
unt of interest accrued and remainng unpald atthe end of the
s 0.33 -
maining due and payable ove
le it tha interest duss ab
sally pald o lm: deipil se for the purpose of disaliowance as a - -
ti 23-of the Maro 8malt and Medium

2 to Rule 6 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for preparation of

d as pa-r section 128 (3) of the Companias Act, 2013, as the Company
Jing company is filing consolidated financial stalements
.a*.uﬂ Accounling Standards,

34 Employee Bencfits
A)  Defined Contributlon Plan
) The company has recognized, in slatement of Profit & Loss for year ended 31st March, 2015 an amount of Rs. 255 38 Lacs (Previous

year Rs, 331,88 Lacs) under defined contribution plans,
_{Re In Lacs)

un p.ar... includs: 31st March, 2018

249.12

qt:ﬂ.—: insurance Corporation 7889

g} Empioyer'y re Fun .85
331.50

In the linz ilem - co on fo provident fund and sther funds In Nots 22,

B} DeHaed Benefit Plan

i The Company hﬂ5 a du
ont ment / e

it gratuily plan, Every emplayce who has ¢ ‘eled five yoars or mors of the service gats a gralulty
3 for each comploled year of service, The Company has also provided for

e
days salary (last drawn sala

long-teim cor

uity {unfunded) Leaves (unfunded)

31st March, 31sal March, 31st March,  31st March,
2318 2018 201 2018

(As. In Lacs)  (Fs. In Lac3s) {Rs.in Lacs) (Rs. InLacs)
i wring and clesing balances of gbligaliona;
a) i 38772 23257 188.88 183.67
b) 78,12 §7.88 §6.61 50.84
€} 22.48 15.58 13.50 12.88
d) . 5
&) 58 a5 17.56 1185 (44.77)
] (33.24) {15.87) (31.71) (23.73)
a) gation at the year end 432,70 fetord 4 248.33 188.98
(1} Change In Plan Aasels (Reco ion of opening and closing balances):
a)  Fair Value of Plan A;_ms a! beginning - - “ -

b)  Fiior Period Adjustmisnt . 4
cted relurn cn Plan Asset = i =

¢} -
d) s - - - -
e) Beneflits paid - - - -

f)  Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assels - - - -
g} Fair Valug of Plan Assels at yearend - - - =
1) sais and cbiigations:

a)  PFiezentv ahle of abili '4! 13{((1. end 432.7C 0772 240,33 1880 SR
b}  Fair Value of Plan Asza!s at year end - . .

¢}  Asset/ Liability recognized
in the Balance Shasy 432.73 a07.72

,i
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{iv} Amount recognized in the income statement

a) Current Service Cost 79.12 57.88
by Pasl Sevvice Cost - s
¢) Inlerest Cost 22 48 15.68

d) Curtailment Cosl [Cradif) = -
e) Expected oturn on Plan Assats - =
fy  Actuarial {Gain) / Loss ~
73.48

g)  Expenses recognized during the yaar
(v) Giher Comprehensive Inceme (OO0
a)  Uprealizod actuarial Gain / (Loss) (58.85) {17.56)

(vi) Assumptions: As at 315t March, 2019
a) Oiscountng Rate (per annum)

b)  Future Salary Incresss

Withdrawal / Employee Turnaver Rate
)  Age uplo 30 years
d} Age from 31 to 44 years
e} Age above 44 years

Indian Aesured Lives

Maortality table used o
ity e Moriality (2006-08)

649.581 50.04
13,30 12,08
11.88 (44.77)
92.08 16.04

As at 31st March, 2018
7.30%

6.00%

200

32.00%

15.00%

19008

(2009

Indian Assured Lives

Martality 05

The estimates of fullre salary Increases, censidered in actuarlal valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

ircludiog supply and demand in the employment market.

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined shiigatic

n ara discounted rate, expected salary sscalalion rate end withdrawal

rate. The sensitivity analysas below have bean determined hased on reasonably pos sitle changes of the respechive assumplion scourving at the end

of the reporiing period, while holding all sthar assumplions eonstant
The above infurmaton is cerlified by the actuariai valuer,

Ertarprise best estimate of confribution during next year is Rs, 124.73 Lacs for Graluitly & Rs. 30.28 Lacs for Leave Encastinunt.

The discount rate is based on pravaifing market yieid of Government Bonds as at the date of valuation.

Year ended
31st March, 2018

o o Year andet
Particiilar
Paticulass - 315t March, 2019
Increase Dacrease
Changs in discount rate by 1.00% 18.31 19.46
Change in Salary escalation rate by 1 00% 14.83 23.07

Sensiltivity due to mordality and withdrawals are not malerial & hence linpact of change nol calculated,

Sens
applicabie being a lump sum benedit on relirement.

Financial Instruments

i) Capital Management

Increass Decresse
1377 1488
14.71 14.08

ivity aa to rale of inflation, rate of increase of pansions In payment, rata of increass of pensions belors relirement and life gxpactancy are not

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company wiff be able to continue as going concems while maximising the return

to staksholders through the aptimisation of the debt and equily bajance.

The papial structure of the Company consisis of net debt {(borrowings as Delailed in Noles 12 415 817 offsat by cash and bank

balances) and total equity of the company.

The Company is not subject to any extermally impesed capital requirements othar than for covenanis under varicus 1aan armangements

of ths Company.

5y

i

The Company's Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on
of capital and the risks associated with sach class of capilal, The g= t
(See below),

Gearlng Ratlo @
Tha gearing ratio at end of the repoding perlod was a8

Particulars

Dbt *

Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 8)
Net Debt

Total Equity

Met Debt o Equity Ratio

11,470.58
811.00

10,658.58

25172.54
42.35%

As at3ist
March. 2018 March, 2018

ed basis, As part of this review, the Board considars the cost
g rafio at 3151 March, 2018 of 42.35% (pravious year 38.39% )

(R, In Lacs)
As at 31st

9,140.87
280.78
8,871.19
23,105.52
38.09%

* Debt iz defired as long-term and shor




i} Cateqorios of Financial Insfrumeonts

3 L : B ___ (Bs.inlses)

Financial Assets As at 31st As at 31st
_March, 2018 March, 2018

Measured at amartlzed cost

Lecans- Non Cu 255.86 140.28
Cther Financial assets - Nonm Cunent 3242 25.51
Trade re g5 - Cusreid 7.844.08 5,556 40
wlents 811.00 2E8.78

Current 31438 $48.18

¥ 159.98 100.80

Other fnancial assels - Current 514.70 424 94
Total ) 9,932.39 | 7,547.54

assels desi
L financial a8

wated at FVTPL, The carrying amount

8.

nt concentrations of finar
ure fc credit risk for

Al the and of
refieci=d a

ing period, there are no sf
the Co r‘qF‘i",sn"_ r

" {Rs. In Lacs)
Financial Liabiistios As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018

tosured at amortised cost

Jon Current .38 5,224 €1
! &0 -

55 6,745.74

16 3,516.98

,840.13 15,886.71

coss lo domestic and inleinational
currency risk, inferest rate risk and olher price

The Board of Diverfors manages the financial risk hu Cor -par,_.f '-“.:...;h intarnal risk r-ap orts wlu h ar-al, ;-e exposure b_a rnagﬁil‘u'ds.- of
tisk. The Company has limi io-ﬁ exposura from th&
imit=d exp i

o -\' its rev a fr om in 'on‘

n currency through the over

n "Jrrer-, frm\ mrﬁ"mf' -iai '\alvﬂ-n{:
rendors. The Company has not taken

a1

Also capi :
any dar 3 gn cuirency foreign currency fluctualion is parly
hedge :’:.;m customers and payabie to vendors in foreign currency.

Market Risk
The Compuny's activites expote it primarily to the financal rishs of changes in inter=al rates and forsign currency exchange rales.

a) Foreign Cumrency risk mapagement

The Company un quently, exposurss to exchange rate fluctuations arlag,

Excharge rale sxpe

The carrying amounis of the Company's forsign currency denominated manetary assels and monetary liabililies at the end of the
repoting porod ars as ‘

As at 31st Marth__:!i? .!_3 _ s at 31st March, 2018
Equwalent - Equivalent
Frifilase Rs.In Lacs FG_T lac_s | Rs.InLacs
usD 1165 T35 72 945 505.51
ust -
d en Eg 745 4 ATG.S
(C=hA-B) o usD 1168 799.72 9.48 608.51
B I | As at3istMarch, 2019 | As at 31st March, 2018
il. Liabijities Equivalent Equiivalent
Currancy FCin lacs Rs. In Lacs FCln lacs Rs. In Lars
Payables f‘ra*e&m‘w UsD 2.74 191.94 25849 1,874.65
{inc =
| : =i B B
POMerS Jabit EURD . . 0.02 1.63
5 - =
b',‘ derivative _L 50 o _
e | EUROD :
17 451 0.
Uihadged Payables usp 2.74 191.04 w494
(F=R=-E} EURO . - 0.02




Forsign currency sensitivity analysis

The company Is mainly sxposed o the USD & EURO currency

wing tabls delails the company's sensitivity lo a 1% incr
usad when reporling forsign currency risk internally to key ma
reasonably possible changa in foreign exchange rates. The ssnsilivily
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1
exlemal loans, A positive number below indizate
currency. For a 1% waakening of the Rs. agsinst the rele
the balances below would be negative.

- - - at 31st March, h, 2018
It Contingent Liabiiities Foreign Awataust Maéqtif:l%{ ML i Maé:ulvzllnt
aod Commitments | Currency | FCIn1ct | gs.imLacs | P°™ %" | Rs.intacs |
usbD
Cartingent Liabiiies (G) . o i "
ELRO - -
usD 0.02 1.08 0.14 9.01
Commilments (H ) JPY 3.00 1.89
EURO - - 048 38.84
i3 5 2 % -
Hadges by derlvative uso B e . |
contracts (1) EURD i . i}
UshD 0.52 1.058 0.14 9.01
Unhedged Payables B _ R ]
Y 3.0 88 -
(J=G+H-1) JP 0 1.8
EURO = C.48 38.84
14.45 gga.n s 1 2,483.17
Total unhedaed FC o7 — e —
Exposures N 3.00 1.8% -
(K=C+F+J) . =
- 050 4C.
EURO o N

ana:iysis
% change in fo
sasa In profit or equity where the Rs. strengthens 1% against the re!

sarable impact on the profit or equity, and

nd decreass in the "Rs. againsi the USD. 1%
nt &l and represents mansgsment's assessment of the

el

Jdes only outslanding forsign
yreign curmency rates. The sen

st

is ths sansitivity rals

ency denominalaed

rant

(s In Lacs)

If increase by 1%

Particulars

Currency Impact USD

Ilr--:z-?me ! {decrease) in profil or loss for the yaar

li

ase [ {decrease) in iolal equity as at the end of the reporling peced

T Asat3fst | Asat3ist
March, 2019 | March, 2018
£.08 (12.65)
§08 | (1245

_{Rs. In Lacs)

_if decrease by 1%
Particulars

- C_p_rr—_m_qcy Impact USD |
As at 31st As at 3t1st
March, 2019 | March, 2018

= / (decreass} in orofit or loss for the yoar

Increase [ (decrease) in profit o loss for he year L {6 08)

Increase / {decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period o _{6.08

L o o (s In Llacs)

If increase by 1% __Currency limpact JPY

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

o o March, 2019 | March, 2018

Incrasss / (decrease} in profit or loss for the year 002 :

increase | {decrease) in tolal equity a5 at the end of Lhe report (0.02) -
— —— . o {Rs InLacs)

if decrease by 1% Currancy impact JPY

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

o o March. 2018 | March, 2018

nc: 0.02 .

{decrease) in tolal equily as at the end of ths reporting

(K. In Lacs)

Ifincrease by 1%

Particulars

Increase { (decrease) in profit or loss for the yaar

~_Cuyrency impact EURO =]

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 [ March, 2018
i

so [ {decreasa) in tolal equily as at

the end of the reporling pericd

R




{i1s. In Lags)

If decroase by 1% o ] o  Currency Impact EURD
Partlculars As at 31st As at 31st
_March, 2019 | March, 2018
— = Unz
B T
b) Intercst Rate risk management
The Cor is exposad to inlerest rale sk becauss Compary borra v fved a\J i-u.aiiwg intsies] rales, The risk

is managad by the Company by mainiaining an appropriate mix b

The C Tpany's e¥posures 1o interesl rates on financial assats and financia! labilwes are detalied In the liquidity risk management

ian of this note

Intcrest Rate sensitivity analys!s

1 the exposaie {6 interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For
cf the liabitity ou

$= us "': .J‘fezﬂ .’-ﬂ’

analyses helow ha ve be
Flies, thﬁ' an al, 5

o o {Rs In Lacs)
if Increase by 1% In Interest rates Interest impact |
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
- - - o . March, 2019 | March, 2018 |
Increase ! {decieas) i pro 7sanl r:.a‘g‘__;-_'
increase / (decreasa) in tolal o peniod ) (76.31) (89.80)
If decrease by 1% In Interost rates I Interest Impact |
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

o _ March, 2018 | March, 2018
— 76.31 9030
ly as at the end ¢f the reporling g2 76.31 90.80

¥ mn..m«mt arz in the group compani=s and are held for stalegic purposes rather than for frading purposes,

sk Management
efers to the sk that a countar 'ar“ will defauilt on its contractizal cbligations
s due care whils ax credif as per the approval matix approve b; Board of Directors

esuling In financial lozz to the Company. The

s liquidity risk E:‘,- 1\6\3'{5'; ii-g adﬂ-qna!u r:.acr.es, bam.qg fdu:ii o3 ar.d reserve
(e -”a:-d ?‘"\3!03 s, and L,'n.ai_‘ ing lhen‘ i

Liguidity rlsk
Liquidity risk is the risk that lhu L‘: MpS counter difficully in meeling the obligations associated wilh its financial liabilities that
The Company's approach te managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as posyihla,
han they ara due, uader both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring

aried zoniractiual meludtiog of significant financial iiab fites

The table below p
{#s_ In Lacs)

Particulars ‘Within 1 year| 1-2years | Morethan2 Total Carrying
YERrs Amount fnet
of
transactlon
R 1 cast}
As at 31st March, 2019 e . e o
Term Loan 215288 1  2,112.94 750208 7.498 56
Defarred dymr-i'l} liability _ 13218 ~ - 132.18 132 18
T"a dg Paysbls 7.369 55 - - 7,368 .55 7.369.55
er ‘ih. 3.787.60 : - 3,787 60 3,787 80
rued bul not cue on borrowings 5224 o - 5224 | 5224
1345425 | 211294 323044 | 18RI3GT| 1854093 |




(R In Lacs)

Eartims R Within 1 year| 1-2years More than 2 Total ] Carrying
years Amount (net
of
transaction
| - S _cost}
As at 31st March, 2018 R o e T
2 137 88 1,586.42 jacvee|  7ai222| 730554
red payment fiabilly 1,728.00 5595 - 1,78395|  1.783.95 |
Trade Payables i B7as7e| - 674574 | B,74574
| nterest accruad but not due on borrovdngs 5048 - - 50,48 | 50.48
[ Total 10,772 10 162237 | 3807.92 15,882.39 3,7
36 Disclosure ufs 166(4) of the Companios Act, 2013 [ o o _{R5 In Lacs)

Particidars

Amount Outstanding as at

Amount Qutslanding as at 31st

March, 2048

Investment in subsidiary company (Refer Note 3.1)

37 Disclosure undar Ind AS - 115 {Revenue from contracts with customers)

{Rs. In Lacs)

a. Disaggregated revenue information 31st March,
B 2019
Type of Services or gio;d:‘a_-—
Re om Healihcars Sorvices - Mulli-Speciality Hospital & Glhers £3,535.38
Revenye from Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medica! Consumables 111470
Total 54,650.00
Revenua from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India 3334079
Revenue frem Customers hased outside India _24,309.30
Total __ 54,650.09
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Services transferred over time (Healthcare Services & Others) 53,521.72
Goods (Pharmacy & Scrap) lransfzired at a point in time 1,128.38
Total 54,650.09
L __ e (Rs. In Lacs)
b. Trade recelvables and Contract Customars 3tst March,
o 2019
Trade Receivables 7,844.08
Unbilled revenus 468.55
Total 834281

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 80 days Rs. 39.42 Lacs was recognisad as provision for

avpecied credit losses on trade receivables,

Trade receivables and unbilled revenie are presented net of linpairmient in the Balance shest

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for detiverablss as either a receivable or as unbiled revenue.
pay g

A receivables is rig

o consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.

Revenue for ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be Invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue.

c. Performance obligation and remalning performance obligation

The remaining performanc
the end of the reporting p
31st March, 28185, there we

38 Contingent Liabilities o -
ParticuiaTs
A Claims against the company not acknowledged as deb

disputs

and are pending with various consume
baen advised by its le nse

Idering thel insuran:
ipany iz of the view 1
extent. "

ensation demanded by the patiant [ el re

(Rs. In Lacs)

31st March, 2018




sing years for the EPCG licenses oblained by the company is as under,

B The zlalus of complation of obligalion as at the en:

‘ o
Otiigation vaive Liconsing Year Export Obligation to be completed tif | & P01 OE‘"Ja"m completed in
T 128 52 T s0182018
i 47374 | 20182019 -

ki - 0 & - N p
= wards vaiious claims ggainst the company including clalms raised by patierts /
31 03.22i8
87078
4G

ropsrty, plant and equipment/
net of amaount capilalised oy the Co

ST PEP—

As at
sh, 2018 1t "v.:-i" h, 2018
{Rs inlzcs)

65.92 134 59

14.52 131.31

24.53 58,58
Tota - ) tosg7| " EEnER|

41

Lid, its uiimate holding company ie. Artemis Global Life Scionces

ed 1o meige and the propossd Composits Scheme of
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LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
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In terms of the ICDR Regulations, the Company is required to disclose in this Information Memorandum, (i)
all criminal proceedings; (ii) all actions by statutory or regulatory authorities; (iii) all claims related to direct
and indirect taxes; and (iv) all material litigation, in each case involving the Company, the Directors, the

Subsidiaries and the Promoters.

Additionally, the Company is required to disclose: (a) all disciplinary action including penalty imposed by
SEBI or the Stock Exchanges, against the Promoters in the last 5 financial years, including outstanding actions;
and (b) any litigation involving the Company’s Group Companies, which may have a material impact on the

Company.

The Special Committee of Board, in its meeting held on:

¢y

26" October 2019 determined that outstanding legal proceedings involving the Company, its

Directors, Promoters and Group Companies where the aggregate amount involved, in such
litigation exceads 10% of net worth or turnover, whichever is higher, will be considered as material

litigation (“Material Litigation™); and

)

turnover, whichever is higher, shall be considered as material dues (*Material Dues™).

All terms defined in a particular litigation disclosure below are for that particular litigation only.

A. Outstanding Material Litigations and Material Developments
(N Outstanding Material Litigations
O Criminal Proceedings
(a) Criminal Proceedings involving the Company- NIL
(b) Criminal Proceedings involving the Directors

"Amount  Brief
Petails

[Case | Subject
No.

‘Name | Court/

of the Authority

" Present Status

‘Dirgetor || : of Case
Proceedings against the Director
Dr. PO Cum 29/2019 | Environment | Nil For
Nirmal | IMIC, Protection violation
Kumar | Special of
Ganguly | Environment section
Court, 15 of E
Faridabad Environ
ment
Protectio
n Act

Proceedings at JMIC,
Special Environment
Court, Faridabad was
stayed by Punjab and
Haryana High Court on
4/10/2019.

Later, quashing petition
was filed on behalf of
other directors, which is
listed on 26/02/2020 at
Punjab & Haryana High
Court. The complaint
before JMIC, Faridabad
is fixed up on 2/03/2020

26" October 2019, determined that outstanding dues to creditors in excess of 10% of net worth or
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(c) Criminal Proceedings involving the Promoters - NIL

(d) Criminal Proceedings involving the Subsidiaries
As of the date of this Information Memorandum, the Company has only one subsidiary
company i.e. ACCPL. There are no Criminal proceedings involving ACCPL.

Actions by Statutory / Regulatory Authorities
(a) Actions by Statutory / Regulatory Authorities against the Company - NIL

(b) Actions by Statutory / Regulatory Authorities against the Directors - NIL

(c) Actions by Statutory / Regulatory Authorities against the Promoters

Name of the | Court/ Case Subject Amount Briet Details Present Status

Promoter
Mr. Onkar
S. Kanwar

Authority No. of Case

High Court | N.A. Proceedings | Rs. 25000/~ | Please Refer Hearing in
& FEMA under & Rs. page 155 of due course
FEMA 1,00,000 this
Information
Memorandum

(1)

1v)

(d) Actions by Statutory / Regulatory Authorities against the Subsidiaries
As of the date of this Information Memorandum, the Company has only one subsidiary
company i.e. ACCPL. There are no Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities against
ACCPL.

Disciplinary Action / Penalty imposed by SEBI or Stock Exchanges against the Promoters in the last
tive financial years including outstanding action - NIL

Claims relating to direct and indirect taxes, in a consolidated manner as on 31* March 2019
(a) Claims relating to direct and indirect taxes against the Company

Claims Total No Amount Involved

(Rs.)

Direct Tax 0 0
Indirect Tax 0 0
(b) Claims relating to direct and indirect taxes against the Directors
Claims Total No Amount Involved
(Rs.)
Direct Tax 0 0
Indirect Tax 0 0
(c) Claims relating to direct and indirect taxes against the Promoters

Claims Total No Amount Involved
(Rs.) .
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Direct Tax 0 0
Indirect Tax 0 0
(d) Claims relating to direct and indirect taxes against the Subsidiaries
As of the date of this Information Memorandum, the Company has only one subsidiary
company i.e. ACCPL.

Claims : Total No TAmount hvalved
; _ _ (Rs) :

Direct Tax 0 0

Indirect Tax 0 0

Other Pending Material Litigation

(a) Material Litigation involving the Company - NIL

(b) Material Litigation involving the Directors - NIL

(c) Material Litigation involving the Promoters - NIL

(d) Material Litigation involving the Subsidiaries
As of the date of this Information Memorandum, the Company has only one Subsidiary i.e.
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited and no other material litigations is pending on
subsidiary.

Outstanding Dues to Creditors

a. Material Dues:

In relation to the Material Dues, as on 31% March 2019 the Company has only 01 creditors to
whom a total amount of Rs. 7467.53 lacs are outstanding.

Anount outstanding as on
7 _ 31% [March 2019 (Rs. in lacs)
Secured Creditor HDFC Bank Ltd 7467.53
Total 7467.53

Nanie of Credifors

Type of Creditor

b. Outstanding dues To Small And Medium Undertaking
The total outstanding dues of the Company as on 31* March 2019 to Small And Medium
Undertaking is Rs 62.81 lacs, details of which are as follows:

Amount cufstanding as

Name of Credifors on 31st March 2019
{Rsin Lacs)

AAA Pharmatrade Pvt. Ltd. 0.55
Alximix Waste Management Pvt. Ltd. 1.31
Amshee Sales 8.00
Apollo Laundry & Linen Services Private Ltd. 4,65
Clad Medical LLP 6.71
Dharamjeet Kitchen System
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Amount outstanding as |

Name of Creditors on 31st March 2019
(Rs in Lacs)

Electraspark Electricals 1.18
Eon Meditech Private Limited 0.48
Guvi Surge LLP 0.14
JV Pharma 0.65
Mittal Laboratories 1.66
Neurocare & Solution 10.81
Novomed Incorporation Private Limited 4.95
OSB Agencies Pvt. Ltd. 2.48
Ram Health Care Private Limited 0.73
Resolution 1.37
RX DISTRIBUTORS 0.20
RX Surgipharma Private Limited 11.51
Ved Med Software & Trading Pvt. Ltd 3.55
Sky Medicare Solution 1.81

(1) Material Developments
Save and except for the following, there have been no material developments since the date of the last
audited Financial Statements i.e. as on 31% March 2019:
(1) Merger of AGLSL, AHSL and AEL with the Company;

(2) Allotment of Equity Shares of the Company against shares of AGLSL held by shareholders in
AGLSL as on October 25, 2019.

3) Reconstitution of Board of Directors: Mr. Saurabh Srivastava had resigned from the Board of
Company from 13" May 2019 and the Board appointed Mr. Ugar Sain Anand & Mr. Sunil
Tandon as independent directors w.e.f. October 10, 2019

b. Government Approvals

The Company has obtained the following approvals / licenses:

Licensing /|
Approving License/Approval/ Number
Authority .= :

Date of
Approval

Ty pe of License / =y
N Approval Validity

Munici Assistant
unicipal .
. Divisional
corporation NOC Fire Offic
1 | for occupation from o0 ES/2019/626 11-Mar-19 10-Mar-20
; Municipal
fire safety point of f
; Corporation,
view
Gurugram
Jt. Chief
License to import & | Controller of
2 | store Petroleum in | Explosives, P/NC/HN/15/1312 (P184960) 10-Nov-16 31-Dec-19
installation North circle,
Faridabad
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S, R, [ B ey e e
o Ty ": ! L'fg;’se 4 Approving || LicensefApprovali Number || Al}ate Ofl Validity
e b CERTRNES S e Authority. | od R
Jt. Chief
Storage of Liquid Contro!ler of
3 = Explosives, S/HO/HN/03/319 (S41184) 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-22
Oxygen :
North circle,
Faridabad
Grant of consent to
4 | discharge water Haryana State
effluent Pollution HSPCB/consent/313099719G 6-Aug-19 30-Sen-20
Grant of consent to | Control UNOCTO5596073 e ° P
5 | discharge air Board
effluent
Authorization for E(?ﬁﬁ?;sme
6 | disposal of Caatrol HWM/GUNO/2019/5554418 5-Aug-19 30-Sep-20
Hazardous waste
Board
Enviornment ..
Clamcetor | Mt of
construction of i} 21-292/2007-IA.11I & 23- 7/19/2007,
7 ; and Forests N.A.
Hospital complex (LA 279/2018-1A.III(V) 9/27/2019
and for expansion D'ivi'sion)
of Hospital complex
Approval of
Hospital &
registration of Civil
8 | doctors under Surgeon, FW/SA/07/1038 25-Jun-07 N.A.
Medical Gurgaon
Termination of
Pregnancy Act
Registration of
Genetic Counselling
Centre/Genetic
Laboratory/Ultrasou | Civil
nd Imaging Surgeon-
9 Centre/IVF Centre cum—Dis-trict AA/GGN/103 19-Tan-16 31-Jan-21
under Pre-Natal Appropriate
Diagnostic Authority,
Techniques Gurgaon
(Regulation and
Prevention of
Misuse) Act, 1994
Pt. B.D.
Registration under | Sharma
Transplantation of | Postgraduate
10 | Human Organs Act | Institute of PGIMS/RTK/2019/68 11-Sep-19 10-Sep-24
for Kidney Medical
Transplantation Sciences,
Rohtak
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™, ’ Licensing /' | | i
No T"p;“.f. L__ice;:sel Approving | License/Approval/ Number | A?gfe :i_’ Validity
o e EREETTE - {bAutherityd i ol e R e ] ey
Pt. B.D.
Registration under | Sharma
Transplantation of | Postgraduate
11 | Human Organs Act | Institute of PGIMS/RTK/2019/66 11-Sep-19 10-Sep-24
for Cornea Medical
Transplantation Sciences,
Rohtak
Registration under "LBL.
. Sharma
Transplantation of
Human Organs Act Pasipduzte
12 for Li Institute of PGIMS/RTK/2016/42 13-Sep-11 7-Nov-21
or Live Donor .
Liver M?dlcal
Transplantation Sciences,
Rohtak
Pt. B.D.
Registration under | Sharma
Transplantation of | Postgraduate
13 | Human Organs Act | Institute of PGIMS/RTK/2019/60 27-Mar-19 28-Feb-23
for Heart Medical
Transplantation Sciences,
Rohtak
Pt. B.D.
Registration for Sharma
Brain Stem Death in | Postgraduate
14 | Hospital under Institute of PGIMS/RTK/16/44 22-Dec-16 21-Dec-21
Transplantation of | Medical
Human Organs Act | Sciences,
Rohtak
Inspector,
. . Shops &
” gﬁg‘“era“on °f | Commercial | PSA/REG/GGN/LI-GGN-4- .
ops & B tabTichm 10/0107339 6-Mar-19 31-Mar-22
Establishments Act i 22
ts, Gurugram
Circle
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing HR-6600-489-OW/H,
Drugs authority, | HR-6600-489-W/H 15-Dec-14 | 14-Decl®
FDA,
Gurgaon
16 Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing A
e it 2418-0OB 15-Nov-18 23-Dec-22
g authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
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: Licensing /

Typ;g;’l.;l::;zsel || Approving || License/Approval/ Number
SFETTT L Autherity |
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Llcetls}ng 2418-B 15-Nov-18 23-Dec-22
Drugs authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing HR-6600-488-OW/H,
Drugs authority, HR-6600-488-W/H
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell L1cens'1ng 2930-X 27 Jan-15 21-Jan-20
Drugs authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing HR-6600-490-OW/H,
Drugs authority, HR-6600-490-W/H
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing HR-6600-298-OW/H,
Drugs authority, HR-6600-298-W/H
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone
Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
License to sell Licensing
Drugs authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone

B

Pate of

Roproval Validity

%o

® 2 e

15-Dec-14 14-Dec-19

15-Dec-14 14-Dec-19

19-Apr-18 23-Dec-22

2945-B, 2945-0B 6-Feb-15 4-Feb-20
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Tvpe of License /

Approval

License to sell
Drugs

Licensing /

Approving

Authonty |

Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
Licensing
authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone

License/Approval/ Number

3086-B, 3086-0OB

Date of

Approval |

7-Aug-15

Validity

6-Aug-20

License to sell
Drugs

Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
Licensing
authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone

3290-B, 3290-0OB

5-May-16

3-May-21

License to sell
Drugs

Senior Drugs
Control
Officer cum
Licensing
authority,
FDA,
Gurgaon
Zone

0001-X

26-Apr-19

24-Apr-24

17

License to possess
Narcotic
Drug/Psychotropic
substance

State Drugs
Controller-
cum-
Licensing
Authority,
Food &
Drugs
Administratio
n, Haryana

RMI-1Drug-11-2018/3823

31-May-18

31-Dec-19

18

Trade License
under Haryana
Municipal
Corporation Act

Municipal
Corporation,
Gurugram

24

9-Aug-19

31-Mar-20

Further, Pursuant to the Composite Scheme, all the properties, estates, rights, title, interests, contracts,
proceedings, employees and related retirement funds, taxes, approvals, consents, licenses and the entire
business of each of AGLSL, AEL and AHSL has been transferred to and vested and deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the Company as if the same were originally given or issued to or executed in favour of the
Company, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Company.
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INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO GROUP COMPANIES

The following are the Group Companies with respect to the Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(t) of
ICDR Regulations

Apollo Tyres Limited

Date of Incorporation: September 28, 1972

CIN: L25111KL1972PLC002449

Registered Office: 3" Floor, Areekal Mansion, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi- 682036

Nature of Business / Objects / Activities: Manufacturing of Tyres (To manufacture, produce, prepare,

press, vulcanise, repair, retread and generally to carry on business of manufacturer in tyres for different

types of vehicles.)

Listed / Unlisted: Listed

Date of Listing: BSE- January 5, 1976; NSE-May 31, 1995

Financial Information: As per the audited financial statements for financial year ended March 31,

2019, March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 the material financial information for the group company is

as follows:

- (Rs. in Million)

Profit after ' Earnings | Net  Asset

per Share Value

/ Diluted

earnings

per Share
Basic &
Diluted

10.35

Reserves | Sales
(excluding Tax
revaluation

FESCEVES)

Capital

572.05 75,808.34 120,896 5,921 1,09.,998.39

2017-18

Basic &
Diluted
11.55

572.05 72,002.84 101,332 6,224 1,00,709.07

2016-17

Basic &
Diluted
15.77

509.02 52,771.65 88,167 8,028 69,998.18

*Net assets value = Total Assets- Current Liabilities

Exchange related Information:
Highest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: - Rs 227.65 (April, 2019)

Lowest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: Rs144.05 (August, 2019)

Public Issues / Rights Issues:
Public Issue made during preceding 3 years: Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIB)
For details please refer to page 158 of this Information Memorandum

Rights Issue made during preceding 3 years: NA

Material Litigation: The following are the details of pending litigation involving ATL which have a
material impact on the Company

Proceedings under FEMA
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The Directorate of Enforcement issued show cause notices to ATL and certain officers of ATL, on the
ground that ATL acquired and remitted foreign exchange for purposes of import but failed to submit
bills of entry as evidence of import to the authorized dealer. The Directorate of Enforcement imposed
penalties of an aggregate of Rs. 3.70 million on ATL, and Rs. 0.33 million on ATL. The Special
Director, Directorate of Enforcement, New Delhi, by order dated October 22, 2003, reduced penalty to
% 0.10 million on ATL and imposing penalty of Rs. 25,000 each, on its Promoter and Managing
Director, Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar and one of its employees, Mr. N. Raju. ATL, Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar
and Mr. N. Raju filed separate appeals before the Appellate Tribunal for Foreign Exchange, which
dismissed these appeals by order dated February 10, 2009. ATL Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar and Mr. N. Raju
filed appeals in the High Court of Kerala, which stayed the Appellate Tribunal’s order. Case pending
at the High Court for final adjudication.

The Directorate of Enforcement, New Delhi, by order dated April 4, 2008, imposed penalty of ¥ 0.30
million on ATL and ¥ 0.10 million on ATL Promoter and Managing Director, Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar,
for not producing evidence of import of goods. ATL and Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar filed separate appeals
before the Appellate Tribunal for Foreign Exchange, which dismissed both appeals by order dated
September 18, 2008. ATL and Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar filed appeals in the High Court of Kerala, which
stayed the Appellate Tribunal’s order. These matters are currently pending.

Proceedings under the Competition Act

The Assistant Director, CCI issued an order dated June 24, 2014 directing the Director General to
investigate and determine whether there was any agreement or collusion among certain tyre
manufacturing companies including ATL (“Tyre Manufacturers™) and the role of ATMA in such
alleged agreement or collusion. It was primarily alleged that an increase in the price of rubber over
regular periods led to a corresponding increase in the price of tyres; however, a decrease in the price of
rubber did not have a corresponding decrease in the price of tyres. The Tyre Manufacturers justified
this on the basis that while the price of rubber decreased, the prices of other key raw materials
significantly increased. The Additional Director General pursuant to the order of the CCI, thereafter
issued certain notices to ATL Company requiring it to furnish certain details including among others,
ATLs brief profile, ATL share prices from 2009 to 2014 and ATL market share in India from 2009 to
2014, to which ATL has responded from time to time. Final hearing completed and matter pending for
final order which is subject to vacation of stay on pronouncing of order by CCI given by Division
Bench of Madras High Court on an appeal filed by MRF Ltd.

Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: 9™ October 2018

CIN :- U24200DL2018PTC340319

Registered Office: Plot No. 14, Sector - 20, Dwarka Delhi South West Delhi DL 110075
Old: 207 suchet Chambers, 1224/5 Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110005
Nature of Business / Objects / Activities: Manufacturing of Medicines

Listed / Unlisted: Unlisted

Date of Listing: NA

Financial Information:
As per the audited financial statements for financial year ended March 31, 2019, the material financial
information for the group company is as follows:
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(Rs in Lakh)

Reserves Sales Profit  alier Earings  Net  Asset
{excluding Tax per Share Value®

revaluation /  Diluted
[SSEEVES) carnings
per Share
Basic &
Diluted

| -3.02

-19 1001.00 -114.16 44.76 -114.16 889.03

(iii)

*Net assets value = Total Assets- Current Liabilities

Exchange related Information:
Highest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: NA

Lowest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: NA

Public Issues / Rights Issues:

Public Issue made during preceding 3 years: Nil

Rights Issue made during preceding 3 years: 06.02.2019 allotment of Equity shares - 10000000 to
Classic Auto Tube Limited of Rs. 10/- each.

Swaranganga Consultants Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: 08/10/1998

CIN: - U74140DL1998PTC096580

Registered Office: Plot No. 14 Sector 20, Dwarka New Delhi South West Delhi -110075
Nature of Business / Objects / Activities: Business Consultancy

Listed / Unlisted: Unlisted Company

Date of Listing: Not Applicable

Financial Information: |
As per the audited financial statements for financial year ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and
March 31, 2017 the material financial information for the group company is as follows:

(Rs in Million)

Financial Equity Reserves Sales Profit atter Eamnings | INet  Asset
Year Capital (excluding Tax per Share  Value*

revaluation /  Diluted

FCSCrves) garnings

per Share

2018-19 | 58.02 263.03 - 17.03 2.94 537.85
2017-18 | 58.02 246.00 6.99 4.45 528.32
2016-17 | 58.02 239.00 19.155 3.30 536.85

*Net assets value = Total Assets- Current Liabilities

Exchange related Information:

If the Group Company is a Listed Company to include the following as well
Highest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: N.A

Lowest Market Price of share in preceding 6 months: N.A

Public Issues / Rights Issues:
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Public Issue made during preceding 3 years: N.A / NIL
Rights Issue made during preceding 3 years: N.A

Capital issue by Company / other listed Group Companies / Associates

The following are the listed Group Companies and Associates of the Company who have made a capital issue
during the last three years:

Name | Tvpe Year | Amoun Date of | Date of | Date eof | Date of | Rate of
of of of t of | Closure | allotment  credit of | completion | dividend
Entity  Issue Issue L Issue of Issue securities | of Project | paid
to demat | where
account object  of
issue  was
{0 finance
the Project
Apollo | QIP 2017 | Rs October | October October | NA (The 300%
Tyres 15,000 6,2017 | 10,2017 11,2017 | Net (for
Ltd Million Proceeds of | FY2017-
the Issue 18)
were not
proposed to
be utilized
towards
any specific
project)

(B) Significant Adverse Factors

(i) None of the Group Companies is a ‘sick company’ within the meaning of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1995 or is under winding up/insolvency proceedings.

(ii) None of the Group Companies is a loss making entity in terms of its audited financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.

(©) Defunct Companies

None of the Group Companies is defunct and for which application has been made to the Registrar of
Companies for striking its name off in the immediately preceding five years.

(D) Common Pursuits

The Company has entered into a transaction with Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited for
purchasing the medicine in the ordinary course of business and on arm length basis. Also, the
Company has entered into a lease agreement with Swarnganga Consultants Private Limited for using
its office as registered office of the Company.
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REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for the Scheme

The NCLT, Delhi vide its order dated September 30, 2019 has approved the Composite Scheme between
AHSL, AEL, AGLSL and the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors. Pursuant to the
Composite Scheme, AHSL and AEL will merge into AGLSL which thereafter merges into the Company. The
effective date of the Composite Scheme is October 14, 2019. The Company has vide the resolution passed by
its Board of Directors on October 26, 2019 allotted 1 Equity Share of the Company against 5 equity shares of
AGLSL to the shareholders of AGLSL as on the record date, October 25, 2019.

In accordance with the Composite Scheme, the Equity Shares of the Company issued pursuant to the Composite
Scheme shall be listed and admitted to trading on BSE and NSE. Such admission and listing is not automatic
and will be subject to fulfillment by the Company of the listing criteria of BSE and NSE for such issues and
also subject to such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by BSE and NSE at the time of the
application by the Company seeking listing.

Prohibition by SEBI

The Company, its Promoters, Promoter Group Entities, Directors, Group Companies, or the natural persons
behind the body corporate in the foregoing, are not prohibited from accessing the capital markets or debarred
from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities
market regulator in any other jurisdiction or any other authority/court.

Further, none of the Directors or Promoters is a director or promoter of any other company which is currently
debarred from accessing the capital markets by SEBI.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018
The Company, the Promoters and the members of the Company’s Promoter Group are in compliance with the
Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, to the extent applicable.

Fugitive Economic Offences
None of the Promoters or Directors is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

Association with the Securities Market
None of the Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner. No action has been initiated by
SEBI against any of the Directors in the past 5 years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum.

Identification as willful defaulter
The Company, Promoters and Directors have not been identified as willful defaulters by any bank and/or
financial institution in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the RBI.

Eligibility Criteria

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria of SEBI ICDR Regulations do not
become applicable. The Company vide letter dated January 10, 2020 has been granted exemption from
compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR under Rule 19(7) of SCRR from SEBI.

The Company has submitted the draft information memorandum and this Information Memorandum,
containing information about itself, making disclosures in line with the disclosure requirement for public issues,
as applicable to BSE and NSE for making this Information Memorandum available to public through their
websites viz. www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

The Company has made this Information Memorandum available on its website viz. www.artemishospitals.com
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The Company has on January 15, 2020 published an advertisement in the newspapers containing its details in
line with the SEBI Circular with the details required as in terms of Annexure A Part ITI(A) para 2(5) of the
said circular. The advertisement has drawn specific reference to the availability of this Information
Memorandum on the Company’s website.

Disclaimers

IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS INFORMATION
MEMORANDUM TO SEBI SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR BE CONSTRUED THAT
THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT
BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY SEBI NOR DOES SEBI GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY
OR ADEQUACY OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM, OR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF
THE INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES OR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY STATEMENTS SET
OUT IN THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM.

General Disclaimer of the Company

The Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Information Memorandum
or in the advertisement published on January 15, 2020 in terms of SEBI Circular with the details required as
in terms of Annexure A Part III(A) para 2(5) of the said circular or any other material issued by or at the
instance of the Company and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at
his or her own risk. All information shall be made available by the Company to the public and investors at
large and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any
manner.”

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction
Exclusive jurisdiction for the purpose of this Information Memorandum is with the competent
courts/authorities in New Delhi, India.

Disclaimer Clause of the BSE

BSE vide its letter dated September 5, 2018 approved the Composite Scheme under Regulation 37 of the
LODR and by virtue of the said approval, BSE’s name has been included in this Information Memorandum as
one of the Stock Exchanges on which the Company’s Equity Shares are proposed to be listed. As required, a
copy of this Information Memorandum has been submitted to BSE.

Disclaimer Clause of the NSE

NSE has vide its letter dated September 14, 2018 approved the Composite Scheme under Regulation 37 of the
LODR and by virtue of the said approval, NSE’s name is included in this Information Memorandum as one of
the stock exchanges on which this Company’s Equity Shares are proposed to be listed. As required, a copy of
this Information Memorandum has been submitted to NSE.

Listing

Application has been made to BSE and NSE for permission to deal in and for an official quotation of the
Equity Shares of the Company. The Company has nominated BSE Limited as the Designated Stock
Exchange for the aforesaid listing of Equity Shares. The Company shall ensure that all steps for the
completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at BSE and NSE within such
period as approved by SEBI.

Listing Approval from BSE and NSE

The Company has received in-principle listing approvals from BSE and NSE vide letter dated December 19,
2019 and December 09, 2019 respectively, and has also received vide letter dated J anuary 10, 2020 {4
exemption from compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR under Rule 19(7) of SCRR from SEBI.

Demat Credit
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The Company has executed a Tripartite Agreement with the Depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL dated 15" July
2014 and 16" October, 2019 for admitting its Equity Shares in demat form. The Company has been allotted the
ISIN Number INE025R01013.

Expert Opinions

Save as stated elsewhere in this Information Memorandum, the Company has not obtained any expert opinions.
Dispatch of Share Certificates

In accordance with the Composite Scheme, new Equity Shares have been issued and allotted to the
shareholders of AGLSL as on the Record Date i.e. October 25, 2019. The Company has dispatched the
physical share certificates to such shareholders of AGLSL in physical form and credited the new Equity
Shares to depository participant accounts of such shareholders of AGLSL on 30/10/2019.

Previous Rights and Public Issues
The Company has not made any public issue since its incorporation.

The Company has not made any rights issue in the past 5 (five) years.

Commission and Brokerage on previous issues

Since the Company has not issued shares to the public in the past, no sum has been paid or has been payable
as commission or brokerage for subscribing to or procuring or agreeing to procure subscription for any of the
Equity Shares in the past 5 years.

Capital issue by Company / other listed Group Companies / Associates
The following are the listed Group Companies and Associates of the Company who have made a capital issue
during the last three years:

Type | Year Date of |[Date  of Date of [Date  of | Rate of
of of Closure | allotment  credit of | completion  dividend
fssue issue of Issue securitiecs | of Project | paid

to demat || where

account object  of
iSsue  was
to finance
the Project
Apollo | QIP 2017 | Rs October | October October | NA (The 300%
Tyres 15,000 6,2017 | 10,2017 11,2017 | Net (for
Ltd Million Proceeds of | FY2017-
the Issue 18)
were not
proposed to
be utilized
towards
any specific
project)

Promise vis-a-vis Performance - Company
This is for the first time the Company is getting listed on any Stock Exchange.

Promise vis-a-vis Performance — Listed Subsidiaries and Listed Promoters

Not Applicable as only private placement.
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Outstanding Debenture or Bonds and Redeemable Preference Shares and Other Instruments
Issued by the Company

TypeofSecurities | NumberofSecurities ~ Holdey of Securities | Terms of Securities

Nil Nil

Stock Market Data for Equity Shares of the Company
Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any Stock Exchange. The Company is seeking approval for
listing of its Equity Shares through this Information Memorandum.

Redressal of Investor Grievances
The Company has the following platforms for addressing investors’ grievances:

. Email id: investor@artemishospitals.com
. SCORES: Shareholders can express their grievances by sending mails to above mail id or raise
complaints in SCORES (Common Portal introduced by SEBI)

Shareholders can express their grievances by sending mails to above e-mail id or raise complaints in SCORES
(commoen portal introduced by SEBI). The Company is currently in the process of activating its SCORES portal,
and hence submitted the requisite application modalities with SEBI. Further, the Shareholders can also raise their
grievances with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Kaushik is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer the Company. His contact
details are as follows:

Address: Artemis Hospital, Sector-51, Gurugram-122001, Haryana

Tel: 0124 4807180

E-mail: rakesh.kaushik@artemishospitals.com

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, the Company has not received any investor complaints since
incorporation.

Auditors
The auditors of the Company are M/s SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN: 000235N/
N500089). The following changes in the auditors have been made during the last three years.
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Name | Dateof Appointment || Date of Removal | Reasons for Removal
September 2014 SPP ceased to exist

M/s S.P. Puri & Co. 12' Merger of SPP with
Chartered Accountants, w.e.f01* April 2018 and into M/s SCV &
New Delhi Co., Chartered
(FRN:001152N) (“SPP™) Accountants, New
Delhi (FRN:000235N)
M/s SCV & Co., 25" April 2018 to hold | On conclusion of 14" Expiry of tenure of
Chartered Accountants, | office till conclusion of | AGM which was held | appointment in Casual
New Delhi 14" AGM which was on 03 August 2018 vacancy
(FRN:000235N) held on 03™ August
2018
M/s SCV & Co. LLP, 03" August 2018 - -
Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi,

(FRN:000235N/N500089)

**¥Note: Members of the Company at their 10" AGM held on 12" Séptember 2014 appointed SPP to
hold the office until the conclusion of the 15" AGM.

SPP informed the Company vide a letter dated 18™ April 2018 that consequent to a merger of SPP with
and into M/s SCV & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN:000235N), SPP ceased to exist
w.e.f. 01% April 2018 and thereafter a casual vacancy arose in the office of Auditor of the Company
which was filled by the Board of Directors on 25™ April 2018 through the appointment of M/s SCV &
Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office till
the conclusion of 14™ AGM which was to be conducted in year 2018.

Members of the Company at their 14" AGM held on 03™ August 2018 appointed M/s SCV & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi and now presently known as M/s SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi, (FRN:000235N/N500089) as Statutory Auditor for a period of three
consecutive years i.e, till the conclusion of 17™ AGM of the Company.

Capitalisation of Reserves / Profits
The Company has not capitalised any profits / reserves during the last five years.

Revaluation of Assets
During FY 2015-16, the Company has revalued its land based on the then current market price determined by an
approved valuer. This has resulted in increase in the book value of fixed assets by Rs 6,58,90,000/-.
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The important provisions of the articles of association of the Company are reproduced below:

The Regulations comprised in these Articles of Association were adopted pursuant to special resolution
passed by the members in their 12" Annual General Meeting of the Company dated 5th August, 2016,
in substitution for, and to the entire exclusion of, the earlier Regulations comprised in the existing

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
(Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

Articles of Association of the Company.

The Regulations contained in Table “F” in the Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013, shall not apply to the Company, except
in so far as the same are repeated, contained, or expressly made
applicable in these Articles or by the said Act.

The marginal notes used in these Articles shall not affect the
construction thereof.

Table F not to
apply

In the Interpretation of these Articles, the following words and
expressions shall have the following meanings assigned there
under, unless repugnant to the subject matter or context thereof
and the Companies Act for the time being in force and as may
be amended from time to time.

INTERPRETATION

Definitions

"Act" means the Companies Act, 2013, and includes where the
context so admits any re-enactment or statutory modification
thereof for the time being in force.

“ACt”

"Articles” means the Articles of Association as originally
framed or as altered from time to time in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

"Articles"

1.

“Applicable Law” means the Act, and as appropriate, includes
any statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order,
decree, bye-law, clearance, directive, guideline, policy,
requirement, notifications and clarifications or other

“Applicable Law”
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governmental instruction or any similar form of decision of, or
determination by, or any interpretation or administration having
the force of law of any of the foregoing, by any governmental
authority having jurisdiction over the matter in question or
mandatory standards as may be applicable from time to time.

v, | "Board of Directors" or "The Board" means the collective body "Board of
of the directors of the Company as defined under section 2(10) Directors”" or "The
of the Companies Act, 2013. Board"

v. | “Chairperson” or “Chairman” shall mean the Person who acts “Chairperson "/
as chair to any meeting of the Company or the Chairman of the “ Chairman”
Company, named as such.

vl | “Committee” means any committee of the Board of Directors “Committee”
of the Company formed as per the requirements of Applicable
Law or for any other purpose as the Board may deem fit.

vil. | “CEQ” means an officer of a Company, who has been “CEO”
designated as such by the Comipany

vi | “Company" means ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES “Company"
LIMITED.

x| “Dividend” includes interim dividend. “Dividend”

% | “Financial Controller” or “CFO” means a person designated as “Financial
the Financial Controller or the Chief Financial Officer of the Controller” or
Company. “CFO”

<1 | “Financial Year” - period ending on the 31* day of March “Financial Year”
every year, and where it has been incorporated on or afier the
Ist day of January of a year. the period ending on the 31 day
of March of the following year.

<L | ~In writing or written” means and include printing, typing, “In  writing or
lithographing, computer mode and other modes of reproducing written”
words in visible form.

x| "Month" means a calendar month. "Month"

Xiv. | “Persons” means and includes any atificial juridical person. “Persons”
corporations or such other entities as are entitled to hold
property in their own naine.

xv. | “Register of Menibers” means the register of members to be “Register of
kept and maintained in such form and such manner as may be Members™
prescribed by the Act.

vl | “Rules” means the applicable rules for the time being in force “Rules”

as prescribed under relevant sections of the Act.
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XVIL

"Seal" means the Common Seal of the Company.

“Seal”

XVIL

“Secretary” or *Company Secretary” shall have the same
meaning assigned to such term under Section 2(24) of the Act
and means the Secretary for the time being of the Company and
includes an Acting Secretary.

“Company
Secretary"

“Secretary™ or

XIX.

“Section™ means the relevant section of the Act; and shall, in
case of any modification or re-enactment of the Act shall be
deemed to refer to any corresponding provision of the Act as so
modified or re-enacted.

“Section”™

“Total Strength" means the total strength of the Board of
Directors of the Company as determined in pursuance of the
Act after deducting, if any, those whose places may be vacant
at the time,

“Total Strength"

XXIL

"Year" means the English calendar vear.

"Year"

XXIL

Words importing the singular number include the plural
number and vice versa and words importing the masculine
gender also include feminine gender. Words importing
persons include Corporations as well as individuals.

In the interpretation of these Articles, the following
expressions shall have meaning written hereunder, unless
repugnant to the subject or context.

Save as defined in these Articles, any word(s) or expression(s)
defined in the Act shall, if not inconsistent with the subject or
context, bear the same meaning so far as these Articles are
concerned.

“Singular”

L

The intention of these Articles is to be in consonance with the
contemporary rules and regulations prevailing in India. If there
is an amendment in any Act, rules and regulations allowing
what were not previously allowed under the statute, the Articles
herein shall be deemed to have been amended to the extent that
Articles will not be capable of restricting what has been
allowed by the Act by virtue of an amendment subsequent to
registration of the Articles.

Articles  to
Contemporary
nature.

be

in

SHARE CAPITAL

A)The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is as
mentioned in Claiise V of the Memorandum of Association
of the Company including amendments thereto, if any, with
power to increase or reduce the Share capital with the rights,
privileges and conditions, attaching thereto as are provided
by the Articles of Association of the Company for the time
being, with power to divide the Share in the capital for the

Share Capital
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time being into such preferential, qualified to special rights,
privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
for the time being and to vary, modify or abrogate any such
rights. privileges or conditions in such manner as may be
permitted by Act or statutory modification thereof or
provided by the Articles of Assaciation of the Company for
the time being.

The Company shall be entitled to dematerialize its existing
shares, reconvert its shares held by the Depositories
electronically to physical form and/or to offer its fresh
shares in physical form or electronic form pursuant to the
Depasitories Act, 1996 and the rules framed thereunder, if
any.

B)Subject to the provisions of the Act and of these Articles, the
shares in the subscribed capital of the Company for the time
being (including any shares forming part of any increased
Capital of the Company) and other securities of the
Company shall be under the control of the Directors who
may allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to
such persons, in such proportion and on such terms and
conditions and either at a premium or at par and at such time
as they may from time to time think fit and proper and with
full power to give to any person the option to be allotted
shares of the Company either at par or at a premium, such
option being exercisable at such times and for such
consideration as the Directors may think fit. Provided that
the option or right for the allotment of shares shall not be
given to any person or persons without the sanction of
Company in General Meeting.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and other applicable laws,
the further issue of shares by the Board or the Company, as the
case may be, shall be made to:-

(a) persons who, at the date of offer, are holders of
equity shares of the Company; such offer shall be
deemed to include a right exercisable by the person
concerned to renounce the shares offered to him or
any of them in favour of any other person; or

(b) employees under any scheme of employees’ stock
option; or

(c) any persons, whether or not those persons include
the persons referred to in clause (a) or clause (b)
above.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class
issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise

expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that passu unless
class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further otherwise
shares ranking pari-passu therewith. specified.

Shares under the
control of  the
Directors

Further issue of
Capital

Further Issue of

Shares rank pari-
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Subject to and in accordance with the Act and other applicable
laws, the Company may issue further shares and other securities
including depository receipts in any manner whatsoever as the
Board may determine including by way of preferential offer or
private placement or any other permitted manner.

Mode of further
issue of shares and
other securities

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the
Directors may allot and issue shares in the capital of the
Company as payment or part- payment for any property or
assets of any kind whatsoever, sold or to be sold or transterred
or to be transferred, or for goods or machinery supplied or to
be supplied or for services rendered or to be rendered or for
technical assistance or know-how made or to be made
available to the Company or for the conduct of its business and
shares which may be so allotted may be issued as fully or
partly paid-up otherwise than in cash and if so issued, shall be
deemed to be fully or partly paid as the case may be.

Allotment
otherwise than for
cash

The share capital of the company shall comprise of the
following kinds of shares in accordance with these Articles, the
Act and other applicable laws:-

a) Equity share capital with voting rights and / or with
differential rights as regards dividend, voting or
otherwise as per applicable provisions

b) Preference Share Capital.

Kinds of Share
Capital

10.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the
power to issue/re-issue preference shares of one or more
classes which are liable to be redeemed or converted to
equity shares, on such terms and conditions and in such
manner as may be determined by the Board.

Power to issue
Redeemable
Preference Shares

Such shares shall be redeemed shares only on the terms on
which they were issued or as varied after due approval of
preference shareholders under Section 48 of the Act and in
due compliance with section 35 of the Act and other
Applicable Law, if any.

Redemption of
Preference Shares

If at any time the share capital is divided into different
classes of Shares, the rights attached to any class (unless
otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the Shares of that
class) may, subject to the provisions of Sections 106 and 107
of Companies Act, 1956 or corresponding Section 48 as may
be applicable., and whether or not the company is being
wound-up, be varied with the consent in writing of the
holders of three-fourths of the issued Shares of that class or
with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
meeting of the holders of the Shares of that class.

Rights of
shareholders when
shares are divided
into different
classes

A person subscribing to shares offered by the Company shall
have the option either to receive certificates for such shares
or hold the shares in a dematerialized state with a depository.
Where a person opts to hold any share with the depository,

the Company shall intimate such depository the details of

Share certificate or
Demat account
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allotment of the share to enable the depository to enter in its
records the name of such person as the beneficial owner of
that share.

14, (1) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the Issue of certificate

register of members shall be entitled to receive within

two months after allotment or within one month from the

date of receipt by the Company of the application for the

registration of transfer or transmission or within such

other period as the terms of issue shall provide —

a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of
any charges; or

b) several certificates, each for one or more of his
shares, upon payment of such charges as may be
fixed by the Board for each certificate after the first.

(2) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify Certificate to bear
the shares to which it relates and the amount paid-up seal
thereon.

(3) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several One certificate for
persons, the Company shall not be bound to issue more shares held jointly
than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a
share to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient
delivery to all such holders.

L If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or [ssue  of new
torn or if there be no further space on the back for certificate in place
endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender of one defaced, lost
thereof to the Company, a new certificate may be issued in or destroyed
lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then
upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of the Company and on
execution of such indemnity as the Board deems adequate, a
new certificate in lieu thereof shall be given. Every
certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of
fees for each certificate as may be fixed by the Board, subject
to the provisions of Act.

16. Subject to the provisions of the Act (as may be applicable from Provisions as to
time to  time), the foregoing provisions as regard issue of issue  of  share
certificate shall mutatis mutandis apply to issue of certificates certificate for any
for any other Securities including debentures, preference share other Securities to
etc. of the Company apply mutatis

mutandis

17. Except as required by law or pursuant to order of Court Company not

having competent jurisdiction, the Company shall be entitled
to treat the person whose name appears on the Register of
Members as the holder of any Share or whose name appears
as the Beneficial Owner of shares in the records of the
Depository, as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly,
shall not be bound to recognize (even when having notice

bound to recognize
any interest
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thereof) any benami, trust or equity or equitable, contingent,
future or partial interest in any share, or any interest in any
fractional part of share, or other claim to or interest in such
share on the part of any other person whether or not he shall
have express or implied notice thereof.

UNDERWRITING AND BROKERAGE

18.

The Company may subject to the provisions of Section40(6) of
the Act read with The Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and subject to the applicable SEBI
guidelines and subject to the terms of issue of the security, as
defined in the Securities Contract (Regulations) Act, 1956 and
other Applicable Law, the Company may at any time pay a
commission to any person in consideration of his subscribing
or agreeing to subscribe or his procuring or agreeing to procure
subscriptions, whether absolutely or conditionally, for any
shares in or debentures of the Company but so that the amount
or rate of commission does not exceed in the case of shares
five per cent of the price at which the shares are issued and in
the case of debentures two and a half percent of the price at
which the debentures are issued. The commission may be
satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or
partly paid shares or debentures or partly in the one way and
partly in the other.

The Company may, subject to Applicable Law, pay a

reasonable and lawful sum for brokerage to any person for |

subscribing or procuring subscription for any Securities, at
such rate as sanctioned by the Board.

Commission  for
placing shares,
debentures,
securities.

SERVICE OF NOTICES AND DOCUMENTS

A notice or other document may be served or given by the
company on any member either personally or sending it by
post to him to his registered address or (if he has no registered
address in India) to the address, if any, in India supplied by
him to the Company for serving documents or notices on him
or by way of any electronic transmission in accordance with
Section 20 of the Act and Applicable Law made thereunder.

A document may be served on any member by the Company
by sending it to him by post or by registered post or by speed
post or by courier or by delivery to his registered address or by
such electronic or other mode as may be prescribed under
Applicable Laws or where the shareholder has made a special
request for delivery of the document through a particular mode
of services, then the member shall be charged in advance
equivalent to the estimated actual expenses for delivery of the
documents as may be determined by the Company Secretary or
any other person as may be authorised by the Board and such
requisite fee shall be payable by the member to the Company
at least one week in advance of the despatch of the document

Notices to be given
to members
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and thereafter no such request shall be entertained by the
Company.

MODIFICATION/VARIATION OF RIGHTS

If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes
the rights attached to any class of shares (unless otherwise-
provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may,
subject to the provisions of Section 48 of the Companies Act
2013 , be modified, commuted, affected, abrogated or varied
(whether or not the Company is being wound up) with the
consent in writing of such number of the holders of the issued
shares of that class, or with the sanction of a resolution passed
at a separate meeting of the holders of that class of shares as
prescribed by the Act.

Variation of rights
of any class of
shares

To every such separate meeting, all the provisions hereinafter
contained as to General Meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply
to every such meeting.

Provisions of
General Meeting to
be applicable to
separate meetings

LIEN

i) The Company shall have a first and paramount lien—

@ on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all
monies (whether presently payable or not) called, or
payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing
registered in the name of a single person, for all monies
presently payable by him or his estate to the
company:

Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any
share to be wholly or in part exempt from the provisions
of this clause.

Lien on Shares

The Company’s lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all
dividends or interests, as the case may be, payable and bonuses
declared from time to time in respect of such shares for any
money owed to the Company.

Additional Lien on
Dividend, Bonus
etc.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Board, the registration of a
transfer of shares shall operate as a waiver of the Company’s
lien.

Waiver of Lien

to
Lh

For the purpose of enforcing such lien, the Board of Directors
may sell the shares subject thereto in such manner as they think
fit and for that purpose may cause to be issued a duplicate
certificate in respect of such shares and authorize one of the
Directors or some other person to execute a transfer thereof on
behalf of and in the name of such member. No such sale shall
be made until such time as the moneys in respect of which
such lien exists or some part thereof is presently payable or the

Enforcement of
Lien
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liability in respect of which such lien exists is liable to be
presently fulfilled or discharged and until notice in writing of
the intention to sell shall have been served on such Member, or
his heirs, executors, administrators, or other representatives or
upon the persons (if any) entitled by transmission to the shares
of any one or more of such heirs, executors, administrators,
representatives or persons and default shall have been made by
him or them in payment, fulfillment or discharge of such debis,
liabilities or engagements for fourteen (14) days after such
notice.

The net proceeds of any such sale after payment of the costs
of such sale shall be applied in or towards the satisfaction of
such debts, liabilities or engagements of such Member and the
residue (if any), shall subject to a like lien for sums not
presently payable, as existed upon the shares before the sale
be paid to such member or the person, if any, entitled by
transmission to the shares so sold.

Application of
proceeds of sale

27,

The person to whom such share is sold or disposed off, may
be registered as the holder of the share(s) and he shall not be
bound to see to the application of the consideration, nor shall
his title to the share be affected by any irregularity or
invalidity in the proceedings with reference to the sale or
other disposal of the share and after his name has been
entered in the Register of Members in respect of such share,
the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any person.

Title of Purchaser

In exercising its lien, the Company shall be entitled to treat
the registered holder of any share as the absolute owner
thereof and accordingly shall not (except as ordered by a
court of competent jurisdiction or unless required by any
statute) be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to,
or interest in, such share on the part of any other person,
whether a creditor of the registered holder or otherwise. The
Company’s lien shall prevail notwithstanding that it has
received notice of any such claim.

Company Lien to
paramount

Unless otherwise provided under the Act, the provisions of
these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to the lien on other
Securities including debentures of the Company.

Provisions as
regard lien on other
securities

CALLS ON SHARES

The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the
members in respect of any monies unpaid on their shares
(whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by
way of premium) and not by the conditions of allotment
thereof made payable at fixed times.

Board may make
calls

Subject to the provision of the Act, atleast a fourteen (14)
days notice in writing of any calls shall be given by the

INotice of Call
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Company specifying the time and place of payment and the
person(s) to whom such call be paid.

A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the
Board.

Calls may be
revoked or
Postponed.

The Board may from time to time, at its discretion, extend the
time fixed for the payment of any call, and may extend such
time as to payment for all or any of the Members as it may
deem appropriate in any circumstance.

Board may extend
time for payment
of Call

A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when
the resolution of the Board authorizing such call was passed
and may be required to be paid by way of installments.

Calls to date from
resolution

(5
o

The joint holders of a Share shall be jointly and severally
liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.

Liability of joint
holders

(93]
(=)

If the sum payable in respect of any call or installment be not
paid on or before the day appointed for payment thereof, the
holder for the time being or allottee of the Security in respect
of which a call shall have been made or the installment shall
be due shall pay interest on the same, at such rate as
determined by the Board subject to the provisions of the Act.’

When interest on
call or installment
payable

The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such
interest wholly or in part.

Board may waive
interest

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes
payable on allotment or at any fixed date or by installments at
fixed time whether on account of the nominal value of the
share or by way of premium, shall, for the purposes of these
Articles, be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the
date on which by the terms of issue such sum becomes
payable by the registered holder of the share or the legal
representative of a deceased registered holder.

Sum payable in
installments or at
fixed date deemed
Calls

In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant
provisions of these Articles as to payment of interest and
expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum
had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and
notified.

Case of Non-
Payment of Sums

40.

No Member shall be entitled to exercise any voting rights
either personally or by proxy at any meeting of the Company
in respect of any shares registered in his name on which any
calls or other sums presently payable by him have not been
paid or in regard to which the Company has exercised any
right of lien.

No Voting right
when calls in
arrears
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41.

The Board -

a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to
advance the same, all or any part of the monies uncalled
and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and

b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until
the same would, but for such advance, become presently
payable) pay interest at such rate as may be fixed by the
Board.

c) Nothing contained in this clause shall confer on the
member (a) any right to participate in profits or
dividends or (b) any voting rights in respect of the
moneys so paid by him until the same would, but for
such payment, become presently payable by him.

Prepayment of
Calls, interest and
rights thereof

Neither a judgment nor a decree in favour of the Company for
calls or other moneys due in respect of any shares nor any
part payment or satisfaction thereunder nor the receipt by the
Company of a portion of any money which shall from time to
time be due from any Member in respect of any shares either
by way of principal or interest nor any indulgence granted by
the Company in respect of the payment of any money shall
preclude the forfeiture of such shares as hereinafter provided.

not to

Judgment,
or partial payment

forfeiture

decree

preclude

On the trial or hearing of any action or suit brought by the
Company against any Member or his representatives for the
recovery of any money claimed to be due to the Company in
respect of his shares, it shall be sufficient to prove that the
name of the Member in respect of whose shares the money is
sought to be recovered, appears /entered on the Register of
Members as the holder, at or subsequently to the date at which
the money sought to be recovered is alleged to have become
due, of the shares in respect of which such money is sought to
be recovered; that the resolution making the call is duly
recorded in the minute book; and that notice of such call was
duly given to the Member or his representatives issued in
pursuance of these presents; and the proof of the matters
aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the debt. It shall not
be necessary to prove the appointment of the Directors who
made such call, nor that a quorum of Directors was present at
the Board at which any call was made, nor that the meeting at
which any call as made was duly convened or constituted nor
any other matter whatsoever.

suit

Proof on trial of

44,

The foregoing provisions of Articles as regard calls shall
mutatis mutandis apply to other securities including
debentures of the Company.

regard

Provisions as

other securities

calls on
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TRANSFER OF SHARES

The instrument of transfer of any share and other securities in
the Company shall be in such form as prescribed under the
Act. The aforesaid securities transfer form shall be executed
by or on behalf of both the transferor and transferee. The
transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such shares
until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register of
Members in respect thereof. In the case of transfer or
transmission of shares or other marketable Securities where
the Company has not issued any certificates and where such
shares or securities are being held in any electronic and
fungible form in a Depository, the provisions of the
Depositories Act shall apply.

Instrument of
Transfer

46.

The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by the
Act and other Applicable Laws, decline to register -
@ the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share,
to a person of whom they do not approve; or
(b) any transfer of shares on which the Company has a
lien.

Refusal by Board
to register transfer

47.

In case of shares held in physical form, the Board may decline
to recognize any instrument of transfer unless -

(@ the instrument of transfer is duly executed and is in
the form as prescribed under the Act;

() the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the
certificate of the shares to which it relates, and such
other evidence as the Board may reasonably require
to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer; and

(© the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one
class of shares.

Instrument of
Transfer

47A

*Provided that the registration of a transfer shall not be
refused on the grounds of the transferor being either alone or
jointly with any other person or persons indebted to the
Company on any account whatsoever.

48.

On giving of previous notice of at least seven days or such
period as may be prescribed under the Act, the registration of
transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods
as the Board may from time to time determine.

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for
more than thirty days at any one time or for more than forty
five days in the aggregate in any year.

Closure of register
of members or
record date.

49,

The foregoing provisions of Articles as regard transfers of
shares shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to other securities
including debentures of the Company.

Provisions as
regard transfer on
other securities

NOMINATION

e
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50.

a) Every security holder of the Company, may at any time,
nominate, in the prescribed manner, a person to whom his
securities of the Company shall vest in the event of his
death,

b) Where the securities of the Company are held by more than
one person jointly, the joint holders may together nominate,
in the prescribed manner, a person to whom all the rights in
the securities of the Company shall vest in the event of death
of all the joint holders.

¢) Notwithstanding anything contained in any other law for the
time being in force or in any disposition, whether
testamentary or otherwise, in respect of such securities of
the company, where a nomination made in the prescribed
manner purports to confer on any person the right to vest
the securities of the Company, the nominee shall, on the
death of the security-holder or joint security-holders |,
become entitle to all the rights in such security in relation to
such security, to the exclusion of all other persons, unless
the nomination is varied, cancelled in the prescribed
manner.

INomination

*Amended by the Members in the Annual General Meeting held on 26" A

ugust 2019

d) Where the nominee is a minor, it shall be lawful for the
holder of the security, to make the nomination to appoint in
the prescribed manner, any person to become entitled to
security of the Company, in the event of his death, during
the minority.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

51.

On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the
member was a joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or
legal representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the
only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to
his interest in the shares.

Title to shares on
death of a member

(1) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of
the death or insolvency of a member may, upon such
evidence being produced as may from time to time
properly be required by the Board and subject as
hereinafter provided, elect, either—

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or
(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or

insolvent member could have made.

ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to

Transmission of
Shares
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decline or suspend registration as it would have had, if the
deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share

before his death or insolvency.

Board’s right
unaffected

tn
L

The Company shall be fully indemnified by such person from
all liability, if any, by actions taken by the Board to give effect

to such registration or transfer.

Indemnity to the
Company

The Company shall incur no liability or responsibility
whatsoever as a consequence of it registering or giving
effect to any transfer of shares made, or purporting to be
made by any apparent legal owner thereof (as shown or
appearing in the Register of Members) to the prejudice of
persons having or claiming any equitable right, title or
interest to or in the said shares, notwithstanding that the
Company may have had notice of such equitable right, title
or interest or may have received a notice prohibiting
registration of such transfer and may have entered such
notice or referred such notice thereto in any book of the
Company and the Company shall not be bound or required
to regard or attend or give effect to any notice which may
be given to it of any equitable right, title or interest or be
under any liability whatsoever for refusing or neglecting so
to do though it may have been entered or referred to in
some book of the Company. The Company shall
nevertheless be at liberty to regard and attend to any such
notice and give effect thereto, if the Directors shall so think
fit.

Company not
liable for notice
prohibiting
registration of
transfer

[4]
h

a) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be
registered as holder of the share himself, he shall deliver
or send to the Company a notice in writing signed by him
stating that he so elects.

b) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he
shall testify his election by executing a transfer of the
share.

c) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these
regulations relating to the right to transfer and the
registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to
any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if the death or
insolvency of the member had not occurred and the
notice or transfer were a transfer signed by that member.

Right of Election
to be registered as
holder of

share

Testifying Election

Limitations to be
applicable

n
=

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death
or insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to the same
dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled
if he were the registered holder of the share, except that he

shall not, before being registered as a member in respect of

the share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right

Entitlements of
claimant
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conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the
Company. Provided that the Board may, at any time, give
notice requiring any such person to elect either to be
registered himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice is
not complied with within ninety days, the Board may
thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other
monies payable in respect of the share, until the requirements
of the notice have been complied with.

57,

The foregoing provisions of Articles as regard transmission
of shares shall mutatis mutandis apply to other securities
including debentures of the Company.

Provisions as
regard transmission
of other

securities

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

If any Member fails to pay the whole or any part of any call
or installment or any money due in respect of any shares
either by way of principal or interest on or before the day
appointed for the payment of the same, the Board may at any
time thereafter during such time as the call or installment or
any part thereof and other moneys remain unpaid or a
judgment or decree in respect thereof remains unsatisfied in
whole or in part, serve a notice on such Member or on the
person, if any, entitled to the share by transmission requiring
him to pay such call or installment or such part thereof or
other moneys as remain unpaid together with any interest that
may have accrued and all expenses (legal or otherwise) that
may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such
non-payment.

If call or
installment not
paid, notice may be
given

The notice shall name a day (not less than fourteen (14) days
from the date of service of the notice) on or before which and
the place or places at which such call, installment or such part
thereof and other moneys as aforesaid and such interest and
expenses as aforesaid are to be paid, and if payable to any
person other than the Company, the person to whom such
payment is to be made. The notice shall also state that in the
event of non-payment on or before the time and if payable to
any person other than the Company, at the place appointed,
the shares in respect of which the call was made or
installment is payable will be liable to be forfeited.

Term and Form of
INotice

60.

If the requirement of any such notice as aforesaid shall not be
complied with, every or any of the shares in respect of which
such notice has been given, may at any time thereafter but
before payment of all calls or installment, interest and
expenses and other moneys due in respect thereof, be
forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. Such
forfeiture shall include all dividends declared or any other
money payable in respect of the forfeited shares and not
actually paid before the forfeiture.

In default  of
payment shares to
be forfeited
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61. Neither the receipt by the Company for a portion of any Receipt of part
money which may from time to time be due from any amount or grant of
member in respect of his shares, nor any indulgence that may indulgence not to
be granted by the Company in respect of payment of any such affect forfeiture
money, shall preclude the Company from thereafter
proceeding to enforce a forfeiture in respect of such shares as
herein provided. Such forfeiture shall include all dividends
declared or any other moneys payable in respect of the
forfeited shares and not actually paid before the forfeiture.

62. When any shares shall have been so forfeited, an entry of the Entry of Forfeiture
forfeiture with the date thereof, shall be made in the Register in Register of
of Members and notice of the forfeiture shall be given to the Members
Member in whose name it stood immediately prior to the
forfeiture but no forfeiture shall be, in any manner invalidated
by any omission or neglect to give such notice or to make any
entry as aforesaid.

63. The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction at the time of Effect of forfeiture
the forfeiture, of all interest in and all claims of and demands
against the Company, in respect of the share and all other
rights incidental to the share except only such of those rights
as by these presents are expressly saved.

64. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of Forfeited shares to
the Company and may be sold or otherwise disposed of either be property of the
to the original holder thereof, or to any other person upon Company & may
such terms and in such manner as the Board shall think fit. be sold ete.

65. The Board may at any time before any share so forfeited shall Board may annul

have been sold or otherwise disposed of or re-allotted, forfeiture
annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions as
they think fit.

66, A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a Shareholder  still
Member in respect of the forfeited shares but such a person liable to  pay
shall notwithstanding such forfeiture, be liable to pay and money owing at
shall forthwith pay to the Company all calls, installments, the time of
interest, expenses and other money owing upon or in respect forfeiture and
of such shares at the time of the forfeiture together with interest
interest thereon from the time of the forfeiture until payment
at such rate as the Board may determine and the Board may
enforce the payment of the whole or a portion thereof as if it
were a new call made at the date of the forfeiture but shall not
be under any obligation to do so.

67. The liability of such person shall cease if and when the Cessation of
company shall have received payment in full of all such liability
monies in respect of the shares.

68. a) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Conclusive
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director, the manager or the secretary of the Company,
and that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited
on adate stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive
evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons
claiming to be entitled to the share;

b) The Company may receive the consideration, if any,
given for the share on any sale, re-allotment or disposal
thereof and may execute a transfer of the share in favour
of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed of;

0 The transferce shall thereupon be registered as the holder
of the share; and

d The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application
of the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the
share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the
proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale, re-
allotment or disposal of the share.

Evidence of
forfeiture

Title of purchaser
and transferee of
forfeited

shares

Transferee to be
registered as holder

Transferee not
affected

69. Upon any sale, re-allotment or other disposal under the Cancellation of
provisions of the preceding Articles, the certificate(s), if any, Certificate
originally issued in respect of the relative shares shall (unless
the same shall on demand by the Company has been
previously surrendered to it by the defaulting member) stand
cancelled and become null and void and be of no effect, and
the Board shall be entitled to issue a duplicate certificate(s) in
respect of the said shares to the person(s) entitled thereto.

70. The Board may subject to the provisions of the Act, accept a Surrender of
surrender of any share from or by any member desirous of Shares
swrrendering the share on such terms as they think fit.

g The provisions of these foregoing regulations as to forfeiture Forfeiture to apply
shall apply in the case of non-payment of any sum which, by on non- payment of
the terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, any sum.
whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by
way of premium, as if the same had been payable by virtue of
a call duly made and notified.

72. The foregoing provisions of Articles as regard forfeiture of Provisions as
shares shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to other securities regard forfeiture of
including debentures of the Company. other

Securities.
ALTERATION OF CAPITAL
73. The Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution Increase in Share

increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into
shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution.
Subject to the provisions of the Act, the shares shall be issued
upon such terms and conditions and with such rights and

Capital
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privileges annexed thereto as the General Meeting creating
the same shall direct and if no direction be given, as the
Board shall determine.

74.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may, by
ordinary resolution:-

a) Increase the share capital by such sum, to be
" divided into shares of such amount as it think
expedient;

b) Sub-divide and consolidate and all or any of its
shares into shares of larger amount than its
existing shares:

Provided that any consolidation and division which
results in changes in the voting percentage of
members shall  require applicable approvals
under the Act;

c) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into
stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-up
shares of any denomination;

d) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into
shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the
memorandum; so, however, that in the sub-
division the proportion between the amount paid
and the amount, if any, unpaid on each reduced
share shall be the same as it was in the case of the
Share from which the reduced share is derived;

e) cancel any shares which, at the date of the
passing of the resolution, have not been taken or
agreed to be taken by any person and diminish
the amount of its Share Capital by the amount of
the Shares so cancelled, provided that any such
cancellation shall not deemed to be any reduction
of capital under the Act.

Power to alter

Share
Capital

75.

The holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof
in the same manner as and subject to the same regulations
under which the shares from which the stock arose might
before the conversion have been transferred or as near thereto
as circumstances admit, provided that, the Board may, from
time to time fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so
however, that Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum
amount of stock transferable and such minimum shall not
exceed the nominal amount of shares from which the stock
arose.

Transfer of stock

76.

The holders of stock shall according to the amount of stock
held by them have the same rights, privileges and advantages
as regards dividends, participation in profits, voting at
meetings of the Company and other matters as if they held the
shares from which the stock arose but no such privilege or

Rights
stockholders

of
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advantage (except as to dividends, participation in the profits
of the Company and in the assets on winding up) shall be
conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing
in shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage.

77,

Such of the regulations of the Company as are applicable to
paid-up shares shall apply to stock and the words ‘Share’,
‘Shareholder’ and ‘Member’ in those regulations shall include
‘stock’ and ‘stockholder’ respectively.

Regulation
apply to stock

to

78.

The Company may from time to time in accordance with the
provisions of the Act by resolution as specified in the Act,
reduce
a) its share capital; and/or,
b) any capital redemption reserve account; and/or,
c) securities premium account; and/or

d) any other reserve in the nature of share capital.

and in particular may pay off any paid-up share capital upon
the footing that it may be called up again or
otherwise and may, if and so far as is necessary,
alter its Memorandum by reducing the amount of its
share capital and of its shares accordingly.

Reduction
Capital

of

CAPITALIZATION OF PROFITS

79.

(1)(i) Subject to the provisions of the Act and applicable laws,
the Company may, with the approval of the Members by
way of an ordinary resolution, upon the recommendation
of the Board, resolve—

(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount
for the time being standing to the credit of any of the
Company’s reserve accounts, or to the credit of the
Statement of profit and loss, or otherwise available
for distribution; and

(b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution
in the manner specified in clause (ii) amongst the
members who would have been entitled thereto, if
distributed by way of dividend and in the same
proportions.

(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be
applied, subject to the provision contained herein in these
Articles and subject to in compliance with the provisions
of Act, either in or towards—

(8 paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on
any shares held by such members respectively;

(b) paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to
be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid-up,

Capitalization
Profits

of
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to and amongst such members in the proportions
aforesaid;

© partly in the way specified in sub-clause (a) and
partly in that specified in sub-clause (b);

(d A securities premium account and a capital
redemption reserve account may, for the purposes of
this regulation, be applied in the paying up of
unissued shares to be issued to members of the
Company as fully paid bonus share

(€) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed
by the Company in pursuance of this regulation.

(2) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been
passed, the Board shall—

@ make all appropriations and applications of the
undivided profits resolved to be capitalized thereby,
and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if
any;

) make such provisions, by the issue of fractional
certificates/ coupons or by payment in cash or
otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of shares
becoming distributable in fractions; and

© generally do all acts and things required to give effect
thereto.

BUY BACK OF SHARES

80.

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles but
subject to the provisions of Sections 67, 68, 69 and 70 of the
Act and Applicable Law for the time being in force, the
Company shall have the power 10 purchase/ buy-back its own
sharcs and/or other Securities, subject to the limits and upon
such terms and conditions and subject to such approvals as may
be required under the applicable sections of the Act and other
provisions, rules, guidelines, regulations, byelaws and any
amendment and modifications thereto.

Purchase of its own
shares/ securities

GENERAL MEETING

81.

All general meetings other than Annual General Meeting shall
be called extraordinary general meeting.

Extraordinary
General Meeting

82.

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary
general meeting.

If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in
number to form a quorum are not within India, any director or
any two members of the company may call an extraordinary

Power of Board to
call Extra ordinary
General Meeting
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general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which such a meeting may be called by the Board.

The Chairman/ of the Board and in his absence the Vice-
chairman of the Board shall be entitled to take the Chair at
every General Meeting. If there be no Chairman or if at any
meeting he shall not be present within fifteen (15) minutes
after the time appointed for holding such meeting or is
unwilling to act, the Directors present may choose a Chairman
and in default of their doing so, the members present shall
choose one of the Directors to be the Chairman and if no
Director present be willing to take the Chair, the members
present shall choose one of their members to be the Chairman
of the Meeting.

Chairman of
General Meeting

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETING

84.

The quorum for a General Meeting shall be in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and no business shall be transacted at
any General Meeting unless the quorum be present at the time
when the meeting proceeds to business.

Quorum

85.

A body corporate being a member shall be deemed to be
personally present if it is represented in accordance with
Section 113 of Companies Act, 2013,

Body corporate
deemed to  be
personally present

86.

(a) No business shall be discussed at any General Meeting
except the election of a Chairman whilst the Chair is
vacant.

(b) If a poll is demanded on the election of the Chairman it
shall be taken forthwith in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and these Articles and the Chairman so elected
on the show of hands will exercise all the powers of the
Chairman under the Act and these Articles.

(c) If some other person is elected Chairman as a result of the
poll, he shall be the Chairman for the rest of the meeting

Business confined
to election of
Chairman  whilst
Chair vacant

87.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been
demanded may be preceded with, pending the taking of the
poll.

Demand for poll
not fto prevent
transaction of
other business

88.

At any General Meeting, unless a poll is (before or on the
declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded in
accordance with the provisions of Section 109 of the Act, a
declaration by the Chairman that the resolution has or has not
been carried either unanimously or by a particular majority, and
an entry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the
proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of
the fact, without proof of the number of proportion of the votes
cast in favour of, or against the resolution.

Evidence of the
Passing of
resolution

89.

In case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or
on a poll, the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the meeting at
which the show of hands takes place, or at which the poll is
demanded, shall be entitled to a casting vote or second vote in
addition to his own vote or votes to which he may be entitled

Resolution  how
decided in case
equality of votes
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as a member.

90.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and all other applicable
laws for the time being in force, the Company may from time
to time pass any resolution by means of postal ballot, instead
of transacting the business in General Meeting of the Company
and if such resolution is assented to by a requisite majority of
the Members by means of postal ballot, it shall be deemed to
have been duly passed at a General Meeting.

Postal Ballot

91,

The Company shall cause minutes of all proceedings of every
General Meeting and every resolution passed by postal ballot
to be kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act, by
making, within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of such
meeting, entries thereof in books kept for that purpose with
their pages consecutively numbered.

Each page of every such book shall be initialed or signed and
the last page of the record of proceedings of each meeting shall
be dated and signed by the Chairman of the same meeting
within the aforesaid period of thirty days or in the event of the
death or inability of that Chairman within that period, by a
Director duly authorised by the Board for the purpose.

In no case the minutes of the proceedings of a meeting shall be
attached to any such book as aforesaid by pasting or otherwise.
Any such minutes kept as aforesaid shall be evidence of the
proceedings recorded therein.

Minutes of
General
Meeting

92.

There shall not be included in the minutes any matter which, in
the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting -
(a) is, or could reasonably be regarded, as defamatory
of any person; or

(b) is irrelevant or immaterial to the proceedings; or

(c) is detrimental to the interests of the Company.

Certain matters
not to be included
in Minutes

The Chairman shall exercise an absolute discretion in regard to
the inclusion or non-inclusion of any matter in the minutes on
the grounds specified in the aforesaid clause.

Discretion of
Chairman in
relation to
Minutes

94.

The books containing the aforesaid minutes shall
a) be kept at the Registered Office, and

b) be kept open during business hours to the
inspection of any member without charge subject
to such reasonable restrictions as the Board may
impose from time to time.

Any member shall be entitled to be furnished within seven (7)
working days after he has made a request in that behalf to the
Company with a copy of the minutes on payment of such
amount as may be fixed by the Board.

Inspection &
Copy of minutes
books of General
Meetings

185



Final Information Memorandum

Dated January 15, 2020
Private & Confidential

95.

The Board, and also any person(s) authorized by it, may take
any action before the commencement of any general meeting,
or any meeting of a class of members in the Company, which
they may think fit to ensure the security of the meeting, the
safety of people attending the meeting, and the future orderly
conduct of the meeting. Any decision made in good faith under
this Article shall be final, and rights to attend and participate in
the meeting concerned shall be subject to such decision.

Security at
Meetings

VOTING RIGHTS

96.

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached
to any class or classes of shares,—
a) on a show of hands, every member present in person
shall have one vote; i.e. One person-One Vote; and

b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in
proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the company; i.e. One Fully Paid up share —
One Vote; and

c) on e-voting, the voting rights of members shall be in
proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the company; i.e. One Fully Paid up share —
One Vote

Voting Rights

9.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, no member shall be
entitled to be present or to vote at any General Meeting or
meeting of a class of sharcholders either personally or by
proxy either upon a show of hands or upon a poll or be
reckoned in a quorum whilst any call or other sum shall be due
and presently payable to the Company in respect of any of the
shares of such member or in regard to which the Company, has
exercised, any right or lien.

No member to
vote unless calls
are paid up

98.

No member shall be prohibited from exercising his voting on
the ground that he has not held his share or other interest in the
Company for any specified period preceding the date on which
the vote is taken, or any other ground not being a ground set
out in the preceding Article.

Restriction on
exercise of voting
rights in other
cases to be void.

99,

A member may exercise his vote either at a meeting or by
electronic means in accordance with section 108 and shall vote
only once.

E-voting

a) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who
tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders.

b) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the register of members.

Vote of joint-
holders

100.

Subject to the conditions provided under the Act and other
provisions of these Articles, any person entitled under the
Transmission Clause to any shares may vote at any General
Meeting in respect thereof as if he were the registered holder of
such shares; provided that at least forty-eight (48) hours before
the time of holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting, as the
case may be, at which he proposes to vote he shall satisfy the

Votes in respect
of  shares of
deceased &
insolvent
members
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Director/ Authorized Person, of his right of such shares and
give such indemnity, if any, as the Director/Authorized Person
may require, unless the Directors shall have previously
admitted his right to vote at such meeting in respect thereof.

PROXY
101. | (1) Any member entitled to attend and vote at a general Member may vote
meeting may do so either personally or through his in person  or
constituted attorney or through another person as a proxy otherwise
on his behalf, for that meeting.
(2) The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of Proxies when to
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed be deposited
or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the person named in the
instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument
of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

102. | An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as Form of proxy
prescribed under the Act.

103. | A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of Proxy to be valid
proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or notwithstanding
insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the death  of the
authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer principal.
of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given.

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity,
revocation or transfer shall have been received by the
Company at its office before the commencement of the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy is used.
JOINT HOLDERS
104. | The joint holders of any shares shall be deemed to hold the Joint Holders

shares as joint-tenants with benefits of survivorship subject to
the following and other provisions contained in these Articles:

a) Subject to applicable laws, not more than 3 (three) persons
shall be registered as joint holder of any Shares.

Maximum No. of
Joint Holder

b) The joint holders of any shares shall be liable severally as
well as jointly for and in respect of all calls and ' other
payments, which ought to be made in respect of such
shares.

Joint Holders to
be jointly &
severally liable

¢) Any one of such of joint holders of any shares, may give Receipt by
effectual receipts for any dividends, interests or other moneys anyone to be
payablein respect of such share. sufficient

d) Only the person whose name stands first in the register of Documents to

members as one of the joint-holders of any share shall be
entitled to the delivery of certificate, if any, relating to such
share or to receive notice (which term shall be deemed to
include all relevant documents) and any notice served on or
sent to such person shall be deemed service on all the joint-
holders.

first named joint
holder

e) Any one of two or more joint-holders may vote at any
meeting either personally or by attorney or by proxy in
respect of such shares as if he were solely entitled thereto and
if more than one of such joint holders be present at any

Voting by Joint
Holders
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meeting personally or by proxy or by attorney then that one
of such persons so present whose name stands first or higher
(as the case may be) on the register in respect of such shares
shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof,

f) Several executors or administrators of a deceased member in
whose (deceased member) sole name any share stands, shall
forthe purpose of this clause be deemed joint-holders.

Voting by Joint
Holders

g) The foregoing provisions of Articles as regard joint holders
shall mutatis mutandis apply to other securities including
debentures of the Company.

Provisions as
regard joint
holders of other
securities

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

105.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and unless otherwise
determined by the Company in its General Meeting, the number
of Directors shall not be less than three 3 (Three) and shall not
be more than 15 (Fifteen).

Number of
Directors

106.

The following shall be the first directors of the Company:-
1. Dr. Kushagra Katariya

2. Dr. Yogesh Kumar Trikha.

First Directors

107.

Not less than two —thirds of the total number of Directors of
the Company shall be persons whose period of office is liable
to determination by the retirement of Director by rotation.

The remaining Directors shall be appointed in accordance with
the provisions of these Articles.

Retirement by
rotation

108.

At the Annual General Meeting in each year, one-third of the
Directors for the time being as are liable to retire by rotation or,
if their number is not three or multiple of three then the number
nearest to one-third shall retire from office. The Chairman,
Vice Chairman, Managing Directar, shall not be liable to retire
by rotation within the meaning of this Article.

Directors to retire
annually how
determined.

109.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the
Directors to retire by rotation under the foregoing Article at
every Annual General Meeting shall be those who have longest
in the office since their last appointment, but as between
persons who become Directors on the same day, those who are
to retire shall, in default of and subject to any agreement among
themselves, be determined by lot.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a retiring Director shall
retain office until the dissolution of the meeting at which his re-
appointment is decided or his successor is appointed.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, a
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-appointment.

Ascertainment of
Directors retiring
by rotation

Eligibility for re-
appointment

110.

(a)The Board of Directors may also appoint one or more
whole-time Directors to look after and carry on the day to

Appointment  of
Whole-Time
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day business operations of the Company and their
remuneration shall also be fixed by the Board, subject to
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b)The whole-time Directors shall work under the control and
supervision of the Board of Directors and shall exercise such
powers as may be determined by the Board, However, in
case the Board does not appoint a Managing Director, the
whole-time Director or Directors shall have such powers as
are conferred by these Articles on the Managing Director.

Director

111.

The remuneration payable (whether by way of monthly,
quarterly, half yearly or commission etc) to the directors,
including any managing or whole-time director or manager, if
any, shall be determined in accordance with and subject to the
provisions of the Act, by a resolution passed by the Company in
general meeting.

Remuneration to
Directors

112.

Any Director who performs extra services or make any special
exertions for any of the purposes of the Company then subject
to the provisions of the Act, the Board may remunerate such
Director either by a fixed sum or by a percentage of profits or
otherwise and such remuneration may be either in addition to
or in substitution for any other remuneration to which he may
be entitled to.

Payment towards
extra Services

In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of
the Act, the Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other
expenses properly incurred by them—

in attending and returning from meetings of the Board of
Directors or any committee thereof or general meetings of the
Company;or

in connection with the business of the Company.

Travelling and
Other Expenses

114,

Without prejudice to the general powers and to any other
powers or authorities conferred by these Articles and subject to
the provisions of the Act, the Managing Director or the
Executive Chairman shall have the following powers
exercisable under the superintendence and control of the Board
of Directors until otherwise decided by the Board or by the
Company in General Meeting.

(i) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company
any property, rights or privileges which the Company
is authorized to acquire and to sell, let, exchange or
otherwise dispose of or deal with all or any part of the
property, rights or privileges of the Company at such
price and for such consideration and on such terms and
conditions as he may deem expedient.

(i) To enter into, carry out, rescind or vary all financial
arrangement  with  bank’s officials, companies,
corporations or other bodies for or in connection with
the business of the Company.

(iii) Subject to the limit laid down by the Board of
Directors under Section 179 of the Act to raise or
borrow, from time to time and at his direction any sum

Powers of
Managing
Director or the
Executive
Chairman
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vi)

or sums of money or make any arrangements for
getting funds for the purpose of the Company and to
secure the payment of such sum or sums in such
manner and upon such terms and conditions in all
respects as he may think fit and in particular by
making, drawing, accepting or endorsing on behalf of
the Company any promissory notes or bills of
exchange or by issuing receipts of the Company or by
giving any security of the Company or by creating
mortgage or charge over all or any part of the property
of the company.

To appoint managers, secretaries, agents, experts,
other officers, clerks, servants and other employees of
the Company on such terms and conditions as he may
deem expedient and to determine their powers and
duties and to terminate the service of any one or more
of them, as he may deem expedient in the interest of
the Company.

To institute, prosecute, defend, compromise, withdraw
or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the
Company or otherwise concerning the affairs of the
Company and to act on behalf of the Company in all
matters relating to any Government Agency or
Authority including those relating to taxation,
licensing, excise and customs and in matters
pertaining to the insolvencies or liquidations and to
apply for and obtain Letters of administration, with or
without a will, to the estate or persons with whom the
Company shall have dealings.

To make, draw, sign, accept, endorse, negotiate and
otherwise execute on behalf of the Company all
cheques, promissory notes, drafts, pay orders, bills of
exchange, bills of lading and other documents of titles
and securities, including securities of Government of
India and other promissory notes, contracts, transfer
deeds and other instruments as shall be necessary in
his opinion for carrying on the business of the
Company.

Subject to the overall limit fixed by the Board of
Directors under Section 179 of the Act, to invest and
deal with the monies of the Company not immediately
required for the purposes thereof upon such securities
or investments and in such manner as he thinks fit and,
from time to time, to vary or realize or otherwise deal
with such securities and investments.

(viii) To negotiate and enter into any contracts and execute,

rescind or vary all such contracts and do all such acts,
deeds and things in the name and on behalf of the
Company.

115.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the
power to appoint a person as an additional director, provided

Additional
Director

190



Final Information Memorandum
Dated January 15,2020
Private & Confidential

that the number of the directors and additional directors together
shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the
Board by the articles. ‘

Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company but shall be eligible for
appointment by the Company as a director at that meeting
subject to the provisions of the Act.

116.

The Board may appoint a person, not being a person holding any
alternate directorship for any other director in the Company, to
act as an alternate director for a director during his absence for a
period of not less than three months from India.

Provided that no person shall be appointed as an alternate
director for an Independent Director, unless he is qualified to
be appointed as an Independent Director under the provisions
of the Act.

An alternate director shall not hold office for a period longer
than that permissible to the director in whose place he has been
appointed and shall vacate office if and when the director in
whose place he has been appointed returns to India.

If the term of office of original director is determined before he
so returns to India, any provision in the Act, or in these
Articles for the automatic re- appointment of the retiring
directors in default of another appointment shall apply to the
original director and not to the alternate director.

Alternate Director

117.

Subject to the provision of the Act, the Board shall have power
at any time to appoint another person to be a director to fill a
casual vacancy. Any person so appointed shall hold office only
upto the date upto which the director in whose place he is
appointed would have held office if it had not been vacated by
him.

Director’s Power
to fill  casual
vacancy

118.

No Director of the Company is required to hold any
qualification share of the Company.

Qualification  of
Directors

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD

119,

The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business,
adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings, as it thinks fit.

Convening  of
Meeting of
Board

120.

The Chairman/Vice-Chairman or any one Director with the
previous consent of the Chairman/Vice-Chairman
may, or the company secretary on the direction of
the Chairman/Vice-Chairman shall, at any time,
summon a meeting of the Board.

Summoning
of Board
meeting

121.

(a) Subject to provisions of the Act, the quorum for a
meeting of the Board shall be one-third of its total
strength (any fraction contained in one- third be
rounded up as one) or two Directors whichever is
higher,

(b) the participation of the directors by video
conferencing or by other audio visual means shall also

be counted for the purposes of quorum under this sub-
section.

(c) Where at any time the number of interested directors

Quorum of Board
Meeting
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exceeds or is equal to two-thirds of the total strength
of the Board of Directors, the number of directors
who are not interested directors and present at the
meeting, being not less than two, shall be the quorum
during such time.

(d) A meeting of the Board for the time being at which a
quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or
any of the authorities, powers and discretion by or
under the Act or the Articles of the Company, for the
time being vested in or exercisable by the Board of
Directors generally.

122. | Shri Onkar S.Kanwar, the present Chairman of the Board, shall Appointment  of
be the Chairman of the Company and shall not be liable to Chairman/ Vice-
retire by rotation. Chairman.

The Directors may elect a Vice Chairman and determine the
period for which he shall hold office.

123. | The participation of directors in a meeting of the Board may Participation  at
be either in person or through video conferencing or audio Board Meetings
visual means or as may be prescribed by the Rules or
permitted under applicable laws.

124. | Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions Decisions at
arising at any meeting of the Board shall be decided by a Board  Meeting
majority of votes. Casting Vote of

Chairman/Vice-
In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of chairman
the Board, if any, shall have a second or casting vote.

125. | The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy Directors not to
in the Board; but, if and so long as their number is reduced act in case the
below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, number gets
the continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of reduced below
increasing the number of directors to that fixed for the quorum
quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the Company
and for no other purpose.

126. | a) The Chairman of the Company shall be the Chairman at Presiding over the
meetings of the Board. In absence of Chairman, Vice- Meetings of
Chairman elected by the Board shall automatically Chair the Board
meeting. |
b) If at any meeting the Chairman/Vice-Chairman is not present Directors to elect
within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the a Chairman
meeting, the directors present may choose one of them to be
Chairman of the meeting.

127. Delegation of

a) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate

any of its powers to Committees consisting of such member or POWGI'. to
members of its body as it thinks fit. Committee
b) Any Committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the Committee to
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powers so delegated, conform to any regulations that may be abide regulations
imposed on it by the Board. by Board

¢) The participation of directors in a meeting of the Committee Participation at
may be either in person or through video conferencing or audio meetings of
visual means or any other mode as may be prescribed. Committee

d) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may from Remuneration  of
time to time fix the remuneration to be paid to any member or Committee
members of their body constituting a Committee appointed Members

under this Article and may pay the same.

128. | a) A Committee may elect a Chairman of its meetings unless Presiding over
the Board, while constituting a Committee, has appointed a Committee
Chairman of such Committee. Meeting

b) If no such Chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the
Chairman is not present within fifteen minutes after
the time appointed for holding the meeting, the
members present may choose one of their members to
be Chairman of the meeting.
129. |a) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit. Meeting of
Comimittee and
b) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be Decisions thereof
determined by a majority of votes of the members present. Casting Vote of
Chairman  /Vice-
¢) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman/Vice- Chairman
Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

130. | All acts done by any meeting of the Board or by a Committee Validity of acts of
of Board or by any person acting as a Director, shall Board and
notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered that there Committee
was some defect in the appointment of such Director or person
acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were or was
disqualified or had vacated office or that the appointment of
any of them had been terminated by virtue of any provisions or
any of them had been terminated by virtue of any provisions
contained in the Act or in these Articles, be as valid as if every
such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a
Director, provided that nothing in this Article shall be deemed
to give validity to acts done by the Directors after their
appointment had been shown to the Company to be invalid or to
have been terminated.

131. | The Minutes duly signed by the Chairman and duly confirmed Minutes to be
by the Directors shall be conclusive evidence of the conduct of conclusive
business and presence of directors at the Board Meeting. evidence

132. | There shall not be included in the minutes any matter which, in Certain matters not
the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting - to be included in

(d) is, or could reasonably be regarded, as defamatory Minutes
of any person; or
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(e) is irrelevant or immaterial to the proceedings; or

(f) is detrimental to the interests of the Company.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in
writing, signed, whether manually or by secure electronic
mode, by a majority of the members of the Board or of a
Committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice
of a meeting of the Board or Committee, shall be valid and
effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or
Committee, duly convened and held.

Resolution by
Circulation

Subject to the applicability of the relevant provisions of the
Act and other applicable laws, the Board shall
constitute relevant committees of Board including
audit committee, nomination & remuneration
committee, corporate social responsibility committee
or such other committee of Board as required to be
constituted under the Act and their constitution and
other related matters shall be governed in accordance
with the Act and other applicable laws.

Constitution of
Committees

POWERS OF BOARD

A) Subject to the provisions of Sections 179 and 180(1)(C) of
the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made there under, the
Board may, from time to time and at its discretion, borrow
or raise any sum or sums of money for the purposes of the
Company in such manner and on such terms and conditions
in all respects as it may think fit, with or without security or
on security of all or any part of the movable and/or
immovable properties of the Company or in particular by
the issue of bonds, debentures or debenture stock or any
other security of the Company charged upon the whole or
any part of the undertaking of the Company or upon any
assets of the Company, both present and future, including
its uncalled capital for the time being.

B) Bonds, Debentures, Debenture-stock or other securitics
may be issued at par, discount or premium and with any
special privileges and conditions as to redemption,
appointment of Directors, conversion into shares and
otherwise,

Borrowing powers

The management of the business of the Company shall be
vested in the Board and the Board may exercise all such
powers, and do all such acts and things, as the Company is by
the memorandum of association or otherwise authorized to
exercise and do, and, not hereby or by the statute or otherwise
directed or required to be exercised or done by the Company in
general meeting but subject nevertheless to the provisions of

the Act and other laws and of the memorandum of assocjation

Board vested with
General Powers of
the Company
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and these Articles and to any regulations, not being
inconsistent with the memorandum of association and these
Articles or the Act, from time to time made by the Company in
general meeting provided that no such regulation shall
invalidate any prior act of the Board which would have been
valid if such regulation had not been made.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

137. | Subject to the provisions of the Act,—A managing director, Appeintment  of
whole-time director, chief executive officer, manager, company KMPs and their
secretary and chief financial officer may be appointed by the removal by
Board as key managerial personnel for such term, at such Resolution of
remuneration and upon such conditions as it may think fit; and Board
any managing director, whole-time director, chief executive
officer, manager, company secretary and chief financial officer so
appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the
Board; the Board may appoint one or more chief executive
officers for its multiple businesses.

138. | A director may be appointed as managing director, whole-time Director may act as
director, chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or KMP
chief financial officer.

SEAL

139. | The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal. The seal and its

custody

140. | The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument Affixation of Seal
except by the authority of a resolution of the Board or of a
Committee of the Board authorized by it in that behalf, and
except in the presence of at least one director or the secretary or
such other person as the Board may authorize for the purpose;
and such director or the secretary or other person aforesaid shall
sign every instrument to which the seal of the Company is so
affixed in hispresence.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVE

141. | The Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no Company in
dividend shall exc.eted the amount re_commended by the Board General ~ Meeting
bl_.ll" the Company in general meeting may declare a lesser may drclare
dividend, dividends

142. | Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may from time Interim Dividend
to time pay to the members such interim dividends of such
amount on such class of shares and at such times as it may
think fit.

143. The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside Transfer to

Reserves

out of the profits of the Company such sums as it
thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the
discretion of the Board, be applied for any purpose to
which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied, including provision for meeting
contingencies or for equalizing dividends; and pending
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such application, may, at the like discretion, either be
employed in the business of the Company or be
invested in such investments (other than shares of the
Company) as the Board may, from time to time, think

fit.

144. | The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may Profits may be
consider necessary not to divide, without setting them aside as carried forward
areserve.

145. a. Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares Dividend as per
with special rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be amount of shares
declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as
paid on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but
if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of the shares in the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid according to
the amounts of the shares.

b. No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance -
o . . INo dividend on
of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this regulation as )
; advance payment
paid on the share.
c All dividends shall be apportioned and paid ApPortmnmg of
proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on dividend
the shares during any portion or portions of the period in
respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any share is
issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as
from a particular date such share shall rank for dividend
accordingly.

146. | a) The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any Deduction  from
member all sums of money, if any, presently payable by him to Dividend
the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the
shares of the Company.

b) The Board may retain dividends payable upon shares in
respect of which any person is, under the
Transmission Clause hereinbefore contained, entitled
to become a member, until such person shall become Retention of
a member in respect of such shares. Dividend
147. a) Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash Dividend how
in respect of shares may be paid by electronic mode or remitted
by cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to
the registered address of the holder or, in the case of
joint holders, to the registered address of that one of
the joint holders who is first named on the register of
members, or to such person and to such address as the
holder or joint holders may in writing direct.
b) Every- such cheque‘or warrant shgll‘ be made payable to —— of
the order of the person to whom it is sent.
payment
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c) Payment in any way whatsoever shall be made at the risk
of the person entitled to the money paid or to be paid.
The Company will not be responsible for a payment Discharge to
which is lost or delayed. The Company will be deemed Company

to having made a payment and received a good
discharge for it if a payment using any of the foregoing
permissible means is made.

d) **A]l unclaimed dividend along with interest accrued
shall not be forfeited but shall be credited to a special
bank account as per Section 124 of the Act, and after a
period of seven (7) years transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund established by the
Central Government in terms of Section 125 of the
Act.

1438.

Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give
effective receipts for any dividends, bonuses or other monies
payable in respect of such share.

Receipt in case of
joint holders

149,

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.

INo interest on
Dividends

**dmended by the Members in the Annual General Meeting held on 26

h

August 2019

150.

The waiver in whole or in part of any dividend on any share by
any document (whether or not under seal) shall be
effective only if such document is signed by the
member (or the person entitled to the share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the
holder) and delivered to the Company and if or to the
extent that the same is accepted as such or acted upon
by the Board.

Waiver of
Dividends

ACCOUNTS

151,

a) The books of account and books and papers of the
Company, or any of them, shall be open to the inspection of
directors in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Act.

b) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of
inspecting any books of account or boaks and papers or
document of the Company except as conferred by law
or authorised by the Board.

Inspection by
Directors

REGISTERS

152.

The Company shall keep and maintain at its registered office
all statutory registers which, inferalia, includes register of
charges, register of members, register of debenture holders, (if
any), register of any other security holders (if any), the register
and index of beneficial owners and annual return, register of
loans, guarantees, security and acquisitions, register of

Statutory Registers
& their Inspection
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investments not held in its own name and register of
contracts and arrangements for such duration as the Board
may, unless otherwise prescribed, decide, and in such manner
and containing such particulars as prescribed by the Act.

The registers and copies of annual return shall be open for
inspection during 11.00 am. to 1.00 p.m. on all
working days, other than Saturdays, at the registered
office of the Company by the persons entitled thereto
on payment, where required, of such fees as may be
prescribed by the Act.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and upon receipt of the
request, the extract of such registers and returns may
be obtained by such persons who are so permitted
under the Act, on the payment of such fees as may
be prescribed under the Act in this regard.

153. | a) The Company may exercise the powers conferred on it by Foreign Register
the Act with regard to the keeping of a foreign register;
and the Board may (subject to the provisions of the Act)
make and vary such regulations as it may think fit
respecting the keeping of any such register.

b) The foreign register shall be open for inspection and may
be closed, and extracts may be taken there from and
copies thereof may be required, in the same manner,
mutatis mutandis, as is applicable to the register of

members.
WINDING UP
154. | Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act made Winding Up of the
thereunder — Company

a) Ifthe Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with
the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and
any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst
the members, in specie or kind, the whole or any part of
the assets of the Company, whether they shall consist of
property of the same kind or not.

b) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such
value as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as
aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be
carried out as between the members or different classes
of members.

c¢) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or
any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for
the benefit of the contributories if he considers
necessary, but so that no member shall be compelled to
accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any
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liability.

INDEMNITY & RESPONSIBILITY

155.

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act, every Director of the
Company, Secretary and other Officer or Employee of the
Company and the Trustees (if any) for the time being acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and every
one of them shall be indemnified by the Company out of
the funds of the Company to pay all costs, losses and
expenses (including travelling expenses) which any such
Director, Secretary, Officer or Employee and the Trustees,
if any, for the time being acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company may incur or become liable to by
reason of any contract entered into or any act or deed done
by him as such Director, officer or servant or in any way in
the discharge of his duties.

(b) Subject to as aforesaid every Director, Secretary or other
Officer or Employees of the Company or the Trustees, if
any, for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs
ofthe Company and every one of them shall be indemnified
against any liability incurred by him in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favour or in which he is acquired or in
connection with any application under the applicable
provisions of the Act in which relief is given to him by the
court or Tribunal.

Director’s to be
indemnified

156.

Subject to the provision of the Act, no Director or other Officer
of the Company shall be liable for the acts, omissions, neglects,
defaults of any other Director or Officer or for joining in any
omissions or other act for conformity, or for any loss or
expenses suffered by the Company through insufficiency of title
to any property acquired by the order of the Directors for or on
behalf of the Company, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of
any security in or upon which any of the moneys of the
Company shall be invested or for any loss or damage arising
from the bankruptey, insolvency, or tortuous act or any person,
company or corporation, with whom any moneys, securities or
effects of the Company shall be entrusted or deposited, or for
any loss occasioned by any error of judgement or oversight on his
part or for any other loss or damage or misfortune whatever
shall happen in the execution of the duties of his office or in
relation thereto, unless the same happen through his own
dishonesty, willful neglect or default.

INot responsible for
acts of others

157

The Company may take and maintain any insurance as the
Board may think fit on behalf of its present and/or former
directors and key managerial personnel for indemnifying all or
any of them against any liability for any acts in relation to the
Company for which they may be liable but have acted honestly
and reasonably.

D&O Liability
Insurance
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GENERAL POWER OF THE COMPANY

158.

Wherever in the Act, it has been provided that the Company or
its Director shall have any right privilege or authority or that
the Company or Director could carry out any transaction only
if the Company or Director is so authorised by its articles, then
and in that case this regulation hereto authorizes and empowers
the Company or Director to have such rights, privileges or
authority and to carry such transactions as have been permitted by
the Act, without there being any specific regulation in that
behalf herein provided.

General Power of
the Company

MISCELLANEOUS

159.

a) Subject to the provisions of these Articles and the Act no
member or other person (other than a Director) shall be
entitled to enter the property of the Company or to inspect
or examine the Company’s premises or properties of the
Company without the permission of the Board or the
Managing Director or to require discovery of or any
information respecting any detail of the Company’s
trading or any matter which is or may be in the nature of a
trade secret, mystery or trade, or secret process or of any
matter whatsoever which may relate to the conduct of the
business of the Company and which in the opinion of the
Directors it will be inexpedient in the interests of the
Company to communicate.

b)Any confidential information disclosed to a Member or
Director shall not be used by him for any purpose other than
for the exercise of rights or performance of obligation as a
Member or Director of the Company and shall not be
disclosed by him to any person, firm or Company.

INo Shareholder to
enter the Premises
of Company
without permission

SECRECY

160.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, any Director or Officer of
the company shall be entitled to, if he thinks fit, decline to
answer any question concerning the business of the company
on the ground that the answer to such question would disclose
or tend to disclose the secrets of the company.

ARBITRATION AND GOVERNING LAWS

161.

Whenever any difference or dispute arises between the
company on the one hand and any of the member of their heirs,
executors, administrators, nominees or assignees on the other
hand or between the members inter-se or their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, nominecs or assigns inter-se
touching the true intent, construction or incidents or
consequences of these Articles or touching anything done,
executed, omitted or suffered in pursuance thereof or to any
affairs of the company, every such dispute or difference shall
be referred to the sole arbitration of the Chairman for the time

Arbitration
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being of the company or to some person appointed by both
parties and it will be no objection that he is an Officer of the
company or that he had to deal with such disputes or
differences and it is only after an Award is given by such
Arbitrator that the parties will be entitled to take any other
proceedings relating to such disputes, differences and the
award. The Award made by such Arbitrator shall be final and
binding on the parties. The arbitration shall be conducted
according to the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation
Act, 1996 as amended from time to time. The seat of Arbitrator
shall be at New Delhi.

162.

Subject to the Arbitration clause, any dispute, controversy or
claim between the parties arising out of or in connection with
or relating to the enforcement, performance of the terms and
conditions of Articles shall be construed in accordance with
Laws of India excluding its conflict of law provisions. The
Jurisdiction for any dispute arising under Articles of Company
shall be only at New Delhi, India.

Governing Law &
Jurisdiction.

Every Member and other Security holder will use rights of such
Member/ security holder as conferred by Applicable Law or
these Articles bonafide, in best interest of the Company or for
protection of any of the proprietary interest of such
Member/security holder, and not for extraneous, vexatious or
frivolous purposes. The Board shall have the right to take
appropriate measures, and in case of persistent abuse of
powers, expulsion of such Member or other Security holder, in
case any Member/Security holder abusively makes use of any
powers for extraneous, vexatious or frivolous purposes

Bonafide exercise
of membership
rights

MATERIAL DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The following documents will be open for inspection at the corporate office of the Company situated at
Artemis Hospital, Sector-51, Gurugram-122001 (Haryana) between 10 A.M and 5 P.M on any working day
(Monday to Friday, and not being a bank holiday):

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

Certified copies of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as amended up to date.

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated May 18, 2004.

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated May 09, 2018 approving the Scheme.

Observation letter for the Composite Scheme from BSE and NSE dated September 05, 2018 and

September 14, 2018

Statement of special tax benefits dated October 12, 2019 issued by the M/s AKCJ] & Associates,

Chartered Accountants, along with the certificate dated October 12, 2019
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(63) Certified copy of the Order of the NCLT, Delhi dated October 1, 2019 and its filing with the ROC,
Delhi.
(g) SEBI's letter dated January 10, 2020 , granting relaxation of Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Rules, 1957 as per the SEBL
(h) BSE letter dated December 19, 2019, granting inCprinciple approval for listing.
(1) NSE letter dated December 07, 2019, granting inOprinciple approval for listing.
() Composite Scheme of Amalgamation.
(k) Tripartite Agreement dated July 15, 2014 with NSDL, Registrar and Transfer Agent and the Company.
)] Tripartite Agreement dated October 16, 2019 with CDSL, Registrar and Transfer Agent and the

Company.

DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992, as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum is
contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all
statements made in this Information Memorandum are true and correct.

On behalf of Board of Directors
For Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Name: Rakesh Kumar K;?brﬂ(/ S
Designation: Company $€cretary & Compliance Officer

Date:
Place: Gurugram
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